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[9:05 a.m.] 1 

 _______________________________ 2 

 INTRODUCTIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:    4 

Good morning.  Let's get started.  I'd like to say last 5 

Friday the Mid-Atlantic Council lost a friend and a 6 

member when Jule Wheatly passed away, and I was very 7 

grateful to have had the opportunity to get to know Jule. 8 

   I confess I didn't really get to know him 9 

on a personal level until he got sick but then was really 10 

pleased to get to know him.  Frankly, I think we all came 11 

to appreciate his commitment to this process once he did 12 

get sick. 13 

   He overcame great adversity physically 14 

to come to these meetings.  The only ones that he missed 15 

were the ones that he missed because he was in the middle 16 

of the treatment process.  And he fought very hard to 17 

come to all the remaining meetings, and I think it said 18 

a lot about his character and commitment to the 19 

fisheries management process and to the people who are 20 

affected by the Council's regulations. 21 

   He was really committed to the people of 22 

North Carolina in the coastal fishing communities.  He 23 

placed great value on fairness.  And I'll just tell all 24 
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of you around the table that he thought this was the 1 

fairest body he had ever served on.  He had had a lot 2 

of experience serving on commissions and boards and 3 

councils.  He placed great value on that.  But please 4 

stand and join me in a moment of silence for Jule 5 

Wheatly.  [Pause.]  Thank you.  Our first order of 6 

business is the swearing in of our new council member.  7 

Congratulations and welcome back to John McMurray.  At 8 

this point I'll turn it over to George Darcy. 9 

 _________________________________ 10 

 SWEARING-IN OF NEW COUNCIL MEMBER 11 

   GEORGE DARCY:  Thank you.  John, if 12 

you'd stand and raise your right hand, and I'll read the 13 

oath, and you'll repeat, and we'll get through this.  I 14 

-- please state your name. 15 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  I, John McMurray. 16 

   GEORGE DARCY:  -- as a duly appointed 17 

member of a Regional Fishery Management Counsel 18 

established under the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery 19 

Conservation Management ACT -- 20 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  -- as a duly appointed 21 

member of a Regional Fishery Management Council 22 

established under the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery 23 

Conservation Management Act -- 24 
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   GEORGE DARCY:  -- hereby promise to 1 

conserve and manage the living marine resources of the 2 

United States of America by carrying out the business 3 

of the Council for the greatest overall benefit of the 4 

nation. 5 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  -- hereby promise to 6 

conserve and manage the living marine resources of the 7 

United States of America by carrying out the business 8 

of the Council for the greatest overall benefit of the 9 

nation. 10 

   GEORGE DARCY:  I recognize my 11 

responsibility to serve as a knowledgeable and 12 

experienced trustee of the nation's marine fisheries 13 

resources being careful to balance competing private or 14 

regional interests and always aware of protecting 15 

public interest in those resources. 16 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  I recognize my 17 

responsibility to serve as a knowledgeable and 18 

experienced trustee of the nation's marine fisheries 19 

resources being careful to balance competing private or 20 

regional interests and always aware and protective of 21 

the public interest in those resources. 22 

   GEORGE DARCY:  I commit myself to 23 

uphold the provisions, standards, and requirements of 24 
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the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation Management 1 

Act and other applicable law.  I shall conduct myself 2 

at all times according to the rules of conduct 3 

prescribed by the Secretary of Commerce. 4 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  I commit myself to 5 

uphold the provisions, standards, and requirements of 6 

the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation Management 7 

Act and other applicable law.  I shall conduct myself 8 

at all times according to the rules of conduct 9 

prescribed by the Secretary of Commerce. 10 

   GEORGE DARCY:  This oath is freely 11 

given and without mental reservation or purpose of 12 

evasion. 13 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  This oath is freely 14 

given without mental reservation or purpose of evasion. 15 

   GEORGE DARCY:  Congratulations. 16 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  Thank you. 17 

   [Applause.] 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  19 

Yesterday the Squid, Mackerel, Butterfish Committee met 20 

and worked through the various option sets in Amendment 21 

14, the draft EIS. 22 

   Jason Didden will be presenting the 23 

those again today, and we'll be running through the 24 
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committee motions, and Erling will be delivering those 1 

motions to the Council. 2 

   They're committee motions and will not 3 

require a second.  They can be amended and debated 4 

through discussion by the full Council as we go forward.  5 

Go ahead, Erling. 6 

 _____________________________________________ 7 

 SQUID, MACKEREL, BUTTERFISH AMENDMENT 14 DEIS 8 

   ERLING BERG:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. 9 

Chairman.  This is from yesterday.  I think a lot of you 10 

were here.  The first motion is -- why don't I wait until 11 

it gets up on the board.  I move to include the stock 12 

in the fishery Alternative Set D in the DEIS for public 13 

comments and hearings. 14 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 15 

would just point out the DEIS is in the briefing book.  16 

If there are any members who were not here yesterday that 17 

want some brief explanation or summary at least of what 18 

these alternative sets represent, just let us know, and 19 

we'll go through that.  But it is fairly 20 

straightforward. 21 

   The Committee made several motions that 22 

will take a few items out, and if you have questions 23 

about that, we can explore that also.  But here's the 24 
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motion from the Committee for Alternative Set 9.  1 

Discussion on the motion?  Jason. 2 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Just to state 3 

clarification, it's Alternative Set 9, not Set D.  The 4 

verbal motion was Set D. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Okay.  Thanks.  So the written motion on the board as 7 

it appears is correct, Alternative Set 9.  Any 8 

discussion at the council level?  Pete. 9 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Mr. Chairman, we went 10 

through quite a meeting yesterday on Amendment 14, and 11 

despite all the discussion, I just want to put my 12 

viewpoint on the record on the amendment in these 13 

proceedings. 14 

   I'm not going to debate, go back.  We 15 

had voting -- very contentious voting on all nine 16 

alternatives, sections within the alternatives, and I 17 

voted in the minority on a lot of issues.  I'm not going 18 

to fight that fight again today.  So I just want the 19 

understanding of the Council, when I vote in favor of 20 

these, it's to go out to public hearing.  Okay.  I'm not 21 

trying to undo anything that we voted on yesterday. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  23 

Thank you, Pete.  Any further discussion by the 24 
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Council?  Any public comment on the motion?  Okay.  1 

Seeing none, is the Council ready for the question?  2 

 (Motion as voted.) 3 

 {Move to include the stock in the fishery 4 

 alternative set (9) in the DEIS for public comments 5 

 and hearings.} 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 7 

in favor please raise your hand.   8 

 (Response.) 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Fifteen.  10 

Opposed like sign.  11 

 (No Response.) 12 

    COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  13 

Abstentions like sign.  One abstention.   14 

 (Response.) 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 16 

carries.  Thank you.  Erling. 17 

   ERLING BERG:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  18 

The next one is:  I move to eliminate Alternative Set 19 

8, which is the mesh gear requirement, from the 20 

amendment. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  22 

Discussion by the Council?  Are there any public 23 

comments on the motion?  All right.  Seeing none, back 24 
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to the Council. 1 

   Is the Council ready for the question?     2 

 (Motion as voted.) 3 

 {Move to eliminate Alternative Set 8 (mesh/gear 4 

 requirement) from the Amendment.} 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 6 

in favor please raise your hand.   7 

 (Response.) 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Sixteen.  9 

Opposed like sign.   10 

 (No Response.) 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  12 

Abstentions like sign.   13 

 (No Response.) 14 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 15 

carries.  Thank you.  Erling. 16 

   ERLING BERG:  I move to remove 7cM and 17 

7cL and include the remaining Alternative Set 7 18 

alternatives in the DEIS. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

Since this identifies items that are coming out of the 21 

document, Jason, can you just highlight for us briefly 22 

what these are? 23 

   JASON DIDDEN:  These are the mesh 24 
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alternatives that were imbedded within area-based 1 

management, and the Committee since they took the mesh 2 

alternative out as a whole, they also took it out within 3 

the area-based considerations. 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  5 

Thank you for the clarification.  Is there any 6 

discussion at the Council?  Seeing none, are there any 7 

public comments on the motion? 8 

   Is the Council ready for the question?     9 

 (Motion as voted.) 10 

 {Move to remove 7cM and 7cL and include the 11 

 remaining alternative Set 7 alternatives in the 12 

 DEIS.} 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 14 

in favor please raise your hand.   15 

 (Response.) 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Sixteen.  17 

Opposed like sign.   18 

 (No Response.) 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  20 

Abstentions like sign.   21 

 (No Response.) 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 23 

carries.  Erling. 24 
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   ERLING BERG:  I move to move the 1 

mortality cap motions forward for inclusions in the 2 

DEIS. 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Any 4 

discussion at the Council?  Any public comments on the 5 

motion?  Back to the Council.  Is the Council ready for 6 

the question?     7 

 (Motion as voted.) 8 

 {Move to move the mortality cap motions forward for 9 

 the inclusion in the DEIS.} 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 11 

in favor please raise your hand.   12 

 (Response.) 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 14 

like sign.   15 

 (No Response.) 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  17 

Abstentions like sign.   18 

 (No Response.) 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 20 

carries.  Thank you.  Erling. 21 

   ERLING BERG:  I move to include 22 

Alternative Set 5 as written. 23 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  24 
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Discussion by the Council?  Are there any comments 1 

publicly?  Yes.  Go ahead, Jason. 2 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Just clarification.  3 

These are the alternatives for varying levels of 4 

observer coverage. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Thank you.  Any public comments on the motion?  Steve. 7 

   STEVEN HEINS:  I just want to make sure 8 

everyone's aware that there was a typo as they were 9 

written, and it was corrected on the record yesterday.  10 

But just in case.  Jason, do you want to cover that typo 11 

a little bit? 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  13 

Thanks, Steve.  Jason. 14 

   JASON DIDDEN:  It was just the 15 

alternatives had been set up for loligo, but mackerel 16 

had been included in the text below, so it was a 17 

standardized to loligo.  But there are alternatives 18 

within there applying both to loligo and mackerel. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

Thanks for the clarification.  Is there any public 21 

comment on the motion?  Seeing none, back to the 22 

Council.  Is the Council ready for the question?    23 

 (Motion as voted.) 24 
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 {Move to include alternative Set 5 as written.} 1 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 2 

in favor please raise your hand.   3 

 (Response.) 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 5 

like sign.   6 

 (No Response.) 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  8 

Abstentions like sign.   9 

 (Response.) 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  One 11 

abstention.  The motion carried 15-0-1.  Erling. 12 

   ERLING BERG:  I move that the Committee 13 

include Alternative Set 4 and incorporate 4B -- it's new 14 

-- 4C and 4D. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

Jason, do you mind highlighting these modifications? 17 

   JASON DIDDEN:  At a previous Council 18 

meeting, the Council had removed port side sampling 19 

alternatives, had been unclear to staff whether 20 

third-party monitoring of just offload weights had been 21 

included. 22 

   And in the Committee discussion 23 

yesterday, those previous just standard monitoring of 24 
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offloaded weights were replaced with alternatives for 1 

port side sampling.  And the port side sampling 2 

(inaudible) -- you know, the mean catch and also looking 3 

for other incidentally caught and retained species.   4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Mary 5 

Beth. 6 

   MARY BETH TOOLEY:  Thank you, 7 

Mr. Chairman.  Yesterday at the Committee meeting, I 8 

was the person who made this motion.  But I would just 9 

point out for people that in general the industry's been 10 

very supportive of port side sampling in the herring 11 

fishery and mackerel as well.  This alternative we 12 

spent a lot of time previously at this Council debating 13 

it and taking it out.  The advice is now to put it back 14 

in.  It's very unclear from an industry perspective how 15 

that will all work out, so the details are not really 16 

clarified in the document.  I think Jason will be 17 

working on that aspect moving forward.  So I'm 18 

supportive of again taking a second look, and we'll see 19 

how the details come out. 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  21 

Thanks, Mary Beth.  Jason, do you anticipate some 22 

further development of that section of the document? 23 

   JASON DIDDEN:  There will be a variety 24 
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of clarifications for the final DEIS, especially since 1 

Amendment 5 in New England discussed this a lot through 2 

their processes.  I'll coordinate with Lori Steele up 3 

in New England and see if any additional clarifications 4 

would be useful. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Thank you, Jason.  Any further discussion at the 7 

council level?  Are there any public comments on the 8 

motion?  Seeing none, back to the Council.   9 

 (Motion as voted.) 10 

 {Move that the Committee include alternative set 4 11 

 and incorporate 4b (new), 4c, and 4d.} 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 13 

in favor please raise your hand.   14 

 (Response.) 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Sixteen.  16 

Opposed like sign.   17 

 ((No Response.) 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  19 

Abstentions like sign.   20 

 (No Response.) 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 22 

carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Erling. 23 

   ERLING BERG:  I move that in 24 
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Alternative Set 3 recommend to delete 3D, 3F, 3G, 3J, 1 

3K, 3L and forward the remaining alternatives, Set 3 2 

alternatives in the public hearing document. 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  4 

Jason, do you mind clarifying some of these? 5 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Sure.  These were some 6 

brainstorming alternatives had then put in and then in 7 

the analysis and discussions with the Observer Program.  8 

These had related to some either measuring partial hauls 9 

for observer coverage.  So if there was a net that was 10 

going to be slipped, a vessel could pump a quarter of 11 

it across the deck and have it be sampled. 12 

   And then some of them were also 13 

requiring -- I'll stick with that one.  That one was 14 

suggested to be removed because it's almost impossible 15 

to implement at sea.  And also it was very unclear if 16 

you did pump a quarter, would that be representative of 17 

what was in the net. 18 

   So for a variety of reasons it didn't 19 

seem practical or potentially useful.  And then 3J, K, 20 

and L were requiring cod ends to be brought aboard after 21 

pumping operations and then available to see other 22 

operational discards as their discards that remain in 23 

the net after pumping. 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 21

   And it was either every fourth, fifth or 1 

sixth haul just to get a sense of what are the 2 

operational discards.  The Observer Program reported 3 

that these are almost always being brought aboard on 4 

observed trips now.  The industry has been very 5 

cooperative with that, and so this would actually be 6 

less of a standard than is occurring currently.  So 7 

that's why the FMAT recommended taking these out also. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  9 

Thanks for the clarification, Jason.  Any discussion at 10 

the Council?  Any public comment on the motion?  Seeing 11 

none, back to the Council. 12 

   Is the Council ready for the question?     13 

 (Motion as voted.) 14 

 {Move that in Alternative Set 3 recommend to delete 15 

 3d, 3f, 3g, 3j, 3k, 3l and forward the (remaining) 16 

 Alternative Set 3 alternatives in the public 17 

 hearing document.} 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 19 

in favor please raise your hand.   20 

 (Response.) 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 22 

like sign.   23 

 (No Response.) 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  1 

Abstentions like sign.   2 

 (No Response.) 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 4 

carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Erling. 5 

   ERLING BERG:  Move to add Herring 6 

Amendment 5-2D to Amendment 14 document and adopt 7 

herring Amendment 5's slippage definition. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  9 

Jason, can you highlight 2D? 10 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Sure.  2D would add a 11 

situation where on paired trawl operations of the 12 

Observer Program would to the extend in all possible 13 

cases put an observer on both vessels for paired trawl 14 

operations. 15 

   The primary thing is to avoid situations 16 

where in a pair trawl operations catch is pumped to a 17 

vessel that doesn't have an observer on it.  And then 18 

the slippage came up.  There are a number of options in 19 

the document to try to minimize slippage, and it was 20 

decided that kind of clarifying exactly what is slippage 21 

per the Amendment 5 definition, which has been discussed 22 

a lot.  It is I think a good definition of what is a 23 

slipped haul when a boat has -- you know, fish in a net 24 
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and decides not to bring it on board would be useful for 1 

the document. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  3 

Thank you.  So the document originally didn't have a 4 

very detailed definition of slippage either.  Right?  5 

So we're making that sort of align with Amendment 5's 6 

definition. 7 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Yes. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  9 

Thank you.  Any other discussion at the council level?  10 

Are there any public comments on the motion?  All right.  11 

Back to the Council.   12 

 (Motion as voted.) 13 

 {Move to add Herring Amendment 5-2D to Amendment 14 14 

 document and adopt herring Amendment 5's slippage 15 

 definition.} 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 17 

in favor please raise your hand.   18 

 (Response.) 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 20 

like sign.   21 

 (No Response.) 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  23 

Abstentions like sign.   24 
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 (No Response.) 1 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 2 

carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Erling. 3 

   ERLING BERG:  Move to include options 4 

to prohibit operational discards on an observed trip. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Discussion at the Council?  Public comments on the 7 

motion?  Back to the Council.     8 

 (Motion as voted.) 9 

 {Move to include options to prohibit operational 10 

 discards.} 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 12 

in favor please raise your hand.   13 

 (Response.) 14 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 15 

like sign.   16 

 (No Response.) 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  18 

Abstentions like sign.   19 

 (No Response.) 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 21 

carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Erling. 22 

   ERLING BERG:  Move to replace 2bM and 23 

2bL with 2b and to remove 2c1 and 2d1, add 2e per FMAT. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Jason, you want to run through these? 2 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Sure.  So 2bM and 3 

2bL were requiring vessels and dealers to communicate 4 

back and forth to essentially ensure that dealers had 5 

entered information in correctly. 6 

   There were a variety of physical 7 

challenges with that, and so 2b is just using -- right 8 

now vessels have an option of going online through 9 

fish-on-line to confirm their landings.  And 2bM and 10 

2bL had been specific to mackerel and loligo. 11 

   2b would just standardize it across the 12 

regulatory definitions for all three of the fisheries, 13 

squid, illex, mackerel, loligo.  So standardize it 14 

across the MSB dealers.  And it essentially just 15 

simplifies 2bM and 2bL into 2b. 16 

   And then 2c1 and 2d1 were options 17 

requiring sorting of all catch including sorting and 18 

weighing.  Other alternatives in this document would 19 

require dealers to kind of specify how they deal with 20 

mixed catches.  Some of the fisheries they don't sort 21 

kind of -- you know, these large volume catches 22 

perfectly, and they're really not set up to do that, so 23 

I think the Committee decided that would be impractical.  24 
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But the other alternatives would require weighing.  It 1 

would also require the dealers to specify how they 2 

estimate the relative composition of a mixed catch. 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  4 

Thank you, Jason.  Any further discussion at the 5 

council level on this motion?  Are there any public 6 

comments on the motion?  Seeing none, back to the 7 

Council. 8 

   Is the Council ready for the question?     9 

 (Motion as voted.) 10 

 {Move to replace 2bM and 2bL with 2b and to remove 11 

 2c1 and 2d1.  Add 2e per FMAT.} 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 13 

in favor please raise your hand.   14 

 (Response.) 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Eighteen.  16 

Opposed like sign.   17 

 (No Response.) 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  19 

Abstentions like sign.   20 

 (No Response.) 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 22 

carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Erling. 23 

   ERLING BERG:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  24 
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This is the last one.  Move to include Alternate Set 1 1 

as is with all of the alternatives. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  3 

Discussion on the motion?  Are there any public 4 

comments on the motion?  Seeing none, back to the 5 

Council. 6 

   Is the Council ready for the question?     7 

 (Motion as voted.) 8 

 {Move that Alternate Set 1 is moved as is with all 9 

 alternatives.} 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 11 

in favor please raise your hand.   12 

 (Response.) 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 14 

like sign.   15 

 (No Response.) 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  17 

Abstentions like sign.   18 

 (No Response.) 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 20 

carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Mary Beth. 21 

   MARY BETH TOOLEY:  Thank you, 22 

Mr. Chairman.  I just wanted to -- you know, compliment 23 

the staff for their work on the amendments.  I think a 24 
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tremendous amount of work has gone into it.  A lot of 1 

complicated issues.  The one thing I would note about 2 

the document is the social and economic impact section 3 

of the document really could use some work.  There's 4 

just not a lot of information there. 5 

   And I'm not sure exactly how it got to 6 

that spot where there's like 20 pages and not much more.  7 

And the other thing is that I know that both in New 8 

England and in the Mid-Atlantic people have been 9 

highlighting the need for social and economic impact 10 

analysis including social scientists on our SSC's and 11 

we certainly have added some people in New England, as 12 

I think you have here; and as we move forward with the 13 

process and we're using an SSC, it does seem that at some 14 

point having that body review these documents for their 15 

adequacy would be appropriate. 16 

   This Council is getting ready to move 17 

this document forward for public hearing, so I'm not 18 

sure how that fits in to where we're at today, but I think 19 

there should be some consideration of how to best 20 

utilize those people that the Council has asked to serve 21 

on their SSC. 22 

   So I guess I look to you, 23 

Mr. Chairman, and to the staff in this section of the 24 
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document for maybe some feedback on how we might perhaps 1 

improve it. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  3 

Jason. 4 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Even since the mail-out, 5 

the FMAT, which is Science Center Regional Center staff 6 

and myself, have been -- and also people at the 7 

Commission -- have been discussing both on this issue 8 

economic and biological impact analyses of things that 9 

can be added and improved, and especially on this issue, 10 

economic we've already had discussions. 11 

   The FMAT didn't want to delay the 12 

process for another two months until the next Committee 13 

meeting and thought that in terms of voting it out for 14 

public hearings, it was sufficient; but between now and 15 

official publication, there will be additions made to 16 

all sections including the socioeconomic impact 17 

section. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Just 19 

to follow up on the SSC side of this as well, last week 20 

our Council hosted the national SSC workshop in 21 

Williamsburg, Virginia, and one of the major focal 22 

points of that was social sciences as they relate to 23 

fisheries management actions and quota setting, and 24 
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really the whole gamut of fisheries management. 1 

   So I would anticipate some follow-up 2 

based on that workshop about how we can more effectively 3 

engage our SSC on some of these questions.  We have put 4 

together a subcommittee of social scientists within the 5 

SSC, and we've been engaging them on different issues.  6 

We haven't gone to the step yet of asking them to review 7 

these sections of our documents, but that's something 8 

that we can certainly discuss going forward.  Erling, 9 

I think you may still have a motion to recommend the 10 

whole thing out, to send the DEIS out. 11 

   ERLING BERG:  I don't have it here.  12 

Jason may have something back there. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 14 

think -- don't we need to go ahead and have one wrap-up 15 

motion that finalizes sending this out? 16 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Yes, I think that would 17 

be appropriate.  I had one other thing in reviewing the 18 

document and the alternatives that were set up last 19 

night to suggest the Council consider if the Council's 20 

interested. 21 

   So within some of the area-based 22 

management things, one of them would just be to apply 23 

the New England hot spot analysis to mackerel vessels.  24 
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But in kind of thinking about it, it's an area-based 1 

thing related to small mesh, and since the amendment's 2 

looking at mackerel and loligo, it may make sense at 3 

least for the public hearing phase to think about should 4 

those hot spot requirements be applicable to both 5 

mackerel and loligo fishing since it's more of a 6 

gear-area-based thing.  And then if it's in there, 7 

there's the option to do with what the Council wants at 8 

a later date. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  So 10 

you're recommending that both those options be included 11 

at this point in time? 12 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Yes. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  14 

Okay.  What's the pleasure of the Council?  Does the 15 

Council want to consider a motion to add those items per 16 

Jason's recommendation?  Peter. 17 

   PETER deFUR:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  So 18 

move that we add those items as described by Jason. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Is 20 

there a second to the motion?  Second by Pres.  21 

Discussion on the motion?  Pete. 22 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Could Jason give us a 23 

section and a letter where this adjustment is being 24 
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made? 1 

   JASON DIDDEN:  So it would be Section 7.  2 

And if you look on page 22, 7G is where the hot spot 3 

requirements would apply to mackerel vessels.  There 4 

were two 7G's in the document.  The bottom one on page 5 

22 should be 7H.  So this would be 7I, to kind of make 6 

things clear, and it would a duplicate of 7G, except it 7 

would be for loligo moratorium fishing -- apply to 8 

loligo moratorium toward vessels. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  10 

Further discussion at the Council?  Greg. 11 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  Council member.  12 

I just had a quick comment.  I do not support a hot spot 13 

option for loligo fishery.  But if the analysis can 14 

include the most recent data especially the fishery as 15 

it is today under Amendment 10, then that's something 16 

we can support.  Thank you. 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  18 

Thank you, Greg.  Further comment on the motion?  the 19 

motion is to include loligo fishing in hot spot Option 20 

7I.  Is the Council ready for the question?   21 

 (Motion as voted.) 22 

 {Move to include Loligo fishing in Hotspot option 23 

 (7i).} 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 1 

in favor please raise your hand.   2 

 (Response.) 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Seventeen.  4 

Opposed like sign.   5 

 (Response.) 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  One.  7 

Abstentions like sign.   8 

 (No Response.) 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 10 

carries.  Jason, is there anything else you had for 11 

recommendations?  We do need one final motion I would 12 

suggest to send out the DEIS.  Erling. 13 

   ERLING BERG:  Okay.  So a motion to 14 

send the DEIS out for public comment.  Is that what 15 

you're looking for? 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Yes. 17 

   ERLING BERG:  So be it. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Is 19 

there a second to the motion?  Second by Pete Himchak.  20 

Discussion on the motion?  Is the Council ready for the 21 

question?     22 

 (Motion as voted.) 23 

 {Move to finalize and submit DEIS for public 24 
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 comment and hearings.} 1 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 2 

in favor please raise your hand.   3 

 (Response.) 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 5 

like sign.   6 

 (No Response.) 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  8 

Abstentions like sign.   9 

 (No Response.) 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 11 

carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Jason, I just 12 

reiterate what Mary Beth said:  You did an excellent job 13 

yesterday of getting the Committee through some 14 

contentious issues and complex issues; so thanks again 15 

for all your hard work on the DEIS. 16 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Thank you, 17 

Mr. Chairman. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  One 19 

thing that I think we need to be cognizant of, we 20 

discussed yesterday that the parallel tracks that 21 

Amendment 14 within this council and Amendment 5 for the 22 

herring FMP are on and how important it is that at the 23 

end of the day we have measures that are at least 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 35

reasonably coordinated so they're compatible. 1 

   Ultimately, the fleet that's being 2 

managed -- the mid-water component of that fleet is 3 

essentially the same fleet between these two fisheries.  4 

And so this is something that I think we're going to have 5 

to work very hard between the two councils to come up 6 

with a compatible plan. 7 

   And the difficulty right now looking at 8 

the differences in the output of the PDT in the New 9 

England Council and the output of our FMAT and now this 10 

Council suggests that while we didn't identify a 11 

preferred alternative, looking at the FMATs analysis, 12 

there are some significant questions I think about 13 

applying the hot spot approach on a small-scale basis 14 

and the questions about the conservation benefits of 15 

that for river herring if we applied it in the mackerel 16 

fishery.  And so I think that leads us towards other 17 

management tools, such as a cap. 18 

   Meanwhile, New England doesn't have a 19 

cap option in Amendment 5.  It can be frameworked.  But 20 

I think there's a potential significant disconnect 21 

there.  So I think we're going to have to work very hard 22 

after this. 23 

   And we discussed with New England trying 24 
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to have some sort of conferencing function after this 1 

meeting whereby we would have a discussion about how we 2 

can have some sort of compatible outcome at the end of 3 

the process.  And we'll continue to work on that. 4 

   But I think we've kept in options in this 5 

document in order to preserve a full range of options 6 

to give us the flexibility of trying to achieve that type 7 

of collaborative outcome at the end that we might have 8 

otherwise taken out. 9 

   And New England has already taken out 10 

some options, I think, that may make it difficult to get 11 

on the same page, but we'll just have to work at that.  12 

So we have our work cut out for us on this one.  Peter. 13 

   PETER defur:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  14 

Apart from the coordinating discussions that you'll 15 

have with the New England Council, do we have some 16 

estimate about what the schedule will be for getting our 17 

DEIS out on the street and get the public hearing?  Is 18 

that the next two months?  Certainly before the end of 19 

the year or maybe right after the first of the year?  20 

February? 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  22 

Jason, do you have a timeline? 23 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Sure.  On page four of 24 
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the DEIS, there's a draft schedule.  The overall goal 1 

is to have a final rule effective by January 1, 2013.  2 

Public hearing's right now probably -- you know, 3 

December or January is likely when we should try to do 4 

public hearings. 5 

   PETER defur:  I was thinking about 6 

whether anything we've done here might slow that down 7 

or alter that.  Do you anticipate that there are any 8 

more extensive changes than you envisioned?  Thank you. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  10 

Jason, what would it take for a cap option to be added 11 

back to Amendment 5 if New England were to entertain 12 

that?  Would that require a supplement to their DEIS? 13 

   JASON DIDDEN:  I think so.  But Lori 14 

may have additional thoughts. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

Lori.  And, Lori, thanks for being with us yesterday and 17 

today.  I appreciate you coming down on behalf of the 18 

PDT to be with us for this discussion. 19 

   LORI STEELE:  Thank you.  When the New 20 

England Council approves the range of alternatives and 21 

the motion to submit the draft DEIS at the September 22 

council meeting, so I'm in the process of preparing the 23 

draft DEIS, and we're hoping to submit the draft DEIS 24 
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by mid-November so that we can also go to public hearings 1 

probably in early January. 2 

   I think for the Council to consider 3 

adding a cap option back in, we would have to probably 4 

address that at the November council meeting, which 5 

means that this Council may want to consider -- you know, 6 

sending a request or something like that to the New 7 

England Council to have it addressed at the November 8 

council meeting or at least considered by the Executive 9 

Committee for the November council meeting, at which 10 

point I would either -- we would either hold up the draft 11 

DEIS to get it in there, or we would probably submit some 12 

sort of a supplement to the DEIS depending on what we 13 

could work out with the regional office.  We definitely 14 

want to stay on this same timeline.  We're also hoping 15 

for implementation on January 1, 2013. 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  17 

Lori, based on my understanding of that document -- and 18 

I haven't had the benefit of reviewing it in great detail 19 

-- but based on my understanding of at least the 20 

management approaches that are embodied in that, in 21 

order for us to have the flexibility between both 22 

councils to go either way with our management strategy, 23 

that is to either go with a cap or go with time and area 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 39

closures, we would have to have -- that option would have 1 

to be in Amendment 5 to give us that full range of options 2 

as far as having a compatible outcome.  Is that correct? 3 

   LORI STEELE:  Yes.  I think that's the 4 

most significant difference at this point between the 5 

two amendments.  Now, we do have in the herring 6 

amendment -- we do have options for trigger-based 7 

management approaches including trigger-based closed 8 

areas where we have catch triggers that would then -- 9 

you know, close certain areas or increase monitoring in 10 

certain areas. 11 

   It would not take a lot, I don't think, 12 

to translate those trigger-based options into some form 13 

of a cap.  So some of the groundwork has already been 14 

laid. 15 

   The PDT did an extensive white paper 16 

evaluating catch caps for river herring, so a lot of the 17 

analysis has been done.  Of course, the PDT's ultimate 18 

recommendation was to not support a cap at this time, 19 

but the Council certainly has the ability to decide to 20 

put that option in the document if it wants to. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  22 

Thanks for the clarification, Lori.  If there's no 23 

objection here, I would suggest that we send a letter 24 
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to New England at least summarizing what actions we've 1 

taken here with Amendment 14 and identifying the range 2 

of management alternatives that we've included in the 3 

document and request that they consider adding that 4 

option to Amendment 5 simply to give both councils a full 5 

range of flexibility and increase the prospects that we 6 

might have a compatible outcome at the end of the 7 

process.  Mary Beth. 8 

   MARY BETH TOOLEY:  Just a question for 9 

Lori.  Amendment 5 I thought there is an alternative 10 

that would consider a mortality cap after the stock 11 

assessment process that the Commission is undertaking 12 

is completed.  Is that still an option of the document? 13 

   LORI STEELE:  Yes.  I mean I don't 14 

really consider that an option.  It's sort of a 15 

statement.  Like, we would consider a catch cap -- you 16 

know, by framework once the stock assessment for river 17 

herring is completed.  That statement is still in the 18 

document.  And that's sort of where the New England 19 

Council ended up after we had an extensive debate over 20 

whether or not we should have a cap, a specific cap, in 21 

this amendment.  So it would really essentially be 22 

asking for reconsideration of that determination. 23 

   MARY BETH TOOLEY:  Thank you, Mr. 24 
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Chairman.  That was a particularly painful discussion, 1 

as I recall.  It went rather late into the evening.  But 2 

clearly the PDT advice to the Council was that a cap, 3 

there's clearly not a biological basis for a cap. 4 

   And I don't know if Lori wanted to add 5 

anything more to that.  But I think should this Council 6 

consider sending a letter to New England asking for 7 

something that was outside the advice that we received 8 

from our Technical Committee, I think you should be 9 

aware of that. 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 11 

appreciate that.  And I think it was pretty clear that 12 

the PDT was unable to identify a technical basis for 13 

establishing that cap.  That does relate to the absence 14 

of a stock assessment at this point in time. 15 

   But I think we've identified a 16 

management objective that includes reducing river 17 

herring and shad interactions, and so it's based on our 18 

FMAT analysis at least a viable management alternative 19 

to achieve that management goal.  And I think that 20 

circumstances have changed somewhat because we've now 21 

had an FMAT analysis that suggests that the conservation 22 

benefits of the time-area closures associated with the 23 

hot spot strategy that were originally identified are 24 
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now in question.  And so I think that creates a bit of 1 

a problem for all of us as we consider the different 2 

options.  Jason. 3 

   JASON DIDDEN:  I don't think there's 4 

much disagreement between the PDT and the FMAT in terms 5 

of can one describe the biological benefits of a given 6 

reduction in river herring catch because without an 7 

assessment to compare it to, you don't know what the 8 

benefits may be. 9 

   It's just that it's technically 10 

feasible to set up a limit that would cut the fishery 11 

off at a certain estimate of river herring and shad 12 

catch. 13 

   But I think the FMAT and the PDT are 14 

alike in the sense that you can't describe what -- other 15 

than maybe what some general directionality, it would 16 

probably be helpful in some, but it may be a tiny, 17 

unmeasurable bit of help, or it could be a lot.  It's 18 

just impossible to describe, given the lack of an 19 

assessment. 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  21 

Thank you.  Further discussion by the Council?  Chris. 22 

   CHRISTOPHER ZEMAN:  Thank you.  I just 23 

want to make a recommendation that we also cc the 24 
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Commission on that letter. 1 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  2 

Thank you.  Further comment?  I saw a couple hands.  3 

Patrick. 4 

   PATRICK PAQUETTE:  Thank you, Mr. 5 

Chairman.  Just when you were discussing the schedule, 6 

I know that you said had voted the amendment out.  I 7 

wanted to on behalf of at least the recreational fishing 8 

community in New England -- though I'm pretty sure that 9 

quite a few of the commercial boats that participate in 10 

these fisheries in Gloucester and New Bedford and Point 11 

Judith we'd like to see at least one hearing in New 12 

England on this amendment. 13 

   I understand that the New England states 14 

aren't represented at this table, but I think it's very 15 

clear that a significant part of the fishery is going 16 

to be affected by it. 17 

   I'd love to see one in Rhode Island and 18 

one in Massachusetts myself.  But I just want to 19 

strongly consider it.  I know I've got multiple 20 

organizations that would work really hard and probably 21 

even be able to provide public and accessible meetings 22 

spaces, too.  Like we do whatever we have to do to get 23 

a hearing on this because it's going to affect us.  I 24 
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mean the charter boat fleet in Massachusetts lives on 1 

mackerel, so.  Thank you. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  3 

Thanks, Pat.  Jason. 4 

   JASON DIDDEN:  We've typically done 5 

squid, mackerel, butterfish hearings both in Gloucester 6 

and also either Providence or down in Narragansett.  So 7 

I'd anticipate there would be at least one up in New 8 

England. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS: 10 

Thanks, Jason.  Jeff Kaelin. 11 

   JEFF KAELIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  12 

Good morning, members of the Council.  I'm Jeff Kaelin 13 

of Lund's Fisheries.  On the cap a couple things.  Mary 14 

Beth and Jason have both said that biologically base cap 15 

is very difficult to estimate. 16 

   I think when we had the cap discussion 17 

in New England, one of the options that Terry Stockwell, 18 

I think, put on the table was to look at some kind of 19 

historical bycatch amount over some period of time that 20 

would serve as a cap that might make a bycatch avoidance 21 

approach like the SMass Project, which we think is the 22 

way to do this on the water, work. 23 

   So I  think we should take a look at 24 
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that, some kind of five- or ten-year estimate of catches 1 

perhaps.  The other thing I wanted to mention was that 2 

a week or so ago after the New England Council finished 3 

their work on that Thursday, some of us went up to the 4 

Gulf of Maine Research Institute in Portland to listen 5 

to Dr. Mike Armstrong, who is one of the chief scientists 6 

for Mass DMF. 7 

   His presentation about river herring is 8 

they're a smoking gun.  And I don't think Mike has 9 

published his work yet.  He did make this presentation 10 

at New England Council sometime back I think to the 11 

Committee. 12 

   His analysis is that, in fact, offshore 13 

fishing has not created a decline in the river herring 14 

stocks and the rivering systems in the Northeast, 15 

particularly in Massachusetts, and instead it's very 16 

much environmentally based. 17 

   We're hearing this now in terms of 18 

recruitment in a number of fisheries.  And his data 19 

correlates very strongly with periods of low rainfall 20 

and so forth.  And his estimate is that there's probably 21 

80 million fish out there -- pounds or animals.  I can't 22 

remember his number. 23 

   One estimate is Maine takes about 1.3 24 
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million directly maybe in the bad years.  And I think 1 

we've been able to get river herring incidental catches 2 

down since people have become more sensitized to this 3 

over the last couple years.  Maybe the big years we take 4 

a million.  And he estimated about 80 million pounds in 5 

the offshore component.  So his information is really 6 

important, I think, for this Council to understand 7 

particularly as we try to coordinate these two plans 8 

just in terms of what a biological catch -- what the 9 

ballpark might be. 10 

   And then the other issue I think is I 11 

think we're considering the importance of a cap and, 12 

again, some kind of historical catch average, the same 13 

kind of proxy we use for an overfishing limit might be 14 

a way out of the box possibly.  So I just want to make 15 

those comments.  Thank you. 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  17 

Thank you, Jeff.  And as I understand it, as the cap's 18 

proposed now in the document, it would be set through 19 

specifications.  And I anticipate there might be some 20 

more discussion about that in the final DEIS. 21 

   But that would give the Council the 22 

flexibility of receiving FMAT advice about what might 23 

be an appropriate baseline from which to reduce and then 24 
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give the Council the flexibility through specifications 1 

to set that cap. 2 

   And if you took that approach -- and your 3 

point is a good one, that that would allow for the 4 

industry to have the flexibility to work with that 5 

program, like we saw yesterday with the SMASS Program, 6 

as far as real time avoidance or avoiding interactions. 7 

   JEFF KAELIN:  I really think that's the 8 

only way it's going to work, those of us who are on the 9 

water and understand that business, as many of you do 10 

around the table.  We don't really see any other way to 11 

accomplish the goal of the amendment, so.  Thank you. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  13 

Thank you.  Any further business on the amendment?  14 

Okay.  Thanks again, Jason.  The next item is Paul 15 

Rego's SBRM presentation.  Do we have Paul presenting 16 

by telephone?  Jason. 17 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Yes.  And I think we 18 

probably need maybe 10 minutes to establish that link 19 

to work any bugs out. 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  21 

Okay.  Let's come back in 10 minutes and hear from Dr. 22 

Paul Rego.  Thanks. 23 

   [Break 9:52 a.m. to 10:08 a.m.] 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Let's go ahead and get started.  We've got Dr. Paul Rego 2 

on the phone.  He's going to be presenting us with the 3 

SBRM three-year report.  Jason, is the link active? 4 

   JASON DIDDEN:  I think we're good.  Go 5 

ahead, Paul. 6 

   PAUL REGO:  Okay.  Thank you.  Can you 7 

hear me? 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Yes. 9 

 _________________ 10 

 SBRM PRESENTATION 11 

   PAUL REGO:  Okay.  Good.  Hopefully, I 12 

don't sound like I'm in a can here.  Good morning, 13 

everybody.  It's a pleasure to address the 14 

Mid-Atlantic Council again.  I'm going to talk about 15 

standardized bycatch reporting methodology and in 16 

particular the progress we've made through the Fishery 17 

Management Action Team, FMAT and (inaudible) Part 2.  18 

I'm getting a lot of feedback here, but I just wanted 19 

to check.  Is everything good there? 20 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Everything is fine here. 21 

   PAUL REGO:  Okay.  Well, I have three 22 

major topics I want to present today.  The first is just 23 

a quick update on the SBRM lawsuit, provide some insight 24 
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and preview of the work that's being done as part of Part 1 

2 of the three-year report, which is largely an 2 

analytical exercise, and then a compliment to that, a 3 

set of recommendations or changes to the SBRM. 4 

   So the first topic, of course, is the 5 

SBRM lawsuit.  The U.S. Court of Appeals on July 19th, 6 

found that the Agency had not established a lawful 7 

standardized bycatch reporting methodology because it 8 

still had discretion in allocated observers at a level 9 

that was less than the minimum needed to achieve a 30 10 

percent CV.  And in particular it found fault with the 11 

use of the external constraints, such as budget 12 

shortfall as justification.  Then (inaudible) sent 13 

back to the U.S. Court of Appeals, which was the original 14 

court that examined the lawsuit for Oceanna, and it was 15 

ordered that the amendment be vacated.  And it was 16 

further ordered that be remanded to the National 17 

Fisheries Management Service for further proceedings 18 

(inaudible) Court of Appeals.  I'm not a lawyer, and I 19 

will not go on to prove that by commenting on what these 20 

actually mean. 21 

   These topics will have a prominent place 22 

in the NRCC meeting next week on October 20th.  We are, 23 

of course, looking to find out who the National 24 
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Fisheries Management Service is, so -- (inaudible) -- 1 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  2 

Okay, Paul.  The feedback seems to be getting worse, so 3 

let's try our backup here. 4 

   PAUL REGO:  Okay.  You want to call me 5 

on my cell phone? 6 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Yes. 7 

   PAUL REGO:  Okay.  Are we going to tape 8 

the cell phones together? 9 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Yeah. 10 

   PAUL REGO:  -- National Marine 11 

Fisheries Management Services. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 13 

don't know, but I'm glad it's their job and not ours to 14 

take care of. 15 

   PAUL REGO:  Okay.  So Plan B.  I'm 16 

going to have to turn off -- 17 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Yeah.  You cannot be on 18 

speakerphone. 19 

   PAUL REGO:  Okay.  So I'm not on 20 

speakerphone now.  Okay.   21 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Go ahead. 22 

   PAUL REGO:  Okay.  Great.  Okay.  So 23 

the three-year report was mandated with the original 24 
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SBRM, and it said that the Science Center and the 1 

regional director will work together with the councils 2 

to perform a review of available data on discards and 3 

prepare an assessment of the three-year report for that 4 

region. 5 

  And we have already prepared a report which 6 

summarizes the major data summary with the (inaudible) 7 

report to the Council in April.  Just by way of 8 

reminder, I wanted to (inaudible) that let the SBRM be 9 

(inaudible).  These are the years which they were 10 

presented to the Council (inaudible) period in January 11 

(inaudible) results. 12 

   So the January 2009 report to the 13 

Council used data in 2008 and similarly 2010- 14 

'11.  So these reflect data that are basically offset 15 

by about six months from the time in which the 16 

presentation to the Council was actually made and that 17 

these data are used in the following April.  So there's 18 

that period in which the Council was informed of the 19 

(inaudible) followed by a comment period and a 20 

reprioritization. 21 

   So the first part of this report is a 22 

(inaudible) stock which you have a listing up like by 23 

another indication of the document.  But in that 24 
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document, I have a summary of -- a summary of encounters 1 

by various species, fleet and then some measures of 2 

precision of each of the discard rates and then finally 3 

estimates of total again based on those SBRM years, 4 

which are from July of year --  June of T plus one. 5 

   This was data that was previously 6 

presented to you, but it has some salient features which 7 

I think are important for consideration of any type of 8 

SBRM whether it's this form or evolves into some other 9 

form. 10 

   But essentially you have a 11 

responsiveness in terms of number of fleets.  The 12 

numbers of fleets originally were identified as 44 total 13 

fleets, and they increased to 52 in 2011.  Fleets with 14 

pilot coverage increased over time. 15 

   And the estimate of the baseline sea 16 

days that is used for every single cell, every single 17 

species and add 30 percent on those quantifies, you'd 18 

have in the neighborhood of 55,000 days at sea.  That 19 

number is reduced by considering the relative magnitude 20 

of the mortality associated with those discards.  In 21 

each instance it reduces it by about 75 percent, from 22 

54,000 to 15,000; 51,000 to 14,000, and 53,000 in 2011 23 

to 19,000. 24 
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   That is based on what we call a filtering 1 

process which takes into account magnitude of the 2 

importance of fatal mortality associated with an event 3 

and then (inaudible) it to eliminate the tracking of 4 

what I call ghosts, that is small imprecisely measured 5 

quantities. 6 

   Now, the funded sea days is the 7 

constraint, and that constraint has several different 8 

(inaudible).  One is its totality, the total number of 9 

days that are available. 10 

   The second is the constraint in terms of 11 

its functions in congressional language, and in 12 

particular part of it was intended for (inaudible) New 13 

England groundfish.  So there are various forms of 14 

pitfalls that arise from this. 15 

   And then the final funded day have 16 

additional variability.  You can see that the number of 17 

fleets sea day coverage has nearly doubled from 732, and 18 

over the course of this period, the responsiveness which 19 

was built into the SBRM allowed it after changing the 20 

(inaudible) from what's driven by (inaudible) 21 

variability of the estimates and by the intentions of 22 

the Council to direct coverage to different weeks.  So 23 

the second part of this is the evaluation fraction of 24 
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the report.  And since then we've formed a fisheries 1 

management action team.  There have been five monthly 2 

roughly FMAT meetings in May and September. 3 

   And the FMAT consists of Science Center 4 

staff, NERO staff, regional office representatives from 5 

both New England and the Mid-Atlantic Council, and then 6 

the Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission.  And 7 

I want to thank all of the participants on that. 8 

   These presentations can be dull, but I 9 

assure you that the FMAT is (inaudible) in many ways in 10 

terms of addressing many of these topics.  Part 2, which 11 

is in progress -- I'll be presenting some of the 12 

highlights of the report -- that has a summarization of 13 

the discard reasons. 14 

   It looks at the effectiveness of 15 

(inaudible) meeting but the performance standard, the 16 

30 percent CV applied to the species within a fisheries 17 

management plan.  There is a review of the SBRM methods. 18 

   We also looked at and a critically 19 

important aspect of all of this which is the assessment 20 

and sources of bias in measures of accuracy.  Now, this 21 

is a very challenging type of statistical problem, which 22 

I hope you'll appreciate as we go along here.  But I 23 

think the stage has been set by Jason's work in the 24 
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previous presentation on the work he did yesterday just 1 

to see the types of challenges associated with dealing 2 

with some of these more complex issues, particularly the 3 

species which are not part of the SBRM at this point, 4 

that is the original amendment only was restricted to 5 

federally managed fisheries. 6 

   So and then finally a few 7 

recommendations.  So one of the key parts of any kind 8 

of management evaluation is to know why the regulates 9 

or why the discarding is occurring.  And they really 10 

kind of fall into two basic categories.  They're 11 

economic or regulatory. 12 

   And for all of the discards we've 13 

associated with over the three-year period, the 14 

analysis we looked at a number of qualities or reasons.  15 

And these are generally supplied by the (inaudible) in 16 

terms of what the rates are for the discarding. 17 

   Under the primary one, the market, 18 

whether the poor quality of fish, whether (inaudible) 19 

or have otherwise been hit by sand fleas or something 20 

like that. 21 

   And then there are a variety of 22 

regulatory measures:  It's too small, whether it's over 23 

the quota, maybe some other restriction on it in terms 24 
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of coverage.  But I think this table provides kind of 1 

a broad brush summary.  We have very detailed tables 2 

related to each species group and for many of the 3 

individual species. 4 

   But I think an important take-home 5 

message on this is that 80 percent of the SBRM species 6 

groups are attributed to no market.  That simply means 7 

that there was no place to sell this or it wasn't 8 

economically feasible to do so. 9 

   Only 15 percent were due to regulations.  10 

And then about 5 percent were split between poor quality 11 

and other factors there.  And you can see also from this 12 

table that the overall percentage is on the order of 13 

about 80 percent each year. 14 

   So that did not vary, nor did the 15 

influence of regulations.  There was a spike uptake 16 

from 14 percent in 2009 and 2010 to about 16 percent for 17 

the 2011 value there.  So there's really not a big 18 

influence of regulations in terms of these. 19 

   And the other thing is that in terms of 20 

total estimated discards, total estimated discard 21 

hasn't taken into account whether they're alive or dead, 22 

nor does it take into account it's in live weight, but 23 

there's about a 28 percent decline from 7500 to 5400 in 24 
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terms of total tons discarded, which is I think 1 

excellent, I mean good indication that the resource is 2 

being used more properly or efficiently.  And also it's 3 

important to note that about 68 percent of that 4 

aggregate total discards are skate discards at this 5 

point.  And recent changes in state management should 6 

help reduce that quantity even further.  So I think that 7 

the trend as short term as it is, is useful. 8 

   Another important aspect to consider is 9 

how are we meeting the performance standard.  In the 10 

previous slide, you've got some overview of the change 11 

in the total discards that arise based on the grand total 12 

if you've covered everything, and then the filtered 13 

total if you covered everything that was important. 14 

   And that is an important -- not to be 15 

redundant -- that is a critical feature of SBRM.  There 16 

is a reduction in the numbers of days needed because they 17 

are unimportant. 18 

   And central to that premise is an 19 

ability to quantify the total removals, that is removals 20 

from the count for landings and (inaudible) through 21 

discards. 22 

   And one of the major advantages of this 23 

type of approach is that it does look at the totality 24 
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of removals across all fleets and all species.  So it 1 

does give you an objective measure of filtering out the 2 

information and so forth.  And so there are certainly 3 

some cells where there was no coverage, and so those 4 

constitute largely in lobster pot fisheries where 5 

there's not much federal presence.  But the real core 6 

we want to examine is the net, the net for fisheries and 7 

fleets that are important. 8 

   In the next slide, there's kind of a 9 

quick overview of that.  So the species groups are 10 

listed on the first column, and then there are two sets 11 

of columns, parallelized columns here, one in which the 12 

coefficient of variation of the total discards of those 13 

species groups are less than 30 percent, and then those 14 

that are greater than 30 percent. 15 

   And then these are also further 16 

subdivided by whether the vessels originate from ports 17 

in New England versus originating from ports in the 18 

Mid-Atlantic. 19 

   You can quickly run down and kind of see 20 

that within New England the CV target is generally met.  21 

Certainly, for monkfish it's met in every instance in 22 

90 percent of trips in which groundfish were important 23 

as discards, 90 percent, 9 versus 1 here.  And then 24 
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finally spiny dogfish is met very well in terms of the 1 

CV.  In terms of New England, 13 out of 18, that is 13 2 

versus 5.  And then the other one where it's met in 3 

reasonably good overall is monkfish again.  So you can 4 

see that there are some areas where the fishery 5 

coefficient of variation tends to be slightly higher 6 

than desirable, and it's greater than 30 percent, and 7 

most of those are in the Mid-Atlantic. 8 

   Overall, about 75 percent of the vessels 9 

limit originating from New England ports have the 10 

coefficient of variation less than 30 percent, about 59 11 

percent of those vessels.  So that's 31 are over 53, and 12 

then 58 over the sum of 76 -- 77 -- excuse me -- there. 13 

   So there's a fairly high percentage 14 

attainment of the CV for those that are important, but 15 

not in all instances.  So, of course, this is indicative 16 

of the nature of the beast in some ways.  You can't 17 

always achieve it, even though you want to project that 18 

your coverage rate is sufficient to meet the target in 19 

the following year. 20 

   And it really brings up an important 21 

point about SBRM, about any sampling methodology that 22 

is attempting to allocate samples in some future time 23 

frame based on what you have in the current time frame. 24 
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   And the critical part of that is that you 1 

have to use the estimate of variance from the total 2 

discards in one year to forecast what you'll need in the 3 

next year.  And that makes an occasionally strong 4 

assumption that the fishing behavior is going to persist 5 

at least over a one-year period.  Now, that can be 6 

refuted in instances where there are major changes in 7 

fishery management policy which result in a change in 8 

fishing behavior. 9 

   And then you also want to compare these 10 

measures of precision across years, and that provides 11 

you with a way of going back and forth between the two 12 

here. 13 

   So, in the next slide here, what we're 14 

looking at are variance in one year matched up with the 15 

variance in the subsequent year.  And so for a set of 16 

fleets each point represents a set of fleets and 17 

species. 18 

   And as you look across years, what you'd 19 

like to see is that the measure of variance in one year 20 

is closely associated with the measure of variance that 21 

you see in a subsequent year.  And this graph 22 

demonstrates in general that there is a strong 23 

association between the two years. 24 
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   So this is really kind of a hopeful or 1 

impressive in terms of the estimates do seem to be stable 2 

in at least over a one-year period and perhaps a two-year 3 

period.  This graph in the lower left is looking at the 4 

variance in 2009 compared to the variance in the 2011 5 

report and again showing a reasonably good correlation.  6 

So it's saying that you can use the previous year's 7 

estimates as a way of moving forward to the next year.  8 

The coefficient of variation of the total estimate also 9 

has to have that property.  So this is influenced by the 10 

magnitude of the discards and the relationship between 11 

the precision and the magnitude of the discards. 12 

   And, again, for stocks which have high 13 

CVs in one year tends to have a high CV in the following 14 

year and visa versa.  So this is one of the kind of 15 

critical bases for the SBRM or any discard allocation 16 

program. 17 

   Now, the other problem is an issue in all 18 

monitoring programs:  is there Heisenberg effect?  Is 19 

there some influence or major influence of the presence 20 

of the observer which compromises the integrity of the 21 

resulting data? 22 

   So there are several ways of addressing 23 

this, and it really is it boils down to comparing 24 
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quantities on the observed and the unobserved fleets. 1 

   So, in this instance, what you have to 2 

compare are only a few metrics.  One is the average 3 

number of pounds kept by species group for the observed 4 

and unobserved trips.  So, if you were, say, observing 5 

a set of trips for a given species and the observed trip 6 

always came in with one-half the catch of the unobserved 7 

trip, you'd say that something is going on.  It's 8 

similar to what a credit card company might do in terms 9 

of comparing whether or not the parent or the teenager 10 

has the credit card that day in terms of a suite of 11 

products that they happen to select at the supermarket.  12 

If it's all Cheetos and nachos, it's probably the 13 

teenager; if it's (inaudible) and yogurt, it's probably 14 

the parents.  So that's one simple comparison. 15 

   And then we also can look at another 16 

feature which is the trip duration.  So are the observed 17 

trips going out longer or shorter than the unobserved 18 

trips?  And for the comparisons, we did a pretty 19 

extensive -- and my colleagues Susan Rigley and Jessica 20 

Blalock did these analyses.  We're able to look at 21 

comparisons. 22 

  So this is for fluke, scup and sea bass, and 23 

this on the unobserved trips on the X axis.  So this is 24 
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what the average catch rate is for the unobserved trips 1 

by fleet, and then for the observed trips are on the Y 2 

axis. 3 

   And so the one-to-one line is shown by 4 

the intersections of the various points there.  And for 5 

the most part, you can see that there is a very strong 6 

degree of coherence between the two estimates. 7 

   Now, there are three ellipsis on there, 8 

and those correspond to the various years.  So that 9 

across years there generally was a very strong 10 

association.  Now, there is some spread in here, of 11 

course, and you can see some outliners on those, and 12 

those will be highlighted in the final report.  But in 13 

terms of the big picture, there is not much departure. 14 

   And you can see that the progression 15 

lines that go through the cluster points shown by the 16 

straight lines do tend to line up pretty well with the 17 

one-to-one line.  So we feel that there is a good degree 18 

of coherence in terms of pounds.  This is for fluke, 19 

scup and sea bass. 20 

   Taking a large mesh groundfish in New 21 

England example, again, there's typically maybe a 22 

slightly higher average kept pounds in the observed 23 

versus the unobserved but a great degree of coherence 24 
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across fleets and then again over time, so between 1 

years. 2 

   If we look at the difference between the 3 

trips, that is we take on the X axis you have the 4 

unobserved average kept pounds and then the observed 5 

average pounds, that is for any given fleet you sum up 6 

the two, divide the average and take the difference of 7 

those two averages for observed and unobserved and look 8 

over the entire set there, it's highly skewed -- 9 

electocurtonic in the highly peaked, and it suggests 10 

that there's very little variation around that.  11 

There's a difference on there of about a thousand pounds 12 

either way on that.  But most of the mass, the 13 

probability mass, is right in the center and centered 14 

on zero.  So this is for fluke, scup and sea bass. 15 

   For large mesh groundfish, there does 16 

seem to be a difference here.  The observed trip is 17 

picking up a little more catch than you would pick up 18 

on the unobserved trip there, and that's shown by this 19 

long tail here. 20 

   There may be -- some of this may be 21 

associated with coverage rates in the U. S.-Canada 22 

special access programs there.  So they account for 23 

some of the differences in those averages.  But in 24 
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general they seem to be centered on zero, and they are 1 

not too skewed. 2 

   The other critical issue here is looking 3 

at the trip duration.  Are we seeing short trips or long 4 

trips associated with a particular fleet when the 5 

observer is on board? 6 

   And although there's a great deal of 7 

scatter in this plot, the overall trend in terms of trip 8 

duration seems to be about the same whether the observer 9 

is on board or not.  In terms of the difference between 10 

those quantities that are show on the right here, the 11 

histogram plot, again you see a little bit of skewing, 12 

and that is also suggesting that the observed trips are 13 

a little longer, which means that the reflective of 14 

trips that there are a higher frequency of trips going 15 

out to Georges Bank as part of the groundfish fleet.  So 16 

under the system, under the management system, in which 17 

these observations were made -- and almost all of these 18 

observations, with the exception of two months in 2010, 19 

are not yet part of any sector implementation.  So that 20 

is the important caveat in terms of this set of 21 

observations. 22 

   So the importance of low precision 23 

estimates, why is this relevant to management or the 24 
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stock assessments and so forth?  In the FMAT we 1 

discussed a number of these issues, and I thank Rick 2 

Seagrave for summarizing this information here. 3 

   But it's essentially if we have 4 

decreased precision in the discard estimates, it 5 

manifests itself in terms of overall uncertainty in the 6 

stock assessment. 7 

   In the Mid-Atlantic, the stock 8 

assessments are qualified into four tiers, one through 9 

four, or as I refer to them:  A, B, C or D.  And when 10 

the uncertainty in the stock assessment, and one 11 

component of that being the discard uncertainty, it 12 

typically pushes it into a higher numbered year and, 13 

therefore, requiring a greater degree of buffering 14 

between the OFL and the ABC.  And so ultimately that 15 

will impede the Council's ability to achieve optimal 16 

yield because you would like to work with an ABC that's 17 

closer to the overfishing level and therefore able to 18 

achieve more yield out of a resource. 19 

   And then the other thing is that to the 20 

extent that we're interested in determining whether 21 

management measures are effective in terms of reducing 22 

discards and resulting in the sound use of the resource, 23 

imprecise measures of discards can reduce that ability. 24 
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   So, when we consider some of the changes 1 

for future SMBRMs or its next evolutionary state after 2 

SBRM, we did describe in Part 1 of our report that we 3 

had entered seven new fleets were considered, and these 4 

were important fleets for management purposes. 5 

   One, of course, was the Ruhle trawl, 6 

which is an important innovation.  But if we are to 7 

fully understand its implications, it's necessary not 8 

only to incorporate it as a separate fleet, but also to 9 

monitor it over time. 10 

   And I think that's something, it needs 11 

to be built into any future bycatch reporting 12 

methodology because you do not want to have old data 13 

driving the allocation of valuable federal and industry 14 

funds.  In the future we're recommending that we 15 

eliminate the unlikely filter, that is in the initial 16 

stages of this thing as a start-up condition we 17 

eliminated stocks or discard events as being unlikely 18 

because of a priority knowledge.  Now we have 19 

considerable real knowledge to update information. 20 

   We don't really need to make sure that 21 

we exclude scallops in the gillnet fishery because we 22 

know from three years of intensive observations that 23 

those are not only rare events, but unimportant events 24 
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in terms of overall management of the scallop resource. 1 

   We hope to review the issue of pilot 2 

coverage levels.  We have some information there that 3 

should help in that regard in terms of whether there is 4 

an appropriate level for initiating new fishery 5 

management measures. 6 

   In terms of estimates of turtles and 7 

other protected species, these are rare events, and the 8 

methodology used within the SBRM do need or can be 9 

updated to use methods that can perhaps improve the 10 

discard estimation for those. 11 

   And then a big issue and one that I know 12 

was a subject of your debate, discussions yesterday and 13 

today is what do we do about additional species.  There 14 

are a lot of species that are not in the SBRM right now 15 

and do not influence the observer allocation, so 16 

turtles, sturgeons, river herring, striped bass, the 17 

cod, weakfish.  All of these species are not part of the 18 

allocation process.  They are, of course, monitored.  19 

They are not part of the decision making or the 20 

allocation process. 21 

   So that will be an important 22 

consideration for the councils as we consider the 23 

implications of being remanded back to the National 24 
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Fisheries Management Service. 1 

   One of the conclusions of the FMAT 2 

that's very important is that we will require that 3 

flexibility in terms of modifying fleet coverage rates 4 

without needing frameworks or amendments especially 5 

when it comes to adding or deleting fleets. 6 

   We talked about the annual report, that 7 

as a value-added product it would be much better to have 8 

some measure of total discards rather than discard 9 

rates, and so we have a whole list of improvements there. 10 

   One of the issues that we spent a lot of 11 

time on with no clear resolution was the synchronization 12 

of information requirements for all the FMPs. 13 

   There are at least six different fishing 14 

years defined as the starting point of the calendar 15 

month across the fishery management plans.  And, of 16 

course, this has to dovetail with the fiscal year, the 17 

delivery of money within a fiscal year, and then the 18 

observer coverage year which is really kind of 19 

synchronized to when the money is available for 20 

allocation.  That is April. 21 

   So, unless all of those are in one phase, 22 

which I think is a gigantic undertaking, it's not going 23 

to be possible to synchronize it.  So there will be some 24 
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issues.  And then the overall constraints on funding 1 

will be resolved.  That will be at a very high policy 2 

level when that issue is discussed. 3 

   There are some overarching issues that 4 

I think need to be front and center in everybody's mind 5 

as part of this.  First and foremost is the 6 

comprehensive treatment of observer allocation is the 7 

essential first step in monitoring the efficacy of 8 

fisheries management. 9 

   You need to have an unbiased selection 10 

of observers.  You need to demonstrate that there is not 11 

an observer effect influencing the voracity, the 12 

utility of that information, and then you need to 13 

allocate on the basis of observable properties of the 14 

fleet. 15 

   So there are major transitions underway 16 

in terms of use of future notification which has 17 

correspondingly major implications for the allocation 18 

process.  One of the biggest issues is we need to be 19 

specific about the coefficient of variation, and we 20 

should always ask 30 percent of what, 20 percent of what.  21 

It's a quantity which has a numerator and a denominator, 22 

and both of them are important.  And loosely referring 23 

to one or the other is not particularly helpful in terms 24 
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of discussions. 1 

   A theme I think that resonates in any 2 

business across ecosystems fisheries management is that 3 

there will always be trade-offs.  Any time we have 4 

increased emphasis on one species, one region, or one 5 

subgroup of vessels, it's going to come at the expense 6 

of reduced coverage for something else, that we cannot 7 

-- you know, do these exercises in isolation. 8 

   So there are ways of handling these 9 

things objectively or not, but -- you know, at the end 10 

either the industry, consumers, or taxpayers must pay 11 

for increased coverage.  So there is some balance in 12 

there of the willingness to pay profit margins and 13 

taxpayer largess to allow this to occur. 14 

   It goes without saying that the 15 

objectives of the Mid-Atlantic have implications for 16 

the New England Council and visa versa.  And then 17 

finally I have another overarching issue is it's not 18 

just the precision of the discards; it's the (inaudible) 19 

sources of importance.  So when you're defining these 20 

precision targets and coverage rates you need to factor 21 

those in.  So what should the next evolutionary state 22 

of SBRM look like after the remand?  And one is that can 23 

-- and these are issues that the Council will have to 24 
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address in terms of its decision making process, 1 

management requirements, and mandate. 2 

   Can we hand delete fleets as the needs 3 

arise?  Can traditional species serve as a basis for 4 

allocating observers?  Do we include nonfederally 5 

managed species as part of this mix, and if so how?  Do 6 

we need a precision target of 30 percent for each 7 

species, for each stock, for each sector, for each year 8 

within each sector for each stock within gear and so on 9 

and so forth? 10 

   This is what I mean when you say 30 11 

percent:  30 percent of what?  And then finally a 12 

couple more points here, and I'll make this short.  Can 13 

we combine other cost efficient measures for combining 14 

port sampling with at-sea sampling or other approaches 15 

to reduce the monitoring costs?  How do we handle 16 

protected species, particularly species without 17 

estimates of total stock size? 18 

   So this is directly related to the 19 

issues of river herring.  It's also related to sturgeon 20 

or turtles and so forth.  You know, when I eluded to the 21 

issue of sector influence, the more general problem or 22 

issue is one of ACLs and accountability measures and how 23 

are -- do they influence the liability or the bias of 24 
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the observer discard rates.  And then ultimately if the 1 

system is responsive and is -- you know, moving along 2 

with the changes in the fishery, it also means that the 3 

coming demands will be similarly labile and require an 4 

ability to respond to those types of changes. 5 

   And so figuring out how to do that is 6 

going to be particularly difficult.  So you'll be happy 7 

to know that's my last slide.  And so if there are 8 

questions that I can answer, I'll try to do so now.  So 9 

thank you very much. 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  11 

Thank you, Paul.  And it's my understanding that we will 12 

be having some discussion at the NRCC, at the upcoming 13 

meeting of that committee, so that we can discuss the 14 

implications of the outcome of that lawsuit for the 15 

program and where at least the Agency might go from there 16 

and what the response might be. 17 

   PAUL REGO:  Right.  Right. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 19 

think frankly the biggest problem we've had with the 20 

program within our Council has been the fact that the 21 

resources are so constraining that there's not the 22 

freedom to really achieve the allocative objectives. 23 

   In other words, the New England 24 
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groundfish monitoring takes up a large share of the 1 

resources, and that's prevented us from achieving 2 

acceptable levels of coverage in our highest volume 3 

fisheries.  So I think the only way out of that 4 

ultimately is with some sort of legislative fix.  But 5 

the process is heavily constrained relative to the 6 

allocations because of those factors. 7 

   PAUL REGO:  I'm getting a lot of 8 

feedback and having trouble hearing. 9 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Okay, Paul.  I'll relay 10 

any questions to you, since we're getting feedback. 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Are 12 

there questions for Paul about the SBRM program and 13 

update?  Yes.  Jim. 14 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  Jason, I have two 15 

comments for Paul.  One is that I was kind of surprised 16 

that the main category for attributing discards was no 17 

market. 18 

   I was expecting just based on 19 

conversations that regulations would have played a 20 

higher percentage.  So it's a perception issue that 21 

differs from what the data say. 22 

   And the other thing has to do with the 23 

observer effect.  In some places people say that you 24 
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need to have a hundred percent observer coverage in 1 

order not to get an observer effect.  And we're far from 2 

that.  And the data that he showed indicated that there 3 

really wasn't much of a measurable observer effect.  So 4 

I guess that's an interesting thing in terms of 5 

allocation.  It suggests that we're doing okay with way 6 

less than a hundred percent. 7 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Jim Weinberg just had a 8 

couple comments but no questions. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  10 

Other questions or comments for Paul?  Are there any 11 

comments from the public or questions regarding the 12 

presentation?  Well, Paul, thank you very much.  And 13 

we'll look forward to following up on this issue at the 14 

NRCC, and we'll go from there. 15 

   JASON DIDDEN:  Thanks, Paul. 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  17 

Peter. 18 

   PETER deFUR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  19 

I have a question for the Council that's independent of 20 

Paul; although it addresses some of the questions that 21 

he raised about if we want to do -- take some of the 22 

suggestions that he made or address some of those 23 

questions he raised, such as adding a fleet or 24 
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additional species.  What's the mechanism for that?  1 

What would we have to do, if anything? 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  As I 3 

understand it, during the allocative process when the 4 

SBRM allocations are made, we would have to make a 5 

specific request to include.  For example, if you 6 

wanted to include a species that's not in the mix right 7 

now, we'd have to make that as an explicit request.  The 8 

flexibility of the program is limited, again, because 9 

of those different constraints.  I mean a large portion 10 

of them are directed to New England groundfish.  11 

Whether they're needed or not that's where they have to 12 

be directed. 13 

   So the process is constrained, but we 14 

can always make a request to add a species to the mix 15 

if we wanted to do that during the annual process of 16 

allocating the at-sea observer days. 17 

   Any other questions right now?  We're 18 

running an hour ahead of schedule, and so I've asked if 19 

Pres Pate could consider giving the report out from the 20 

RSA Committee and see if we can make up some time. 21 

   And Rich staffed that yesterday.  The 22 

RSA Committee went through a fairly lengthy discussion 23 

about the program and looking to make significant 24 
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changes to it, so they have a number of recommendations 1 

for us to consider as a council. 2 

 _________________________ 3 

 RSA PROGRAM REVIEW REPORT 4 

   PRESTON PATE:  -- at the meeting, that 5 

made in September would create some improvements in the 6 

program that have been lingering for a long time.  The 7 

less included alternatives which would affect both the 8 

scientific and administrative aspects of the program 9 

and went from no action in the program to who would 10 

administer the program to whether there would be a third 11 

party involved and whether we wanted to maintain the 12 

program at all.  We started from the premise that 13 

there's support for the program and elimination of the 14 

RSA effort by the Council is primary to its mission and 15 

we would maintain it at not all cost, but considerable 16 

cost for the future. 17 

   Before I go any further, I know that 18 

there were some comments by Earl Meredith who 19 

administers the RSA program for both the Northeast 20 

Council and the Mid-Atlantic Council and (inaudible) 21 

that had about the program.  Rich -- 22 

   RICHARD SEAGRAVES:  Yeah.  Sure, Pres.  23 

Thanks.  I'll just note for the Council's information, 24 
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the information that we talked about yesterday is behind 1 

Tab 1. 2 

   And as Pres has already indicated, we 3 

had bit of a healthy discussion.  Staff wrote a strawman 4 

document that has a number of scientific and 5 

administrative recommendations as well as some overall 6 

recommendations and flavor options for the Council to 7 

consider. 8 

   As Pres said, we went through those 9 

yesterday.  We actually had a working group that we 10 

formed that has met twice.  And our latest meeting was 11 

a conference call on September 20th.  And the 12 

information that is behind that conference call summary 13 

is what was the topic of discussion.  And based on the 14 

outcome of yesterday's discussion, we had motions 15 

relative to the recommendations that staff had put 16 

forward as a strawman to get the ball rolling.  But 17 

before -- and Pres is going to go through those. 18 

   But before we get into that, there is one 19 

point of clarification that was my misinterpretation, 20 

was that the grants process can handle multi-year grant 21 

awards. 22 

   The problem exists with the Council's 23 

annual specifications of RSA amounts, which limits 24 
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obviously anybody from applying for a multi-year -- I 1 

don't know that it necessarily limits them -- but has 2 

discouraged anybody from trying for multi-year 3 

specifications. 4 

   So that was my error, and I'd like to for 5 

the record clarify that.  Earl brought that to my 6 

attention this morning.  So the issue is not with grants 7 

per se.  It's with the annual specification of RSA 8 

amounts. 9 

   Also, Earl had commented that they 10 

generally favored the -- as you'll hear, one of the 11 

things the Committee did agree on yesterday was they're 12 

very much in favor of involving the SSC in the process 13 

of evaluation especially in the technical stage of 14 

evaluating RSA proposals.  The current process 15 

utilizes the Council staffs from the Mid-Atlantic, New 16 

England areas, regional office staff as well as the 17 

Science Center staff.  And one of the key things that 18 

having been involved in this for a number of years -- 19 

the take-home message that I like to bring to the floor 20 

here is that technical review of some of these projects 21 

is beyond some of the technical capacity of the 22 

scientific talent, the people that we have to review the 23 

programs. 24 
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   And that was one of the reasons to 1 

recommend to have the SSC involved.  And they were very 2 

much in favor of that.  The Science Center is.  The 3 

other point that Earl raised is that they really feel 4 

that the RSA Committee needs to be more involved in the 5 

process throughout the year, rather than the current 6 

process where in August the RSA Committee meets, and we 7 

have a list of priorities that the Council votes on; and 8 

then based on that priority list, it's published, and 9 

we consider the proposals that come in at that stage. 10 

   So I think they're advocating more 11 

involvement of the RSA Committee throughout the year, 12 

and they point to the scallop RSA model as a successful 13 

model. 14 

   Part of the success of the RSA for 15 

scallops evolves from the fact that it's a very valuable 16 

resource and creates a lot of revenue.  And so that's 17 

not necessarily the case for all the species for which 18 

we are specifying RSA amounts.  But they do have 19 

involvement of the fishing industry and their committee 20 

throughout the year and throughout the process, so Earl 21 

wanted to point that out.  And he also mentioned the 22 

idea that we get fishermen involved at the RSA Committee 23 

level. 24 
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   Obviously, fishermen can't be on the 1 

committee, but one thing we might want to consider based 2 

on Earl's suggestion, the thing that comes to my mind 3 

is perhaps having a set of advisors, an advisory panel 4 

for the RSA. 5 

   So they were some things that Earl 6 

brought up to me I wanted to get out on the floor before 7 

as a backdrop when Pres presents the results of the 8 

Committee meeting. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  10 

Thanks, Rich.  Go ahead, Pres. 11 

   PRESTON PATE:  Thank you, Rich.  The 12 

first set of motions that were included in the package 13 

dealt with the scientific, the SSC involvement in the 14 

program -- put that up, please -- and included three 15 

points:  make the SSC chair and vice chair members of 16 

the RSA, develop a protocol for the review of the RSA 17 

proposals and completed reports should be conducted by 18 

the SSC, create an SSC research committee to oversee 19 

development of MAFMC research plan which outlines the 20 

research information made along with formal plan of 21 

action to address the needs identified based on 22 

participation developed jointly during the RSA program.  23 

This motion was approved by unanimous consent of the 24 
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Committee.  And, Mr. Chairman, I put that before the 1 

Council for approval. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  3 

Thank you, Pres.  Just two points I would raise.  I went 4 

back and reviewed our SOPS after that motion was made, 5 

and our SOPS limit our members on committees to either 6 

voting or nonvoting members of the Council. 7 

   However, what we've done on a case, for 8 

example, for the Visioning Committee where we sought to 9 

have participation by the ASMFC and also by the SSC, we 10 

put an SSC member on and several ASMFC members on but 11 

essentially as liaisons to the Committee.  Then we 12 

worked by consent rather than voting. 13 

   I would suggest just for clarification 14 

-- and I totally support the idea of integrating the SCC 15 

in this process.  I think it will strengthen it and make 16 

for a more robust evaluation of projects and proposals 17 

and also better relate more broadly our research 18 

priorities into this program. 19 

   So I think there's a lot of value in 20 

doing that.  I will just point out that there would be 21 

liaisons to the Committee.  And, again, just 22 

clarification relative to our SOPS.  And so I would 23 

support that.  But to Rich's point about including the 24 
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advisors, I think it is fair to say that that has had 1 

a significant impact on the success of the scallop RSA 2 

proposals and the way they're structured. 3 

   So I don't know if you want to consider 4 

also perhaps a separate motion whereby we would consider 5 

establishing an advisory panel for the RSA Committee or 6 

otherwise perhaps tapping ultimately the chairs of our 7 

APs to participate in this process.  But I think there 8 

would be some benefit in that. 9 

   But I would just offer the clarification 10 

of this motion that there would be liaisons from the SSC 11 

to the Committee. 12 

   PRESTON PATE:  Okay. Well, let's 13 

consider that a separate motion and go forward with 14 

completion of this action. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

Thank you.  So, with that perfection, is the Council 17 

ready for the question?  Or is there any further 18 

discussion on the motion? 19 

   Is the Council ready for the question?     20 

 (Motion as voted.) 21 

 {On behalf of the RSA Committee, I move to accept 3 22 

 science recommendations by staff and pass along to 23 

 the Council for full action including: 24 
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 1. Make SSC Chair and Vice-Chair members of the RSA 1 

 Committee; 2 

 2. Develop protocol for technical review of RSA 3 

 proposals and completed reports to be conducted by 4 

 the SSC; and 5 

 3. Create SSC Research subcommittee to oversee 6 

 development of MAFMC Research Plan which outlines 7 

 the research/information need along with a formal 8 

 plan of action to address the needs identified 9 

 based on participation developed jointly with RSA 10 

 Committee.} 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 12 

in favor please raise your hand. 13 

 (Response.) 14 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 15 

like sign.   16 

 (No Response.) 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  18 

Abstentions like sign.   19 

 (No Response.) 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 21 

carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Pres. 22 

   PRESTON PATE:  Mr. Chairman, in light 23 

of what you just said, I'll make a motion on behalf of 24 
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the Commission that the RSA consider development of an 1 

advisory council for the RSA Committee.  That's enough. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  3 

Advisory panel. 4 

   PRESTON PATE:  Advisory council. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Second to the motion? 7 

   PETER deFUR:  Yeah. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  9 

Second by Peter deFur.  Discussion on the motion?  Is 10 

the Council ready for the question?     11 

 (Motion as voted.) 12 

 {Move that the RSA Committee consider developing an 13 

 Advisory Panel.}  14 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 15 

in favor please raise your hand.   16 

 (Response.) 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Opposed 18 

like sign.   19 

 (No Response.) 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  21 

Abstentions like sign.   22 

 (No Response.) 23 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 24 
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carries unanimously.  Thank you.  Pres. 1 

   PRESTON PATE:  Thank you, 2 

Mr. Chairman.  A lot of the points that were raised 3 

yesterday depend upon some legal interpretation that 4 

the Commission has to receive from the Attorney 5 

General's Office about what our authority is in this 6 

report. 7 

   And the first motion dealt with sending 8 

a letter to the RSA -- to Council asking for some 9 

clarification about what the RSA contractual or 10 

responsibilities are, that is to request an opinion from 11 

NOAA Fisheries on the viability of the Council operating 12 

the RSA Program under no-cost, contractual agreements 13 

or similar mechanisms, that the current RSA Program be 14 

moved from the current grants administration process to 15 

a contractual acquisition.  And I put that before the 16 

Commission as a motion. 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  18 

Thank you.  Discussion on the motion?  Is the Council 19 

ready for the question?     20 

 (Motion as voted.) 21 

 {Administrative Recommendation 1 - request legal 22 

 opinion from NOAA fisheries on the viability of the 23 

 Council operating the RSA Program under no cost 24 
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 contractual agreements or similar mechanisms and 1 

 that the current RSA program be moved from the 2 

 current grants administration process to a 3 

 contractual acquisition system.} 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Is there 5 

any objection to the motion?  Seeing none, it's 6 

approved by consent.  Thank you. 7 

   PRESTON PATE:  Thank you. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  One 9 

abstention.  Thank you. 10 

   PRESTON PATE:  The second agreement was 11 

to consider entering into a formal agreement with 12 

whatever agency we decide is appropriate for 13 

administering the program.  Right now with the 14 

Northeast Science Center we have no formal agreement in 15 

place to guide development of the research. 16 

   So, regardless of what changes are 17 

necessary to the program, we need to enter into a formal 18 

agreement.  So the RSA Program should enter into a 19 

formal agreement with an outside entity to settle the 20 

entire RSA quota through an auction mechanism with 21 

consideration for adjustment for fish kept during the 22 

research.  And I offer that as a motion from the 23 

Committee. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Thank you, Pres.  Discussion on the motion?  Laurie. 2 

   LAURIE NOLAN:  Thank you, 3 

Mr. Chairman.  I would think that we should hold off on 4 

those decisions based on what comes back from our advice 5 

on whether or not we can come away from the grants 6 

program or not and go down this road. 7 

   Are we not maybe putting the horse in 8 

front of the car by committing to doing this rather than 9 

waiting to see what the outcome is as to what we can do 10 

and what's possible? 11 

   PRESTON PATE:  We are, so to speak 12 

putting the cart before the horse in your analysis.  And 13 

the same applies to the third recommendation that I'll 14 

put up later on.  They relate to -- those two measures 15 

and the five or six -- the three or four that followed 16 

that were tabled until the next meeting depended upon 17 

not only some substantive discussion that has to take 18 

place, but resolution of whether or not we have the 19 

agreement of the Council or of the attorneys to pursue 20 

the action they are proposing. 21 

   And they relate to IFQs.  And all those 22 

that were at the program heard all there is to hear about 23 

that.  So this alternative and the next one that I'll 24 
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put up did fall into that category.  Let me ask Rich if 1 

we have any problem with delaying action on those two 2 

programs. 3 

   RICHARD SEAGRAVES:  No.  I think, as 4 

you say, we got to about the third or fourth 5 

administrative motion, and there was some question 6 

about don't we need to get a resolution on the legal 7 

opinion first. 8 

   And probably two and three would fall 9 

into the tabled category.  We're already tabling most 10 

of it until we get resolution on the first question, so 11 

I think it would be appropriate to table. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  13 

Peter. 14 

   PETER deFUR:  Would it be practical for 15 

us to put just the language in there to say depending 16 

upon the outcome of the legal inquiry, legal opinion, 17 

so that if we get that back in a timely manner before 18 

the next meeting, we can go ahead and start 19 

investigating these aspects of it?  I thinking about 20 

doing something a little bit more efficiently rather 21 

than holding up. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  23 

Again, I think if the whole initiative hinges upon that 24 
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legal advice, in light of the fact that we have several 1 

other areas that need some more development, it probably 2 

does make sense to table those until the next meeting 3 

if the Committee is agreeable to that. 4 

   PRESTON PATE:  Well, Mr. Chairman, 5 

given that then I recommend that we table Alternative 6 

Recommendation No. 2 and Alternative Recommendation No. 7 

3, which were passed by the Committee until the next 8 

meeting. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Is 10 

there a second to the motion to table?  Second by Laurie 11 

Nolan.  Is there a comment?  Rich. 12 

   RICHARD SEAGRAVES:  Well, I'll just 13 

note that I wouldn't want to have unrealistic 14 

expectations about being able to take action at the next 15 

meeting because I'm not sure we will quickly get the 16 

letter out, but sometimes the legal opinions take quite 17 

a bit longer than other parts of the process.  So it may 18 

not be the next meeting.  It would be when we get that 19 

interpretation. 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Fair 21 

enough.  We'll ask the opinion in a timely way and hope 22 

to have something we can act on.  Is the Council ready 23 

for the question on the motion to table?     24 
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 (Motion as voted.) 1 

 {Move to table Recommendation 2 and Recommendation 2 

 3.} 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Is there 4 

any objection to the motion?  Seeing none, it's 5 

approved by consent.  Thank you.  Pres. 6 

   PRESTON PATE:  Thank you, 7 

Mr. Chairman.  And unless the Council would like to hear 8 

the remaining hour and a half or two hours of debate that 9 

took place over the second recommendations, I'll say 10 

that my report it complete. 11 

   But let me say that we're making some 12 

improvements in the program.  They've been a long time 13 

developing, and we are taking the steps that are 14 

necessary to improve the RSA set-aside program. 15 

   I appreciate everybody's indulgence in 16 

it.  It's not going to happen overnight is what I'm 17 

saying.  And we are making progress with it.  That's my 18 

report. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

Thank you for the report, Pres, and for your hard work 21 

and the work of the Committee on this.  I would agree 22 

that you've made a lot of progress, and you've taken up 23 

a very comprehensive look on how to improve the program.  24 
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So I think this effort's going to be responsive to a lot 1 

of concerns we've heard from the public about the 2 

program and give us an opportunity to make substantive 3 

improvements to it.  And I appreciate all the efforts 4 

that you all have put into it so far.  We remain ahead 5 

of schedule, so I think we'll continue to try to take 6 

some committee reports and business reports in order to 7 

get back on schedule because we have the Amendment 17 8 

discussion scheduled for after lunch followed by spiny 9 

dogfish specifications.  So with that, I'll go ahead 10 

and ask George Darcy if he could give his report on 11 

behalf of the Northeast Regional Office. 12 

 _____________________________ 13 

 NMFS REGIONAL DIRECTOR REPORT 14 

   GEORGE DARCY:  Thank you, 15 

Mr. Chairman.  Congratulations on your Omnibus 16 

Amendment.  The rule was approved and will be effective 17 

October 31st.  The final rule was published on 18 

September 29th. 19 

   That was a monumental task for the 20 

Council and you met your deadline.  So thank you for 21 

that.  On vessel baseline regulations, I think we 22 

informed you before that we were considering looking at 23 

simplifying the regulations pertaining to the vessel 24 
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baseline regulations that were put in place several 1 

years ago. 2 

   And as a result we had published an 3 

advanced notice of proposed rule making on October 5th 4 

and started a 60-day comment period that closes December 5 

5th.  It's available on our website, and was mailed to 6 

all limited access permit holders in the Northeast 7 

Region.  This is just to make everybody aware that we 8 

are considering changes to that program.  And that will 9 

be a topic of discussion also at the NRCC meeting next 10 

week.  We also approved this council's Amendment 11 to 11 

the Mackerel, Squid, Butterfish Plan on September 30th, 12 

and a final rule to implement that amendment is under 13 

development at this time. 14 

   For tilefish, in accordance with your 15 

recommendation, we announced in the Federal Register 16 

published October 11th that the overall annual tilefish 17 

quota for the 2012 fishing year will remain the same as 18 

it was in fishing year 2011. 19 

   And on September 13th we announced that 20 

in the Federal Register the minimum size limit for 21 

Atlantic surfclams will be suspended for the 2012 22 

fishing year and that the quotas for the surfclam and 23 

ocean quahog fisheries for 2012 will remain status quo. 24 
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   On August 26th, we closed the Period 1 1 

spiny dogfish fishery because the quota had been 2 

attained for the first quota period which runs 3 

May 1st to October 31st.  The second period will begin 4 

on November 1st. 5 

   And let's see.  The cost recovery 6 

program for Atlantic sea scallops limited access 7 

general category fishery, the cost recovery fee period 8 

for 2011 ended on September 30th, and the cost recovery 9 

bills will be sent out on October 31st with payments due 10 

January 1st, 2012.   11 

   Under multispecies groundfish, 12 

although it's a New England FMP, you may be interested 13 

to know that we have undertaken a secretarial amendment 14 

for the small mesh multispecies, which are the red hake 15 

stocks and whiting and offshore hake. 16 

   We published an advanced notice of 17 

proposed rule making on September 19th.  This would 18 

implement annual catch limits and accountability 19 

measures for the small mesh multispecies fishery while 20 

the New England Council continues its completion of 21 

Amendment 19, which would put in place measures that 22 

would presumably supersede the secretarial. 23 

   We are in the process of holding public 24 
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meetings for that, and have held two in 1 

New York and New Jersey.  The remaining two will be in 2 

Gloucester and Narragansett, Rhode Island. 3 

   Under protected resources, on September 4 

16th, NOAA Fishery Service and Fish and Wildlife Service 5 

issued a final rule that listed nine distinct population 6 

segments, loggerhead sea turtles with four is 7 

threatened, and five is endangered under the Endangered 8 

Species Act.  The distinct population segment found in 9 

the U.S. Atlantic is listed as threatened.  It had 10 

previously been proposed to be listed as endangered.  I 11 

think you're aware that we have also been petitioned to 12 

list river herring as threatened under the Endangered 13 

Species Act by the Natural Resources Defense Council. 14 

   We're reviewing the petition now to see 15 

whether that petition may be warranted, and a 16 

90-day finding on the petition will be announced around 17 

early November. 18 

   Although it's not your FMP, you may be 19 

interested to know that we have also petitioned to list 20 

thorny skate as threatened or endangered under the ESA 21 

by the Animal Welfare Institute, and a 90-day finding 22 

on that petition is also expected in early November. 23 

   And we received another petition to list 24 
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thorny skate, barn door skate, winter skate, and smooth 1 

skate as threatened or endangered by the Wild Earth 2 

Guardians and Friends of Animals.  And on that one as 3 

well a 90-day finding on the petition will be completed 4 

around mid-November.  So that completes my report.  5 

Thank you. 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  7 

Thank you, George.  Can you go back to the baseline 8 

regulations because I thought that was still in the 9 

NRCC.  We made that request of the NRCC, and I thought 10 

they formed a working group that was going to report back 11 

to NRCC.  But it sounds like there's already an ANPR 12 

out. 13 

   GEORGE DARCY:  You're right, actually.  14 

Both is true.  We're going to have a white paper 15 

presented next week by my staff who has been working with 16 

staff in both the councils to present what some of the 17 

options might be. 18 

   But to get the public aware that this was 19 

out there and to get any comments they might have on 20 

whether they thought this was a good idea, a bad idea, 21 

which fisheries might or might not lend themselves to 22 

these changes, we put the ANPR out to just put everybody 23 

on notice that we're working towards that. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Okay.  Well, I'll look forward to the findings of the 2 

working group then when we meet at the NRCC.  Other 3 

questions for George based on his report?  Laurie. 4 

   LAURIE NOLAN:  Thank you.  George, on 5 

the general category scallop, did you say what the 6 

percentage was? 7 

   GEORGE DARCY:  No, I didn't because I 8 

don't have that final figure yet.  It's less than 9 

3 percent.  I think it's substantially less, but I'm not 10 

sure what the final number is.  11 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  12 

George, what was the status of the sturgeon listing? 13 

   GEORGE DARCY:  The final rule making 14 

the listing determination was originally expected out 15 

in October.  It's been delayed.  I don't know by how 16 

much.  I think at least a month.  But there were some 17 

coordination issues between the Northeast Region and 18 

the Southeast Region that needed to be worked out before 19 

that final rule could be published.  So it's still in 20 

the works. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  22 

Thank you.  And we'll obviously look forward to that 23 

result and outcome.  The Council weighed in with some 24 
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written comments, and I know many of the member states 1 

through their agencies also offered their respective 2 

perspectives on the issue.  Thanks a lot, George.  Any 3 

other questions for George before we move on?  Okay.  4 

Seeing none, I'll go to 5 

Dr. Weinberg. 6 

 __________________________ 7 

 NMFS NEFSC DIRECTOR REPORT 8 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  Thank you.  I'll 9 

review some survey activities and then talk about stock 10 

assessment.  For the clam fishery there was some 11 

cooperative work that was done with the clam industry.  12 

This is a follow-up to the survey that's done on the NOAA 13 

vessel, and it was done with the fishing vessel Pursuit. 14 

   And experiments were done in 15 

collaboration with scientists from the Center and 16 

scientists from Rutgers University to evaluate the 17 

catchability of the NOAA survey dredge.  And this 18 

information gets used in the stock assessment for 19 

surfclams and ocean quahogs.  For the Herring Acoustic 20 

Survey, the Delaware II is completing the last leg.  It 21 

will finish on October the 15th. 22 

   And in addition, in September there was 23 

joint work done on board the Delaware with scientists 24 
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from the Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution, and they 1 

had their research vessel Oceanus out there alongside 2 

of our vessel, and they were testing broadband 3 

acoustics. 4 

   Regarding the autumn bottom trawl 5 

survey, all stations south and west of the Great South 6 

Channel were completed by the 8th of October.  The 7 

survey is on track to be complete in 8 

mid-November. 9 

   And they're implementing a new version 10 

of electronic data acquisition.  And this will improve 11 

the ability on the survey to do length-based sampling, 12 

and it will ultimately increase the precision of the 13 

survey estimates. 14 

   Moving on to stock assessment 15 

activities.  In June of 2011, we had the 52nd SAW/SARC, 16 

and three winter flounder stocks underwent benchmark 17 

peer reviews at that time. 18 

   And we began also working on the New 19 

England groundfish in close collaboration with the 20 

groundfish PDT from New England to try to get basically 21 

the information that would be required for the biennial 22 

ACL updates for all of the New England groundfish.  And 23 

those analyses that were done during the spring and 24 
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summer didn't result in the information that everybody 1 

thought would be required to revise the ACLs. 2 

   So we have now inserted for this winter, 3 

January, February and March, an update of all of the New 4 

England groundfish stocks.  And this is in addition to 5 

the work that was already planned. 6 

   We typically do a SAW/SARC in the fall 7 

and one in the spring.  So now we have this what we're 8 

calling a GARMET or mini GARM inserted into the winter 9 

for the New England groundfish.  And that will require 10 

just about probably 80 percent of the folks in the 11 

populations dynamics branch doing analyses on those 20 12 

stocks. 13 

   In addition, we had the TRAC, which is 14 

the process where stocks that are jointly managed by 15 

U.S. and Canada are assessed by Canadian and U.S. 16 

scientists. 17 

   And the three stocks that are done it's 18 

typically in June of each year, and this year it was done 19 

in St. Andrews, Canada on Eastern Georges Bank cod and 20 

Eastern Georges Bank haddock and the Georges Bank 21 

yellowtail stock.  In addition, the Center did updates 22 

in June and July on bluefish, black sea bass, scup, 23 

fluke.  And most recently 24 
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Dr. Rego provided work on dogfish.  And the updates that 1 

were done because we were doing the winter flounder SARC 2 

in the spring.  Mark Terceiro does most of the work on 3 

fluke and scup, so it was impossible for him to do a full 4 

update. 5 

   Typically, he's provided a full 6 

assessment update to the Mid-Atlantic Council in June 7 

and July, but because of his commitments to the SAW/SARC 8 

process, the agreement between everyone was that he 9 

would do a projection, which is a simpler approach that 10 

doesn't require as much time. 11 

   So that allowed the SSC to go forward 12 

with its work in July and the Council to go forward in 13 

August and make recommendations, set the ACL and make 14 

ABC recommendations. 15 

   Since that time, people also in the back 16 

of their minds wanted to know how fluke was doing in 17 

terms of rebuilding, and so again the agreement was that 18 

when Mark was freed up he would do a full update of fluke 19 

to see how the stock status was, whether it was rebuilt 20 

or not. 21 

   So Mark did that analysis in August and 22 

September.  And there's a Center reference document 23 

that's in the que to be published this month.  And it's 24 
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kind of a good news and bad news story.  The good news 1 

is that I think it will say that the summer flounder 2 

stock is rebuilt.  And of course, we await the paper to 3 

be published, so I'm just giving you what I think is 4 

going to be stated in the report, but it's still 5 

unofficial at this stage.  It's more of a heads-up. 6 

   But also in his update, because he was 7 

able to use the more recent data instead of just doing 8 

a projection, he has a new estimate of what the biomass 9 

is and basically the OFL. 10 

   So he's come up with a new overfishing 11 

level because in the update he's come up with a revised 12 

estimate of the biomass for the current year.  And this 13 

will be considered to be a more accurate estimate of the 14 

biomass because it considers the most recent data and 15 

it's based on running the full model rather than the 16 

projection that was done in June. 17 

   And so based on that new information, 18 

the OFL will require -- it will be reduced from what the 19 

projection had said in June.  And we'll await to get the 20 

Center reference document to see the full numbers, but 21 

I believe it will be in the ballpark of about a 10 percent 22 

reduction in what was projected to be in terms of how 23 

that would play out in an ABC recommendation. 24 
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   So then moving on, we're preparing for 1 

the SAW/SARC meeting this fall, which will be black sea 2 

bass and Gulf of Maine cod.  And the people are actively 3 

working on that.  Gary Shephard is the lead on the black 4 

sea bass.  This spring for SARC 54 in June of 2012, 5 

Southern New England yellowtail flounder and herring 6 

are both on the agenda. 7 

   We also have work now ongoing with the 8 

delivery of the new MRIP recreational data as well as 9 

MRFFS, which is the data -- the method for collecting 10 

data that was done previously. 11 

   There's now a working group that's been 12 

formed, and Dr. Boreman is chairing a steering 13 

committee.  Which he may want to mention a few things 14 

about that when he gives his report. 15 

   But we have a committee that is talking 16 

about ways to start incorporating the MRIP data and 17 

compare that with the MRFFS data and how that will impact 18 

stock assessments for our region. 19 

   And we also have the spring.  Again, 20 

we'll be entering into the TRAC and the updates and 21 

projections for the various Mid-Atlantic stocks.  I 22 

think I'll stop there.  That's probably enough to get 23 

a few questions.  Thank you. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Jim, 1 

I meant to tell you before you started:  We don't do back 2 

news; we just do the good news.  So the good news is 3 

summer flounder is at or above the rebuilding target, 4 

but it sounds like there are implications with the new 5 

OFL related back to the ABC, and it in light of the fact 6 

that we have recreational measures coming up in December 7 

and we are currently in the process, I guess, of 8 

finalizing -- the Service is in the process of 9 

finalizing the specifications, it sounds like we might 10 

need to ask the SSC to look at that to give us all a chance 11 

of avoiding any problems during 2012. 12 

   But, Jim, when is the SARC expected to 13 

be done on black sea bass?  Would that be in the first 14 

couple weeks of January? 15 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  I think we should be 16 

able to get the summary report published by late 17 

January.  We have the review meeting in the early part 18 

of December, and then it takes several weeks for the 19 

reviewers to produce the reports and for us to then edit 20 

all of the numbers and make sure everything's dotted and 21 

checked. 22 

   And it typically works out that by mid 23 

to late January we've published the assessment summary 24 
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report and also are able to post all the review reports 1 

online.  And then, of course, there's the much larger 2 

assessment report which will be published after that in 3 

February to March. 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  5 

Thank you, Jim.  Questions for Jim?  Erling. 6 

   ERLING BERG:  Yeah.  Thank you, 7 

Mr. Chairman.  Jim, last week I was in Peabody, 8 

Massachusetts at a groundfish meeting, and there was 9 

information that came out on windowpane flounder -- we 10 

used to call them daylights, but now they're windowpane 11 

-- in the mid-Atlantic, Southern New England area. 12 

   And apparently there was quite a bit of 13 

them caught, and it seemed like the guilty party was the 14 

limited access scallopers.  And I'm just wondering how 15 

they got that information. 16 

   I mean I fished that area extensively.  17 

I haven't been there for over 20 years, but we used to 18 

catch a lot of these on Georges Bank but never -- I don't 19 

recall catching a lot in that area. 20 

   And I'm just wondering how that 21 

information was derived because if this is a fact, then 22 

this could affect the fisheries in this area, scallop, 23 

small mesh, and large mesh.  So where did it come from? 24 
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   JAMES WEINBERG:  Are you referring to 1 

commercial catch or on the survey? 2 

   ERLING BERG:  Commercial catch. 3 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  Okay.  Commercial 4 

catch.  Okay.  I hadn't heard that before.  What I 5 

thought you were going to ask was we've also been 6 

contacted on southern windowpane to do an update of the 7 

stock status because I think the groundfish PDT did some 8 

analyses that indicated that the survey numbers are up 9 

for that stock, and they'd like us to update it.  So that 10 

will require some analyses that we plan to do this month 11 

to see if the status has improved. 12 

   And it's a little bit of work because it 13 

involves with the changeover to the Bigelow it doesn't 14 

sample the inshore strata that the Albatross sampled, 15 

so some calculations have to be done to 16 

re-estimate survey trends taking into account that 17 

change in sampling.  So I don't know the answer to your 18 

question specifically. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:   20 

Erling. 21 

   ERLING BERG:  This information that Tom 22 

Meece presented -- just a little command in a meeting, 23 

and it kind of caught my eye.  Thank you. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Rick 1 

Cole. 2 

   RICHARD COLE:  Jim, are you aware of any 3 

new information or any new data that's going to be 4 

utilized in this update on the black sea bass assessment 5 

that will help reduce the uncertainty that's been 6 

associated with the previous assessments? 7 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  No, I'm not aware of 8 

any.  But to get the real answer to that, you'd have to 9 

ask Gary Shephard.  The terms of reference for this 10 

assessment are pretty extensive, and they have been set.  11 

I can just mention a few things that they've been asked 12 

to look at.  So, if the information is out there, the 13 

assessment should be telling us something about this. 14 

   Consider seasonal migration and 15 

availability of black sea bass and investigate ways to 16 

incorporate that into the assessment.  Evaluate 17 

whether more than one management unit should be used for 18 

black sea bass from Cape Hatteras north, and if so, 19 

propose unit delineations that could be considered by 20 

the Council and for use in future assessments.  And also 21 

investigate estimates of natural mortality rate taking 22 

into account sex and age-specific rate estimates. 23 

   So these would be real advances to the 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 108

previous assessment.  These were sources of 1 

uncertainty previously.  So they have been asked to 2 

look at it. 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  4 

Other questions for Jim?  John. 5 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Yeah.  I'm still 6 

reacting to the word on fluke.  It's good that they are 7 

no longer or the rebuilding has completed its cycle.  8 

I'm a little disturbed about the change in the 9 

overfishing level.  I guess that happens when you have 10 

new data.  But I think there's a lesson learned here, 11 

and the next time we look for updates from the Center, 12 

we will not go with update light.  I think if the full 13 

update had been done on time like we expected last June, 14 

we would not have to go back now and revisit winter 15 

flounder -- I mean summer flounder to make an estimate 16 

of the ABC or a recommendation for the Council now under 17 

a short time span. 18 

   I guess what we'll have to do is have a 19 

conference call.  But it will have to be announced in 20 

the Federal Register.  Right?  So it's at least six 21 

weeks.  Three weeks.  But now we have to go and try to 22 

schedule that before the next Council meeting so we can 23 

come back in December with a recommendation. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

John, I share your concern about a potential disruption 2 

to the rule making process as well.  Jim, when will that 3 

published report be available to the SSC so that they 4 

can have adequate time to review it prior to meeting? 5 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  Yeah.  I've been told 6 

that it will be done within two weeks.  And I can get 7 

it to you as soon as I know that it's done. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  9 

Thank you.  If there's no objection, I would suggest 10 

that we do that because otherwise we could find 11 

ourselves in a situation with a changed OFL or we're 12 

setting rec measures in December that could run afoul 13 

of that.  This would be the first year under which we're 14 

operating under the new accountability measures, et 15 

cetera.  So I suggest that we try to get that updated 16 

information prior to the December meeting, and we'll 17 

work with the Agency to the extent practical to try to 18 

incorporate that into the specifications process.  19 

Thanks.  Any other questions for Jim?  Bob. 20 

   BOB BEAL:  I think it's a process 21 

question probably for you, Mr. Chairman, if that's okay.  22 

Now that Jim has mentioned there's no summer flounder 23 

assessment information that probably won't support the 24 
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OFL recommendation that the Council move forward to 1 

National Marine Fishery Service and the Commission has 2 

set the quota for next year. 3 

   Following the SSC review, is there the 4 

potential that the Council will revisit their 5 

recommendation to National Marine Fishery Service at 6 

the December meeting, and should I prep our board for 7 

potentially having to amend or rescind the quota that 8 

they've already set? 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Bob, 10 

I would suggest that you do that, and when we dole out 11 

the agenda for the December meeting that we allow for 12 

some discussion of that recommendation because if the 13 

OFL is different and we're setting -- we're implementing 14 

regulations at that point in time, I think we will have 15 

to revisit the question. 16 

   BOB BEAL:  Okay.  And then as a 17 

follow-up, I guess - you know, Jim, if you could forward 18 

that paper to us as soon as possible, we can share that 19 

with the Board. 20 

   I'm not sure if this triggers another 21 

Monitoring Committee or what exactly has to happen from 22 

here as well, but I just want to give our board as much 23 

heads-up as possible. 24 
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   I'm sure everybody's concerned about 1 

timing of stock assessment information coming out, so 2 

two different levels of information and those kind of 3 

things.  So I just want to -- you know, prep them for 4 

what may happen in December. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Yeah.  And I think we all appreciate how disruptive this 7 

is to the process, but I think we're going to have to 8 

react to it.  And similarly, when we have an output from 9 

that SARC in January on black sea bass, I anticipate that 10 

we'll have to react to that as well. 11 

   The timing of this information is 12 

unfortunate.  It falls outside of the normal cycle, but 13 

I think we have to consider it as well as we can.  Jim. 14 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  Yeah.  I would just 15 

like to repeat that we didn't fall into this through lack 16 

of trying.  Mark Terceiro was fully engaged with the 17 

SARC last spring.  He was chairing and doing one of the 18 

main assessments of the three winter flounder stocks.  19 

So I think that the Center would have also preferred to 20 

have just done a full update and provided that to you 21 

in August when Mark could have gotten around to doing 22 

the full amount of work, and then we wouldn't have had 23 

to give you the projection and then a couple months later 24 
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provide a full update. 1 

   So there are a lot of requests of folks 2 

at the Center, and Mark couldn't be in three places at 3 

once.  So, anyway, that's kind of how we got into this. 4 

   But we would also prefer to just have 5 

done a full update.  But it seemed that it was crucial 6 

to provide something to the SSC in June and July, and 7 

that's why we had agreed to do the projection. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Bob. 9 

   BOB BEAL:  Just another quick 10 

follow-up.  And I'm not being critical of Mark.  I 11 

understand the workload issues.  But it sounds like I 12 

should also prep our board and set some resources aside 13 

for a potential joint meeting in February with the 14 

Council -- is that a potential as well -- to revisit 15 

black sea bass? 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 17 

think that is a potential if you want to lay that down 18 

as a placeholder.  That's not a bad idea because I would 19 

anticipate that as we get a SARC output in January, we 20 

would ask our SSC to revisit that as quickly as possible. 21 

    And I think they are planning some sort 22 

of winter meeting so we would have output that would be 23 

reviewed.  And that makes sense that we would consider 24 
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the question jointly in February.  You might put that 1 

to your board as a placeholder.  2 

   Further questions for Jim on the report?  3 

Thanks again, Jim.  With that I'll ask Denise if she has 4 

a report on general counsel at this point in time. 5 

   DENISE DESAUTELS:  I'm awaiting an 6 

e-mail from Joel McDonald.  I'm filling in for him.  I 7 

could give you half now and half later, or I could give 8 

you a much shorter version tomorrow morning.  Which 9 

would you prefer? 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 11 

think you and I can do that.  Why don't we wait until 12 

tomorrow.  All right.  That's the easiest decision of 13 

the day.  Thank you.  Okay.  Next would be -- let's see 14 

-- ASMFC.  Bob, are you able to report out for the 15 

Commission, please? 16 

 _______________________________ 17 

 ASMFC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 18 

   BOB BEAL:  Sure.  I could do that.  And 19 

first of all, Vince sends his apologies for not being 20 

able to make it this week.  So I'll give a quick report.  21 

I think the big announcement is our annual meeting's 22 

coming up the week of November 7th in Boston, 23 

Massachusetts.  All the Council members are obviously 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 114

welcome to come.  We'd love to have you guys there. 1 

   There's a couple agenda items that may 2 

be of interest to the Council.  We're going to have an 3 

Atlantic herring section meeting.  They're going to 4 

talk about allocation and distribution of quota for 2012 5 

as well as get an update on some of the Amendment 5 issues 6 

that were talked about by the Squid, Mackerel, 7 

Butterfish Committee earlier this week. 8 

   We're also having an American Lobster 9 

Board where the board's going to make a final decision 10 

on Southern New England lobster management reductions 11 

in that fishery. 12 

   And that has a potential to impact 13 

states from Massachusetts all the way down through 14 

Virginia, so obviously impacting a number of states 15 

represented here in this council. 16 

   We're going to have a striped bass stock 17 

assessment update. That's presented out to the Striped 18 

Bass Management Board.  That assessment should be ready 19 

in the next week to 10 days, and we'll put that on a 20 

briefing CD.  So, if folks want to see what that looks 21 

like ahead of time, it should be published on our website 22 

-- I don't know -- maybe two to three weeks from now so 23 

folks can get a signal on what the striped bass 24 
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population looks like. 1 

   Atlantic menhaden is a big meeting for 2 

us at the November meeting.  The Board's going to 3 

consider new thresholds and targets as far as for the 4 

fishing mortality rate and that. 5 

   Assuming those are reduced -- and that 6 

seems to be the direction the Board goes in; but 7 

presupposing that outcome is probably risky.  But 8 

assuming they take some reductions, that will then 9 

trigger some additional management measures that will 10 

be needed and will be done through a subsequent 11 

management action. 12 

   But establishing new fishing mortality 13 

targets and thresholds is a big issue for the menhaden 14 

fishery and has a potential to impact bait fisheries up 15 

and down the coast as well as the reduction fishery that 16 

operates out of Reedville, Virginia. 17 

   I think the final Board meeting that 18 

will be of interest to the Council is on our preliminary 19 

agenda we did not include a summer flounder, scup, black 20 

sea bass management board, but there has been one, or 21 

there is one being added kind of as we speak.  And that 22 

will probably be on Tuesday of our meeting week, and the 23 

Board will get together to review the actions by the 24 
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states of New York, Rhode Island, and Connecticut 1 

regarding the scup recreational fishery. 2 

   Those three states under an FMP were 3 

supposed to close on September 28th, but they elected 4 

to allow their fisheries to stay open through the 5 

remainder of the year indicating that the MRFFS landings 6 

were coming in lower than they had anticipated, and the 7 

commercial harvest they did not anticipate that to be 8 

taken -- the commercial quota did not anticipate that 9 

to be taken as well. 10 

   So, in the opinion of those three 11 

states, there's likely an underage of the overall scup 12 

quota for 2011.  So the Board's going to review the 13 

actions taken by those states and determine if there's 14 

a conservation issue and a fishery compliance issue at 15 

the interstate fishery management plan. 16 

   So those are the highlights of our 17 

meeting coming up.  I'd be happy to answer any questions 18 

if you have any. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

Thank you, Bob.  I think we will try to coordinate with 21 

your staff to schedule an update during that meeting of 22 

the Visioning Project that the Council's undertaken so 23 

that we can keep the membership fully informed about 24 
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where we are and where we're going with that.  And we've 1 

had Commission representation on that committee, but we 2 

want to continue to keep the Commission apprised of 3 

where we are with the project. 4 

   BOB BEAL:  Yeah.  Great.  We can try to 5 

fit that in.  Probably the Policy Board might be the 6 

right place for that. 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  8 

Thank you.  Questions for Bob?  Greg. 9 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  Mr. Chairman, 10 

just one quick question for Bob if that's acceptable to 11 

you and the Council.  Bob, you said that there will 12 

likely be an underage of the scup quota.  Do you mean 13 

underage of a higher scup quota or the recreational 14 

quota? 15 

   BOB BEAL:  Again, this is a position of 16 

three states that I was talking about rather than staff.  17 

But they were looking at both.  The recreational quota 18 

they anticipated to be not harvested, and the commercial 19 

quota they anticipated to be not harvested. 20 

   But they were basing their recreational 21 

catch on information just through the end of Wave 3, 22 

which is the end of June.  So there will be more 23 

information on the recreational fishery available 24 
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probably in the next week or so, Wave 4.    1 

 And some of the signals that we got from those 2 

states were even if the recreational harvest was 3 

exceeded, the commercial harvest -- the commercial 4 

quota should not be fully utilized; and based on that, 5 

there may not be a conservation issue in their opinion. 6 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  I'm glad you 7 

actually explained that because I thought that's what 8 

your answer or position might be.  So, from the 9 

Commission's perspective, as long as an overall quota 10 

is not exceeded for individual sectors or the 11 

recreational quota is not exceeded, then essentially 12 

there's not a conservation issue. 13 

   Do you think that's a position and a 14 

philosophy that will continue?  Because if we had 15 

underages and there's going to be much less incentive 16 

between an individual state or sector to worry about 17 

their overages. 18 

   BOB BEAL:  Well, I'm not sure that's the 19 

Commission's position at this time.  They haven't -- 20 

and frankly, that's what they're going to talk about at 21 

this meeting coming up in a couple weeks. 22 

   The Summer Flounder, Scup, Black Sea 23 

Bass Board has not said, well, if one sector's under, 24 
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the other can absorb the overage and those sorts of 1 

things.  The plan has pretty clear allocations between 2 

the two sectors.  So they're going to have to talk to 3 

that issue.  It's a pretty big issue. 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS: Thanks 5 

for the report, Bob.  Okay.  Red Munden, would you mind 6 

giving the South Atlantic liaison report? 7 

 _____________________________________ 8 

 SOUTH ATLANTIC COUNCIL LIAISON REPORT 9 

   RED MUNDEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  10 

I'd be glad to do that.  The info on the South Atlantic 11 

Council meeting -- if I can find it -- 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS: 13 

Tab 8. 14 

   RED MUNDEN:  -- is behind Tab 8.  Thank 15 

you.  The South Atlantic Council met in Charleston the 16 

14th through the 15th of September, and I was not able 17 

to make that meeting because I was on jury duty for which 18 

I thought I would be excused, but I was not. 19 

   So what I would like to do is just to go 20 

through the committee reports from the South Atlantic 21 

Snapper-Grouper Committee and the Mackerel Committee.  22 

Unfortunately, the committee meetings are summary 23 

meetings, and I was not there to take notes, so I'll just 24 
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have to kind of fill in. 1 

   But if you would turn behind Tab 8, and 2 

I'll just hit some highlights of the snapper-grouper 3 

issues that were discussed.  On the second page of the 4 

first document behind Tab 8, it starts off with the 5 

discussion of Amendment 24, which is an amendment that 6 

the South Atlantic Council has initiated just recently, 7 

and it is to address rebuilding of red grouper.  And if 8 

you look down to Action Item 5, these are the preferred 9 

alternatives that the Committee has identified.  But 10 

they have a tendency to come back a year or so later and 11 

change the preferred alternative.  So this is kind of 12 

like the first shot as to what they are considering to 13 

do for rebuilding of red grouper. 14 

   And the preferred alternative I felt was 15 

very interesting because they intend to allocate 45 16 

percent of the harvest limit to the commercial sector, 17 

55 percent to the recreational; but in doing this, they 18 

based 50 percent of this amount on historical landings, 19 

1986 to 2008, and 50 percent on recent landings, 2006 20 

to 2008. 21 

   So it's totally different than anything 22 

I've ever seen at the Mid-Atlantic where we would select 23 

a time period and use that for allocation of the harvest 24 
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between commercial and recreational sectors. 1 

   On the next page, page three, the 2 

discussions on establishing annual catch targets for 3 

red grouper, if you look at Alternative 4, which is the 4 

preferred alternative, they would implement annual 5 

catch targets for 2012 as long as -- and beyond into 2013 6 

and '14 as long as the ACL is not exceeded. 7 

   Down at the bottom under Action 9, one 8 

of the things they considered under Alternative 2, 9 

Preferred Alternative 2, is an in-season closure.  This 10 

is an authority that the South Atlantic Council has not 11 

had in recent years with management of snapper-grouper 12 

species.  If the National Marine Fisheries Service 13 

determined that a fishery was going to -- or projected 14 

to exceed its quota, they couldn't do anything until the 15 

following year.  So, for red grouper, they are 16 

proposing that they have in-season closures. 17 

   And then Alternative 3 is something that 18 

we've had for a long time, particular for summer 19 

flounder and other species we deal with, such as black 20 

sea bass and scup, there's a payback provision. 21 

   So it's interesting to see that South 22 

Atlantic is starting to implement some of the things 23 

that we've used for years.  On page four, if you drop 24 
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down to the -- the top of the page rather, accountability 1 

measures, then under the top alternative, Alternative 2 

2, then they would specify recreational accountability 3 

measure trigger, and it would be implemented if the 4 

current year's recreational landings exceed the 5 

recreational ACL for a given year.  That's their 6 

preferred alternative. 7 

   Also, under Alternative 3, specify the 8 

recreational in-season accountability measure.  The 9 

preferred is the regional administrator shall publish 10 

a notice to close the recreational season when the 11 

recreational ACL is projected to be met.    12 

 Moving over to the next page, there is information 13 

in Amendment 18 -- 18B rather -- and this is the golden 14 

tilefish FMP amendment.  And you may recall that the 15 

South Atlantic move ahead with Amendment 18.  That's 16 

the amendment in which they propose that they move the 17 

management area northern boundary up into the 18 

Mid-Atlantic area of jurisdiction.  They decided to 19 

take no action on that. 20 

   And then they split Amendment 18 into A 21 

and B, and 18B is specific for golden tilefish.  And one 22 

of the things they want to consider is limit 23 

participation in the golden tilefish fishery.  This is 24 
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Action Item 1. 1 

   And their preferred alternative is that 2 

the individuals who meet the qualifying criteria for 3 

both hook-and-line and longline endorsements will 4 

receive both endorsements. 5 

   Moving over to the next page, under the 6 

motion that says deselect Alternative 2A as  preferred, 7 

they changed their mind.  So they went back and said, 8 

no, we don't want to allow the 9 

hook-and-line fishermen and the longline fishermen to 10 

have both endorsements. 11 

   So they deselected that, and they came 12 

back with the motion for no action as a preferred 13 

alternative, and they would not establish a 14 

hook-and-line endorsement for the golden tilefish 15 

fishery.  The next page over, page seven, Amendment 18A 16 

they had some issues that pertain to black sea bass, 17 

which I felt like that you might find interesting.  And 18 

the first one of those is on the top of the next page, 19 

page eight. 20 

   The preferred alternative for an ACL for 21 

black sea bass is that the ACLs were based on existing 22 

allocations.  ACL was equal to ABC and OY.  For the 23 

commercial sector -- this is under Action 1C -- the 24 
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preferred alternative is to not set an ACL for the 1 

commercial black sea bass fishery. 2 

   Under Action Item 2, they intend to 3 

limit participation in the black sea bass pot fishery 4 

through an endorsement program.  And if you look down 5 

at the very bottom of that, in order to qualify, they 6 

will have to have landed -- the preferred option is to 7 

have landed 3,500 pounds of black sea bass whole weight 8 

between January the 1st, 2008, and December 31st of 9 

2010. 10 

   So they have a two-year qualification 11 

period for landing black sea bass in the amount of 3,200 12 

pounds.  On page 10, limited effort in the black sea 13 

bass pot fishery, the proposed alternative is to limit 14 

the commercial fishermen to 35 pots per vessel.  They 15 

will have to have tags issued by National Marine Fishery 16 

Service, and they will have 35 tags per year.  It 17 

doesn't address what happens if they lose any pots 18 

during the fishing year.  On 19 

page 11, one of the alternatives that was initially 20 

preferred and then disapproved by the Committee would 21 

be to implement a March 1 through April 30th spawning 22 

season closure for black sea bass.  And that would apply 23 

to both the commercial and recreational sectors. 24 
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   And the reason this caught my interest 1 

is that's something that was indicated by the Monitoring 2 

Committee that we might want to consider for management 3 

of black sea bass north of Cape Hatteras.  And we'll 4 

address that later today. 5 

   On page 12 about the fourth bullet down, 6 

the fourth item down, is Amendment 20, which is another 7 

of the snapper-grouper amendments.  This amendment is 8 

specific for wreck fish.  And the wreckfish fishery is 9 

a very, very small fishery.  I think there are 10 

approximately six or eight participants in that 11 

fishery. 12 

   So, under Action Item 1, the preferred 13 

option is to define inactive shares as shares belonging 14 

to any ITQ shareholder who has not reported wreckfish 15 

landings between 2006 and '7 and 2010 and '11 and revert 16 

those permits for redistribution. 17 

   So this is the first time to my knowledge 18 

that the South Atlantic Council has implemented a 19 

use-it-or-lose-it provision.  There's also a cap on the 20 

percentage shares.  And this is addressed at the top of 21 

page 13.  But in the wreckfish fishery the preferred 22 

alternative is to have a cap of 49 percent of the total 23 

shares to be held by one permit holder. 24 
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   The Snapper-Grouper Committee approved 1 

these items to go before the full Council for public 2 

hearing, and that was approved.  I'm not sure when the 3 

public hearings will be held. 4 

   Then briefly, the next document 5 

following snapper-grouper is a report from the 6 

Snapper-Grouper Committee.  And basically there were 7 

two motions, to direct the staff to continue development 8 

-- and this on page one of the mackerel report -- direct 9 

staff to continue development of Amendment 19 to 10 

evaluate a prohibition or sale of coastal migratory 11 

pelagics.  And this will be the first time a 12 

snapper-grouper -- a mackerel committee has put this 13 

forward. 14 

   And the second motion was to do not 15 

continue with the limited access participation program 16 

in Amendment 20 and direct staff to work with Council 17 

to evaluate allocating a commercial king mackerel quota 18 

and other issues to the list provided. 19 

   And Ben Hartig is a member of the South 20 

Atlantic Council.  He's served nine years and was off 21 

for several years, and he's back as a member of the South 22 

Atlantic Council.  He's a commercial fisherman who's 23 

very well spoken and very active at the South Atlantic 24 
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Council.  And he came up with a list of seven things that 1 

he would like to be considered in the next mackerel 2 

amendment.  And one of the things is Item No. 1, page 3 

two of the handout, of the committee minutes, the 4 

Advisory Panel Motion 8 was to change the king mackerel 5 

size limits, and Ben recommends that they go to a 23-inch 6 

or 22-inch size limit for king mackerel. 7 

   He feels like that this will eliminate 8 

practically all discards and lowering the size limit 9 

will substantially reduce discard mortality on smaller 10 

kings, as they're more susceptible to hook mortality. 11 

   The AP recommended one king mackerel 12 

greater than 50 inches.  And his concern there is how 13 

does an average recreational fisherman get a large king 14 

in the boat and measure it without significantly 15 

reducing its chances of survival. 16 

   He came up in Item 3 with various 17 

scenarios for commercial trip limits, and he indicated 18 

that toward the bottom of Item 3, that the unlimited 19 

season is no longer needed. 20 

   Most fishermen has limited their 21 

gillnet vessels to 3,000 to 5,000 pounds to quality and 22 

marketing concerns.  And so that's why he proposed 23 

various options for seasons for Spanish mackerel.  The 24 
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Advisory Panel recommended king mackerel trip limits, 1 

and Ben said that increased trip limits for the short 2 

drift net fishery in his opinion was inappropriate 3 

because this option would not be appropriate until the 4 

number of vessels in the short drift net fishery are 5 

limited. 6 

   At the bottom of Item 4, Item 2 is split 7 

the king and Spanish mackerel commercial allocations on 8 

a combined North Carolina-South Carolina and 9 

Georgia-Florida state commercial quota basis. 10 

   In the king or Spanish they're caught 11 

north of the Virginia-North Carolina border would also 12 

come under the South Atlantic jurisdiction.  So, I 13 

assume if I had been there, I would have to have argued 14 

for the allocation for North Carolina-South Carolina 15 

also consider Virginia, Maryland and other states in the 16 

Mid-Atlantic that would have an opportunity to catch 17 

king or Spanish commercially. 18 

   And, Mr. Chairman, that pretty much 19 

ramps it up for the South Atlantic.  The next meeting 20 

of the South Atlantic Council will be in December of 21 

2011, and it will be held in Raleigh, and it will be the 22 

week before the Mid-Atlantic Council meeting I believe.  23 

Be glad to address any questions Mr. Chairman, 24 
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concerning the South Atlantic Snapper-Grouper or 1 

Mackerel Committees.  2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  3 

Thank you, Red.  I think I will follow up with you off 4 

line about that mackerel allocation issue.  But are 5 

there questions for Red on his report?  Seeing, none, 6 

Erling, you want to give yours? 7 

 __________________________________ 8 

 NEW ENGLAND COUNCIL LIAISON REPORT 9 

   ERLING BERG:  Yeah.  Thank you, 10 

Mr. Chairman.  This is from the meeting in Danvers, 11 

Massachusetts, September 26th through the 29th.  I only 12 

attended two days.  I had a workload at home I had to 13 

take care of.  And Chairman Robins covered the last two 14 

days. 15 

   The first thing we had was a 16 

presentation on the Touchstone Report prepared by 17 

Preston Pate and the SRA Consulting Group, the same ones 18 

that are doing our Visioning Project.  This was 19 

concerning the review of the New England fishery 20 

management process. 21 

   Discussions were held on improving 22 

communications and collaboration with the industry, 23 

developing a shared vision and strategy to guide the 24 
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overall management process. 1 

   And we have monkfish.  The Council 2 

considered a Monkfish Committee recommendation to 3 

request that the Agency calculate individual 4 

contribution practice based on vessels' landing history 5 

for a three time period.  This was a request to generate 6 

my concerns that the monkfish fishermen in the 7 

Mid-Atlantic have:  Should catch shares be implemented 8 

in this fishery.  The issue was sent back to the 9 

committee for further development.  And there will be 10 

a meeting in the near future.  It will be held in the 11 

Mid-Atlantic area, probably Philadelphia, but we don't 12 

know that yet. 13 

   Skates.  Now, the Council approved the 14 

final skate complex specification for 2012 and '13 15 

fishing year.  The big news was a 23 percent increase 16 

in the skate ACL, which it conclude estimate discard, 17 

a 69 percent increase in the TAL. 18 

   Scallops.  The Council took final 19 

action on framework Adjustment 23 to the scallop FMP.  20 

The most significant new rule is the requirement for a 21 

turtle dredge deflector dredge for all limited access 22 

scallop dredge vessels and all limited access general 23 

category vessels with a dredge greater than 10.6. 24 
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   And the reason they chose that 10.6 was 1 

that they couldn't really configure that dredge fully 2 

to fit a dredge smaller than that the way the dredge is 3 

built. 4 

   There was also a provision to modify how 5 

all limited access and limited access general category 6 

vessels that clear into the fishery.  Instead of having 7 

to enter a port, now vessels will be able to declare just 8 

west of the VMS immigration line.  This was a safety 9 

issue, having vessels enter into ports they're not 10 

familiar with, having to turn around.  So that was the 11 

reason for that.  Also, Rip Cunningham, who was the vice 12 

chair, was elected chairman of the Council.  Jimmy 13 

Odlin, the fisherman from Portland, Maine was elected 14 

vice chair. 15 

   The new Executive Committee is Sally 16 

McGee from Connecticut, Terry Stockwell -- you're 17 

familiar with him -- from Maine, and Doug Grout, which 18 

many of us know from the Commission, were all elected 19 

to the Executive Committee. 20 

   There's another Groundfish Committee 21 

meeting in two weeks, October 5th, in Plymouth, Mass.  22 

Howard and I are planning on attending that.  And that's 23 

about all I have, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Thank you.  Questions for Erling?  I did have the 2 

benefit of attending the last two days of that Council 3 

meeting. 4 

   I missed the monkfish discussion.  5 

Erling was there for that.  But further to the 6 

discussions we've had about Amendment 6 and the concerns 7 

in the Mid-Atlantic about where that amendment is 8 

headed, we did request two additional seats on the 9 

Monkfish Committee, on the joint committee. 10 

   And that request has been granted, so we 11 

will now have five representatives on that committee.  12 

We'll also schedule a meeting of our ad hoc Monkfish 13 

Committee to address those concerns that we discussed 14 

at the last council meeting about the concerns that 15 

we've heard that are unique to 16 

Mid-Atlantic fishermen about how they might be 17 

potentially disadvantaged through an allocative 18 

approach to that fishery. 19 

   But we want to really drill into those 20 

concerns in detail, understand them fully, and then try 21 

to develop measures that would be responsive to those 22 

concerns. 23 

   And so we will be convening that ad hoc 24 
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committee between now and the next council meeting, and 1 

we'll be working with Howard King to schedule that and 2 

the committee. 3 

   I also sat through the herring 4 

discussion as they debated the final actions on 5 

Amendment 5 related to the DEIS.  And so they did vote 6 

out the DEIS at that meeting. 7 

   And, again, we, I think we have some 8 

significant work in front of us, but we will try to 9 

create opportunities for collaborative work and 10 

complimentary outcome at the end of that process.  And 11 

that was the primary highlight there.  I believe that 12 

was on Thursday.  Frank, have we missed anything 13 

between us? 14 

   FRANK BLOUNT:  No.  Just as Tony 15 

Dilernia mentioned yesterday, there's a wreck advisor's 16 

meeting coming up.  I think it's the first week in 17 

November.  That's to discuss haddock AMs.  There was an 18 

overage in 2010, I think the year was, about a 30 percent 19 

overage. 20 

   In two weeks the Council's having a 21 

sector workshop, a review of lessons learned from the 22 

first year on sectors.  November is the priority 23 

setting meeting.  And I think the groundfish meeting -- 24 
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Erling, did you say it was on the 5th?  I think it's on 1 

the 4th. 2 

   ERLING BERG:  I think we're both wrong.  3 

I think it's the 2nd. 4 

   FRANK BLOUNT:  Second. 5 

   ERLING BERG:  Howard may know of it.  I 6 

think it's the 2nd. 7 

   FRANK BLOUNT:  Okay.  That makes sense 8 

'cause there's an Whiting Committee on the 3rd.  All 9 

right.  Very good.  That's all I have.  Thanks. 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  11 

Thanks for that additional input.  Howard. 12 

   HOWARD KING:  I wanted to mention also 13 

Terry Stockwell is moving out as chair of the Monkfish 14 

Joint Oversight Committee being replaced by Mark 15 

Alexander. 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  17 

Thanks for that update.  Any questions regarding the 18 

New England activities and report?  Well, thanks for 19 

getting those additional reports in today.  Why don't 20 

we go ahead and take a break for lunch and come back at 21 

1:15.  And at that point, we'll take up the black sea 22 

bass issue.  Thanks. 23 

  [Lunch Break: 12:15 p.m. to 1:27 p.m.] 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

We're back.  Let's go ahead and take our seats so we can 2 

get started, if you would.  Jessica Coakley's going to 3 

be giving us a presentation on Amendment 17 for the 4 

summer flounder, scup, black sea bass FMP that would 5 

address issues specific to black sea bass.  Jessica. 6 

 ______________________________________ 7 

 AMENDMENT 17 TO SUMMER FLOUNDER, SCUP, 8 

                 BLACK SEA BASS FMP 9 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Good afternoon, 10 

everybody.  We'll be talking about Amendment 17.  Hold 11 

on.  Oh, perfect.  Okay.  And that amendment was being 12 

developed to address a regional and spacial management 13 

for the black sea bass recreational fishery. 14 

   And the amendment was also being 15 

developed to address issues related to differences in 16 

catch rates both in the northern and southern areas 17 

within the management unit. 18 

   So the FMAT has met several times 19 

actually and begun development on a series of 20 

alternatives that are either regional or spacial types 21 

of alternatives.  These are all in the amendment 22 

overview that's behind Tab 5 in your briefing book, the 23 

second item behind that tab.  So, in terms of tackling 24 
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this, there really were only a few discreet options that 1 

we've put forward.  The first option in the document, 2 

Alternative 1, is the no action alternative, which we 3 

always have in our MEPA documents, and it's essentially 4 

to continue the coastwide measures that are in place 5 

both in federal waters, and it's also coastwide measures 6 

in the Commission's FMP. 7 

   The other alternative would be to move 8 

forward with some form of conservation equivalency, 9 

which could be a state-by-state with voluntary regions 10 

under Alternative 2A -- so it's very similar to what's 11 

used in summer flounder presently -- or to develop some 12 

sort of mandatory regions that are required, which are 13 

under the Alternative number 2B, either 2B(1) or 2B(2).  14 

I'm going to go over those in more detail. 15 

   One thing I do want to point out:  16 

You're being presented with the options today, and we 17 

can talk about what your preference is for alternatives 18 

would be; in December the Council would need to sit down 19 

with the Board and go through these options with the 20 

Commissions Board as well for black sea bass because 21 

without the Commission developing a complimentary FMP, 22 

we can't do any state-by-state or regional conservation 23 

equivalency because we don't have those boundaries in 24 
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the EEZ.  So it really has to be a complimentary 1 

development for the FMP both on the council side and the 2 

commission side.  So that Alternative 2A, the 3 

state-by-state with voluntary regional similar to the 4 

summer flounder process:  States or voluntary adjacent 5 

multi-state regions would develop recreational 6 

measures; each voluntary region would have to pool their 7 

individual 8 

state-specific harvest limits and set identical 9 

measures for all those states within that region. 10 

   To do this we would need to identify 11 

state allocations for those recreational harvest 12 

limits, and we'd have to go to a process of using some 13 

sort of base year or years of catch or landings 14 

information to pull together what those allocations 15 

should be. 16 

   If the Council is interested in 17 

mandatory regions, Alternative 2B(1) is an alternative 18 

that could implement fixed regions that would be 19 

permanently established in both the state and federal 20 

FMPs. 21 

   So, for example, Mass. to New York could 22 

be one region, and New Jersey to North Carolina could 23 

be another region.  So those would be fixed.  Measures 24 
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could be set in December jointly with both the Council 1 

and the Commission's Board when they meet together.  2 

And then the Commission once the states have gone 3 

through their public hearing processes, would need to 4 

submit their measures to the National Marine Fishery 5 

Service to consider waiving the federal water measures 6 

in lieu of those state measures. 7 

   So you'd waive the federal water 8 

measures, and you would essentially have two or three 9 

depending on how you structured this fixed regions.  10 

The other alternative for mandatory regions would be to 11 

require states to develop mandatory regions through the 12 

Commission process. 13 

   So, in December, essentially the 14 

Council and Board would meet.  If it turns out we're 15 

going to move forward with these mandatory regions, the 16 

Commission would develop those through their process 17 

using some sort of guidelines. 18 

   Very similar to the summer flounder 19 

process:  They'd go out to the public hearings, 20 

identify what their state measures would be, and then 21 

submit those to the National Marine Fishery Service to 22 

consider waiving the federal water measures in lieu of 23 

those state measures.  So those are the alternatives 24 
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that the FMAT has highlighted here within the document.  1 

The FMAT when they met last, had some really extensive 2 

discussions and raised a lot of issues and questions 3 

about developing conservation equivalency or these 4 

regional-type approaches for black sea bass.  The FMAT 5 

commented that the current genetic work on black sea 6 

bass suggests there's really two stocks, and those 7 

stocks are one stock north of Hatteras and one stock 8 

south of Hatteras. 9 

   And although there are differences in 10 

movements of sea bass through different areas as shown 11 

in tiding studies, there really are no differences in 12 

the growth rates throughout the management unit. 13 

   So the big difference that we're seeing 14 

are differences in catch rates where the northern states 15 

are catching more fish either numbers or in terms of 16 

poundage than the southern states within the management 17 

unit. 18 

   So the FMAT discussed if there was a 19 

biological basis for conservation equivalency and 20 

concluded that the broader the region the more 21 

biologically based the approach. 22 

   Whereas, the smaller regions are 23 

considered, such as state by state, those are really 24 
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politically based approach, not necessarily based on 1 

the life history of black sea bass. 2 

   The FMAT also talked a little bit about 3 

summer flounder conservation equivalency and how a 4 

system may function under black sea bass, and they noted 5 

that summer flounder conservation equivalency is not 6 

perfect.  There are data issues and data limitations, 7 

and there's also implementation issues with summer 8 

flounder conservation equivalency.  So they wanted to 9 

have the Council consider whether taking a process like 10 

that and applying it identically to sea bass would be 11 

appropriate. 12 

   They also noted that it's unclear how 13 

well these conservation equivalency systems would 14 

function in conjunction with the federal and new catch 15 

limits and accountability measures just because this is 16 

the first year that we're implementing that new process 17 

for the federal system, and we haven't really seen how 18 

it would function with the state-by-state summer 19 

flounder conservation equivalency. 20 

   For all of these alternatives, be they 21 

state or regions, there would need to be some sort of 22 

allocation to identify what the state or regional 23 

specific harvest limit should be. 24 
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   The assessment as it's presently 1 

configured does not support any biologically-based 2 

allocations.  So we would have to use a base year or 3 

years similar to what's been done with summer flounder 4 

where they use the 1998 base year to figure out what 5 

those individual allocations should be.  And for summer 6 

flounder, you'll recall we go back to 1998, which is 7 

before states did individual 8 

state-by-state management measures because how a state 9 

sets their regulations, how liberal or conservative 10 

their approaches are affects what they land during those 11 

time periods. 12 

   So when you've got all those regulations 13 

in place, it affects what those proportions might be 14 

over time.  The FMAT also commented on the recreational 15 

data itself and that the catch and landings estimates 16 

for black sea bass are substantially less precise than 17 

those for summer flounder. 18 

   So that means as you disaggregate the 19 

black sea bass data either on a regional or 20 

state-specific level, you're going to have limited 21 

data.  And we've run into that issue with summer 22 

flounder. 23 

   But it would be a more extreme case with 24 
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black sea bass; and therefore, you would have less 1 

certainty in the management measures being developed 2 

for whatever those units are, either states or regions, 3 

because of those data limitations. 4 

   State-by-state adjustments that are 5 

made each year to individual regulations under the 6 

summer flounder process has made it very difficult to 7 

evaluate the performance of those individual measures 8 

over time.  It results in a very complex system, and the 9 

Technical Committees and Monitoring Committees have had 10 

a difficult time trying to figure out how those measures 11 

have performed.  So the FMAT also noted that that type 12 

of system here you'd have a similar issue for black sea 13 

bass. 14 

   The Marine Recreational Information 15 

Program will be releasing new estimates using new 16 

estimation approaches, and those are going to alter the 17 

accuracy and the precision of estimates. 18 

   So it may also change our perception of 19 

how good the data are for black sea bass when those are 20 

released.  And at this point, I don't think that there's 21 

a time-certain release, but at some point maybe over the 22 

next year when we see those estimates. 23 

   So the FMAT posed the question:  Are 24 
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minimum size regulations appropriate for black sea 1 

bass, because there is current research out that 2 

suggests they may not be appropriate for a protogynous 3 

hermaphrodite and species with that reproductive 4 

strategy. 5 

   Black sea bass females transition to 6 

male at some point between two and five years.  Most of 7 

them transition, not necessarily all of them 8 

transition, so you've got this sexual bimorphism, and 9 

you've got a lot of the larger fish are male.  These 10 

dominant males they undergo very complex spawning 11 

behaviors where they form harems and set up their social 12 

hierarchy for those types of behaviors.  Because of all 13 

those complexities, the minimum size and the way those 14 

regulations are applied may be altering sex ratios, may 15 

be disrupting some of that reproductive behavior. 16 

   The FMAT also noted that there is some 17 

literature that suggests that spawning areas subject to 18 

fishing pressure may result in less productive spawning 19 

success for protogynous hermaphrodites because of those 20 

life-history strategies that they've developed. 21 

   It was suggested that seasonal closures 22 

that coincide with spawning time periods may be helpful 23 

in disrupting those reproductive activities.  And 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 144

there is also literature out there that suggests that 1 

measures for protogynous hermaphrodites should focus on 2 

the maintenance of sex ratios and stock size as their 3 

goals. 4 

   And it was also suggested that catch and 5 

effort controls in conjunction with spacial approaches 6 

may be more appropriate tools for managing these 7 

species. 8 

   So the FMAT at the end of their last 9 

meeting, essentially throughout the call developed a 10 

number of questions, that the FMAT really wanted further 11 

input on, first, they wanted further input on the 12 

objectives of the spacial regional management 13 

strategies the Council wants to consider.  The reasons 14 

that were initially given were issues relative to the 15 

differences in catch rates.  There's northern states 16 

catching more than their southern states. 17 

   But the FMAT wants to know beyond that 18 

issue what else is it that you're trying to accomplish 19 

or address because that would really help the FMAT in 20 

terms of development. 21 

   In addition, is the Council interested 22 

in examination of state-by-state management approaches 23 

for black sea bass, or are you only interested in 24 
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regional approaches? 1 

   You saw there's a few alternatives in 2 

this document, but if there are things the Council is 3 

not interested in at all addressing, it's typically 4 

easier to pull those from the document early on and have 5 

a less complicated document that can move through the 6 

system a bit more quickly. 7 

   In addition, does the Council want the 8 

FMAT to move forward with these approaches to allocation 9 

using base years?  So acknowledging that we have to use 10 

some sort of catch- or landing-based approach and for 11 

whatever those options are the FMAT can go through and 12 

develop what those either state or regional harvest 13 

limits should be.  Does the Council want to explore 14 

alternative management systems which could include 15 

potential spawning time area closures, looking at 16 

potential lowering the minimum fish size to enable more 17 

balance sex ratios in the landings or examination of the 18 

present bag limit and how it's applied in conjunction 19 

with those measures? 20 

   The FMAT talked at length about how the 21 

measures are currently applied and if there may be a 22 

better way, given the life history of this species, to 23 

apply those same tools but a little bit differently. 24 
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   However, it would require a lot more 1 

work, a lot more examination of how some of these species 2 

are managed in the Southeast -- you know, at the 3 

Southeast Center, with the South Atlantic Fishery 4 

Management Council for some of those Caribbean species 5 

where they have far more protogynous hermaphrodites 6 

that they're dealing with. 7 

   So, if it's something that the Council 8 

is interested in, the FMAT would need additional time 9 

to explore some of those options for the Council.  Does 10 

the Council want the FMAT to explore restrictions on 11 

data disaggregation and use under these alternatives? 12 

   This was something that the FMAT raised 13 

actually two meetings ago, this idea that given the data 14 

is likely less precise compared to the summer flounder 15 

information, there may be issues with disaggregating 16 

it, and there could be ways that we could set up limits 17 

on the way that that information is used, say for 18 

regional approaches. 19 

     -- the standard error for the MRFFS 20 

estimate.  It's actually written into the plan, so if 21 

you want to decided to take the data either by mode or 22 

area, you have to have a minimum level of precision in 23 

order to develop measures relative to that. 24 
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   So along those lines that might be the 1 

types of things we might explore.  But, again, the FMAT 2 

needs to know if that's something that you're interested 3 

in. 4 

   The FMAT also noted that the Council may 5 

want to give consideration to the overall management 6 

approaches for the black sea bass fisheries, not just 7 

recreational but also commercial. 8 

   We know we have some of these life 9 

history issues.  We know there may be other strategies 10 

that are more appropriate, maybe integrating spacial 11 

approaches or applying tools differently.  It may be 12 

something that you want to consider on the commercial 13 

side as well. 14 

   All right.  So those are the questions 15 

that the FMAT has raised as a general framework of some 16 

of the alternatives that they've discussed.  And at 17 

this point, we're just looking for feedback for further 18 

development as a first step to take this to the Board 19 

when you meet jointly with them in December and then 20 

beyond to actually develop a full amendment, a document 21 

and either an EA or EIS as appropriate. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  23 

Thank you, Jessica.  And it sounds like the FMAT has 24 
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raised a number of issues that are perhaps broader than 1 

the original discussion we had at the Council.  I 2 

appreciate those. 3 

   One of them relates to generally the 4 

management strategy for the species related back to its 5 

life history, and so you talk about exploring the 6 

possibility of trying to protect spawning aggregations 7 

during peak spawning periods. 8 

   Would we need to address that in the 9 

amendment, or could that simply be handled through 10 

specifications with a spawning season closure, or would 11 

that have to be broken down on a more regional basis in 12 

order to be effective? 13 

   I mean did the FMAT talk about how those 14 

might work?  And do they fall outside of our current 15 

ability within the specification process to deal with 16 

that, or would it require inclusion in an amendment? 17 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, we didn't talk 18 

at length whether it would be an amendment or specs that 19 

we would need to address some of those issues; however, 20 

it is clear that the current tools, either size, 21 

possession limit, or season, those can already be 22 

addressed through specs.  So, if it is simply a temporal 23 

closure, like you want to have your closed season during 24 
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a specific time period, you probably could address that 1 

right through specs.  If it's something that you wanted 2 

to permanently codify in the FMP, you may want to address 3 

that through an amendment. 4 

   If you go towards spacial closures where 5 

you're actually closing areas or things like that, you 6 

may need to do that through an amendment.  But we didn't 7 

have a lengthy discussion of what mechanisms we would 8 

need to do those things. 9 

   I think that's something that -- if it's 10 

something that you want to do, the FMAT would have to 11 

work with general counsel and figure out what the best 12 

way is to make that happen. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  14 

Thank you.  And just in order to facilitate the 15 

discussion, is this your first question up here, or is 16 

that the last slide on it?  I don't know if you want to 17 

go back to the first set of questions, but.  Why don't 18 

we go ahead and have questions for Jessica, and then 19 

we'll move into the discussion.  Pete. 20 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Yes.  Thank you, 21 

Mr. Chairman.  I have a quick question for Jessica and 22 

just to be sure I'm on the right foundation.  The 23 

genesis of this topic came out of the December joint 24 
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meeting, and when you say catch rates in the northern 1 

versus the southern rate, isn't that more clearly 2 

defined as the catch rates because of the catch in state 3 

waters versus the EEZ that are advantaging certain 4 

northern states?  Isn't that the whole heart of the 5 

problem, which is why we're thinking about regions in 6 

the first place? 7 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, you're right.  8 

In the northern states, more of the fishery, 9 

recreational fishery, is prosecuted in state waters.  10 

Which in the southern states it's prosecuted more 11 

extensively in federal waters. 12 

   There are differences when the FMAT was 13 

talking about the catch rates as well that the average 14 

catch per angler trip is higher in those northern areas 15 

and just in terms of the magnitude, that in conjunction 16 

with the magnitude of effort just results in more 17 

landings. 18 

   And you'll recall last December the 19 

northern states had had some substantial overages, 20 

where the southern states had come in under what they 21 

had -- lower than -- excuse me -- they landed less than 22 

what they had the prior year. 23 

   The northern states were landing more 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 151

'cause we're on a coastwide basis here.  So it was that 1 

they were landing more.  So those were the differences 2 

that were originally pointed out.  What the FMAT was 3 

trying to get a handle on is:  Beyond that what else is 4 

really the issue that you're looking to address so that 5 

we can hone in on what types of options would best 6 

address it. 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  8 

Rick. 9 

   RICHARD COLE:  Thank you, 10 

Mr. Chairman.  Jessica, did the FMAT offer any kind of 11 

insight into why this shift has, in fact, occurred in 12 

the recreational harvest? 13 

   And I'm looking here at your Table 3 that 14 

you gave us back in the December briefing book, and it 15 

clearly shows that shift, for example, in 1997, 96 16 

percent of the rec harvest occurred in the New Jersey 17 

to Virginia area; and then in 2010 that same area only 18 

had 26 percent of the recreational harvest.  So that 19 

shift is clearly in my mind the underpinning for this 20 

whole process. 21 

   But did the FMAT have any kind of idea 22 

or input on what has caused this shift?  I am not aware 23 

of hearing anybody come up with a theory on this or any 24 
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kind of idea about this.  I'm just curious whether that 1 

discussion occurred. 2 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, they have 3 

talked about some of the differences in those landing 4 

levels.  The FMAT didn't get into that in a lot of detail 5 

on this past call.  Their previous meeting they had 6 

talked about it a little bit.  But it had also been 7 

suggested at the Monitoring Committee meetings that we 8 

held back in July, moving into the meeting, the meeting 9 

of the previous year -- excuse me -- that some of the 10 

Monitoring Committee members thought their estimates 11 

were quite low for some of their states. 12 

   I think Maryland had a pretty low 13 

estimate for the individual state and had suggested that 14 

maybe the surveys weren't capturing those components of 15 

the fishery as well. 16 

   Because we're assessing throughout the 17 

management unit, there isn't anything in the assessment 18 

that has suggested why there might be those differences. 19 

   On a biological basis, Gary Shepherd had 20 

noted that we see those differences in catch rates, but 21 

that the growth rates in the northern and the southern 22 

areas are similar, and within the stock there appears 23 

to be adequate mixing genetically for it to be a single 24 
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genetic unit.  So that's pretty much all I know and all 1 

I'm aware of. 2 

   RICHARD COLE:  Okay.  Were the FMAT 3 

aware that this is the primary interest in this 4 

particular amendment, to address this shift?  Now, 5 

they've offered some other suggestions here that I think 6 

need to be looked at.  I'd like to see them looked at.  7 

But how to deal with this shift and make it fair to most 8 

all the states is the issue we have to address here with 9 

this amendment.  Thank you. 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  11 

Jack. 12 

   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  I don't have a 13 

question.  I was just getting ready to make some 14 

comments on some of the questions that the FMAT had of 15 

us.  But it seems to me in addition to the problem that 16 

Rick just mentioned, that the problem that we're trying 17 

to solve here is the fact that one set of regulations 18 

doesn't have the same impact up and down the coast when 19 

we're trying to cut back catch. 20 

   A closed season that might work in 21 

Massachusetts doesn't work in Virginia.  In fact, I'd 22 

go so far to say that the closed season in Maryland that 23 

might achieve the catch reductions that we want doesn't 24 
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work very well even in Virginia as close as we are. 1 

   So, I mean that's one of the problems 2 

we're trying to solve is allowing flexibility within the 3 

states to do what needs to be done but done in a way that 4 

one state doesn't suffer more of the burden than the 5 

others. 6 

   Exactly where we were, what, 10 years 7 

ago with summer flounder we're now there on sea bass.  8 

It wasn't an issue in the past with sea bass because the 9 

stock was healthy and the kinds of closed seasons and 10 

other measures that we had in place weren't that 11 

burdensome; but now we're in a situation where the 12 

stock's not all that health, and we're having to 13 

implement some pretty lengthy season closures.  And the 14 

same season just doesn't work up and down the Atlantic 15 

coast. 16 

   I mean I know there's a lot of folks 17 

around the table that don't particularly like 18 

conservation equivalency and how difficult that has 19 

made our lives under summer flounder, but there's got 20 

to be some portion of that that we can implement here 21 

for sea bass to help solve that problem. 22 

   I also like the idea exploring the 23 

spawning season closures up and down the coast.  And, 24 
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of course, those are going to have to vary, too.  Right? 1 

   I mean fish aren't spawning at the same 2 

time up and down the coast, so it's going to put you right 3 

into a situation of having different regulations just 4 

based on spawning area closures.  That's all I have for 5 

now. 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  7 

Okay.  Thanks, Jack.  Mike Luisi and then Red. 8 

   MICHAEL LUISI:  Yeah. I wanted to add to 9 

the question that Rick had and Jessica answered.  But 10 

one of the theories that we've discussed as far as this 11 

shifting in the catch rate is based on as the size limit 12 

has increased over the last few years, it has impacted 13 

some of the more shore-based fisheries that can 14 

sometimes depending on MRFF's estimates can contribute 15 

significantly to the overall estimate. 16 

   So, over the course of a couple years if 17 

you increase your size limits by a few inches and lose 18 

that component, it can be a significant difference in 19 

your overall estimate in any year.  So that was just 20 

another theory that we had been talking about. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  22 

Thank you, Mike.  Red. 23 

   RED MUNDEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  24 
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I think that this council has to seriously look at the 1 

concept of spawning season closures as well as shifting 2 

your fishing pressure from the large males to the 3 

smaller females. 4 

   Essentially, the Council has already 5 

implemented some or are in the process of implementing 6 

spawning season closures.  But a question I have for 7 

Jessica:  If you look at the Monitoring Committee 8 

report, on page three at the top, it says:  Recreational 9 

fishery closures that coincide with peak spawning 10 

periods may prevent disruption of black sea bass 11 

reproductive activities.   12 

   Is there anything in this proposed 13 

amendment that would prevent us from including 14 

commercial spawning season closures?  Because the 15 

commercial sector is allocated 49 percent of the 16 

harvest, it would seem to me that we would have to 17 

address both commercial and recreational harvest if we 18 

have any spawning season closures. 19 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, right now the 20 

amendment is just to address the recreational fishery, 21 

but the Council can add issues or expand the scope of 22 

the amendment if you think it's appropriate to do so. 23 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  24 
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Other questions for Jessica?  Okay.  Seeing none, why 1 

don't we go ahead and run through the questions that the 2 

FMAT has posed and see if we can provide some further 3 

guidance at this point from the Council. 4 

   The first question relates to the 5 

objective of the amendment, and so the FMAT requests 6 

further input on the objectives of the spacial regional 7 

management strategy as the Council wants to consider 8 

what is the specific problem the Council's trying to 9 

solve beyond an increase in catch rate, catch rates in 10 

northern states when compared to southern states. 11 

   And it's going back to the genesis of 12 

this.  I mean at that December meeting last year, we 13 

were confronted with a situation where we had 14 

differential performance within the fishery that we 15 

didn't really have the management tools to address.  16 

The current FMP as it's constructed doesn't give us the 17 

flexibility to deal with that situation, so we wanted 18 

to address that through an amendment and develop tools 19 

that would allow us to deal with that change in the 20 

performance of the fishery and try to achieve measures 21 

that were fair to the different member states and 22 

different regions. 23 

   That was the beginning.  But now the 24 
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FMAT in their analysis has raised some additional 1 

questions that are worth considering.  This issue 2 

related to, for example, the spawning time and area 3 

closures may, in fact, result in potentially a more 4 

productive fishery. 5 

   I think they've raised a number of 6 

questions here that are of a broader scale that we might 7 

benefit from some discussion on.  But, again, the 8 

original purpose was trying to develop management tools 9 

that would allow us to deal with the change in the nature 10 

of the fishery and be a little bit more detailed in our 11 

management measures so that we could develop measures 12 

that were fair to all the different regions within the 13 

fishery. 14 

   Are there additional thoughts in 15 

response to this first question about whether there are 16 

other issues besides this differential performance in 17 

the fishery that we want to look at.  John. 18 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. 19 

Chair.  There's another issue, too.  From the SSC's 20 

point of view, the issue that we were wrestling with also 21 

is the results of the tagging studies that Gary 22 

Shepherd's done on black sea bass. 23 

   My understanding at least is that those 24 
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results showed that there is less intermixing of the 1 

northern and southern component than originally was 2 

assumed, that the black sea bass do not mix as much as 3 

move inshore or offshore during the seasons. 4 

   And that was one of the main stimuli for 5 

having the SSC request a term of reference in the 6 

upcoming assessment, SARC, that looks at that issue, 7 

asks the SARC or the SARC panel of the assessment process 8 

to look at that issue in a little more depth to see if 9 

there is justification for having more than one 10 

component because, again, our understanding was that 11 

the tagging study showed that there isn't as much 12 

intermixing of this northern and southern component as 13 

originally thought.  I don't know if Jessica can 14 

comment on that. 15 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, the only thing 16 

I can say is there is some additional work that was done 17 

by Michael Burton down at the Southeast Fishery Science 18 

Center, and he has some results on genetic work that are 19 

not yet published that the assessment work group is 20 

going to be reviewing in conjunction with the 21 

development of the assessment for the next SAW.  So 22 

there is additional information.  I can't say what it 23 

suggests at this point. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

John. 2 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Yeah.  Genetics is one 3 

thing.  I mean the genetic variability may be wide 4 

enough that it would be very difficult to distinguish 5 

individual components, but you still may have a basis 6 

for separating out -- and I'm not talking about southern 7 

component, meaning the south Atlantic states. 8 

   I'm talking about from Cape Hatteras 9 

north there might be more than one component there, and 10 

even though they are genetically similar, they may have 11 

behavioral differences between the two components, and 12 

there is relatively little intermixing.  So that's the 13 

questions that the SSC is asking. 14 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  15 

John, that's an excellent point.  The genetic mixing 16 

can occur within the rates of one or two percent, so that 17 

can mask some of these other demographic issues.  And 18 

I think that the tagging study did show pretty clearly 19 

that there were different movements within our range of 20 

the fishery as it relates to southern New England versus 21 

the area off Chesapeake Bay and Delaware Bay.  Those 22 

movements are all quite different.  So I think trying 23 

to get at those through management tools would be a good 24 
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thing to have.  Chris. 1 

   CHRISTOPHER ZEMAN:  Yeah.  At past 2 

council meeting I believe we were talking about black 3 

sea bass as a potential case study in terms of 4 

incorporating system-based management into our fishery 5 

management as sort of a one-step-at-a-time approach. 6 

   And I think we were discussing sort of 7 

the ecosystem presentation we had earlier this year, and 8 

we were talking about incorporating the habitat 9 

affinity of black sea bass into our stock assessment 10 

process, basically incorporating and addressing that 11 

very strong habitat affinity to structured habitat. 12 

   Much of that includes something like 13 

central fish habitat analysis or some sort of other 14 

options where we actually try to basically look at if 15 

there's some correlations in terms of the quantity and 16 

quality of habitat versus abundance. 17 

   To the extent we can use that as an 18 

example as a sort of one-step approach toward ecosystems 19 

management, I would support that we look at that in this 20 

amendment. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  22 

Other thoughts on this first question?  Why don't we 23 

move through some of the others, and then we can come 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 162

back if we want to build that one up. 1 

   So is the Council interested in further 2 

examination of state-by-state measures or only regional 3 

approaches to narrow the scope of further work on the 4 

amendment?  Jack. 5 

   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  I would hope that we 6 

don't limit the amendment to just regional or just 7 

state-by-state.  I think we need to look at all of 8 

those. 9 

   I'm not convinced that the summer 10 

flounder model is the correct one, but this might be an 11 

opportunity to sort of start there and pick that apart 12 

and pull out the best parts of it and discard those 13 

points that aren't so good to come up with a better model 14 

I guess.  15 

   But, for example, one of the points of 16 

contention, I think, with the summer flounder is it's 17 

based on a single year for allocation purposes.  I think 18 

1998.  So I would suggest that's something we would want 19 

to avoid when we look at the various options here. 20 

   And it seems to me picking those base 21 

years is the way to solve the shift that Rick talked 22 

about from the South to the North.  If you pick the right 23 

set of base years, you can reshift it the other way I 24 
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suppose or at least head it in the right direction.  But 1 

that's my point of view.  I would hope that we look at 2 

a broad range of options at least for public comment. 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  4 

Jack, I would think, too, if you think back to the summer 5 

flounder example, part of the problem we've had with 6 

that is that that's been a static allocation, and the 7 

fish have in some part redistributed. 8 

   And that's one of the issues that's in 9 

play here.  We have differential performance within the 10 

fishery and within the stock.  And I would think that 11 

as we go through this, we would at least want to explore 12 

models that might allow for some dynamic response to 13 

distributions of fish. 14 

   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  The other thing I 15 

would mention -- and Steve and I just talked about this 16 

real briefly -- is some type of sunset or 17 

reconsideration; if we were to go state-by-state, some 18 

re-evaluation of that periodically maybe based on the 19 

status of the stock so that we're not locked into a given 20 

scenario forevermore like we seem to be with summer 21 

flounder. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Pete 23 

Himchak. 24 
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   PETER HIMCHAK:  Yes, thank you, Mr. 1 

Chairman.  Before we leave, I guess the slide that just 2 

went up that Jessica just put up I guess the question 3 

to me is:  Yes; we want to look at the regional aspect 4 

and the mixing aspect, as John brought up, through the 5 

tagging. 6 

   Because I remember distinctly when we 7 

developed the ASMFC addendum in the Powerpoint 8 

presentation there was a discussion on the lack or 9 

behavioral separation as it were and the suggestion that 10 

perhaps maybe it was the Hudson Canyon that was -- you 11 

know, somehow influencing the mixing of the two stocks. 12 

   And then when we developed options in 13 

the addendum, it was New York above and New Jersey south 14 

and then New Jersey above and Delaware south.  And it's 15 

like I didn't want to end up in a situation like what 16 

we have with scup where New Jersey is kind of like we 17 

don't know where we belong. 18 

   So I ask that in a regional 19 

approach -- and I might be ahead of the amendment process 20 

here.  I'm sorry.  But in the amendment process, I mean 21 

we were like an in-betweener.  So I ask for a third 22 

option:  You would have these distinct regions, but New 23 

Jersey would sit there as its own region only because 24 
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I still don't know who we belong with on the scup issue.  1 

So, yeah, I'd like to see this further explored at the 2 

basis for declining regions. 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  4 

Okay.  Thank you.  Steve Heins. 5 

   STEVEN HEINS:  Yeah.  Thank you.  I 6 

just wanted to address this specific issue and comments 7 

that Jack made.  Obviously, state-by-state really 8 

hasn't worked for New York in the summer flounder 9 

example. 10 

   And I see evaluation of using 11 

state-by-state measures as problematic because of the 12 

data we have to work with.  I recognize that there's a 13 

need that the folks have, and those needs are 14 

sociopolitical. 15 

   They're based on the way the fisheries 16 

are operated.  And that's certainly justification for 17 

leaving it in the plan.  I wouldn't object to this 18 

moving forward for public comment with an evaluation of 19 

state-by-state, but I think from our perspective, we're 20 

opposed to that for a number of reasons. 21 

   I just want to say to Pete:  I think that 22 

if you split New Jersey down the middle, it's easy to 23 

do it that way; the north goes up with us. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Yeah.  We can complicate it in a minute.  Okay.  Red. 2 

   RED MUNDEN:  Yes.  Thank you, 3 

Mr. Chairman.  For the management of the summer 4 

flounder recreational fishery in North Carolina 5 

conservation equivalency has worked very well.  We have 6 

supported it since day one.  It does take a lot of effort 7 

on the part of the staff.  But we feel like it's 8 

absolutely critical that we continue to manage summer 9 

flounder with conservation equivalency.  And we'd like 10 

to see this approach at least investigated for black sea 11 

bass. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  13 

Thank you, Red.  Other thoughts in response to this 14 

question?  Mike. 15 

   MICHAEL LUISI:  I have to echo what 16 

Steve just said.  I'm completely supportive of this 17 

amendment continuing on and moving forward.  And as I 18 

had thought about where we might be with this process, 19 

the state-by-state issue comes up whether or not we go 20 

to a full state-by-state allocation and management. 21 

   And all I can think about when I think 22 

of state-by-state conservation equivalency is flounder 23 

and the suffering and what we had to do over the last 24 
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four, five or six years to get to a point now where I 1 

think with flounder management we're in a pretty decent 2 

place.  At least I know in our state we are.  We've kind 3 

of found that balance.  And in order to take this out 4 

to public comment, I would recommend that we continue 5 

to consider state-by-state options, yet I do have some 6 

serious reservations about how that could play out 7 

ultimately in the end at the conclusion of this process.  8 

Thanks. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  10 

Thanks, Mike.  Frank. 11 

   FRANK BLOUNT:  Yes.  Thank you, 12 

Mr. Chairman.  I would agree.  I think the 13 

state-by-state should be in there as an option.  But I 14 

think part of the problems, if you look back at New 15 

York's situation and other states, isn't so much the 16 

state-by-state but in how the allocation was picked or 17 

the base years or in some cases a particular year. 18 

   I was very intrigued this morning when 19 

I heard Red giving the report on how they kind of thought 20 

outside the box.  I think he said you chose 50 percent 21 

of an allocation based on a long period of time and 50 22 

percent on the most recent years. 23 

   And not that that's necessarily the way 24 
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to go, but it just shows that there's other ways to 1 

approach the allocation issue, which takes in past and 2 

current participation. 3 

   And I think that would be worth 4 

something looking into.  I don't know -- I caught part 5 

of what he said this morning looking at it in the 6 

document, but I think that was interesting approach. 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  8 

John. 9 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  Thank you, 10 

Mr. Chairman.  I guess I'm just going to reiterate what 11 

a lot of folks around this table are saying, and that's 12 

I can't help but look at this and see summer flounder 13 

and how New York has gotten the short end of the stick. 14 

   But I would support moving forward with 15 

the state-by-state theory if there was a mechanism put 16 

in place that would allow us to revisit the allocation 17 

on a regular basis in something as short as every two 18 

or three years because fisheries do change, and states 19 

that don't have a big allocation end up suffering. 20 

   States that do and have less fish end up 21 

just gaining their size and bag limit so they can take 22 

more fish.  And I can see this becoming another summer 23 

flounder situation unless we formalize a method to 24 
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revisit it.  Thanks. 1 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  2 

Thank you, John.  Other thoughts on this section?  Go 3 

ahead, Pete. 4 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Well, I'll just weigh 5 

in on the concept that Steve brought up and John.  I mean 6 

just recently through the ASMFC, yeah, how do you come 7 

up with a state share on spiny dogfish; and, boy, it was 8 

an intricate formula.  We gave each state a base amount 9 

as an equal share, and then we took a historical period 10 

and gave that a certain weighting scheme, and then we 11 

took the current landings and made that a weighting 12 

scheme, and we rolled them all into that nine options, 13 

and it got done. 14 

   And so, yeah, there is a creative 15 

mechanism to not stick with what we constantly hear on 16 

summer flounder and people being upset.  I know we even 17 

put in the addendum that we would revisit the allocation 18 

percentages every three years.  So states can work it 19 

out.  And that's what we're doing. 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Go 21 

ahead. 22 

   UNIDENTIFIED:  Actually, I have a 23 

question for Jessica regarding the data.  We could 24 
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expect to have less precise data if we do go to 1 

state-by-state or even a regional system.  Is that the 2 

case with MRIP as well?  Is there some sort of mechanism 3 

in MRIP that would reduce that error? 4 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, one of the 5 

issues that MRIP was supposed to address from the NRC 6 

was how they calculated their estimates of precision 7 

because the NRC suspected that the precision of the 8 

estimates was artificially low. 9 

   So, while I don't have the final 10 

estimates under MRIP in hand -- none of us do -- and we 11 

don't know what those levels of precision are going to 12 

be, we do expect that they're going to change under the 13 

new estimation process.  And John's got his hand up.  14 

He's involved with MRIP, and he has a comment. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

John. 17 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Yeah.  As with any 18 

survey, the more specific you are in your resolution, 19 

getting down to state level, you're going to lose some 20 

precision in your estimate.  It will be more variable. 21 

   Under MRIP, though, the states, as under 22 

MRFFS, the states have the option of putting more 23 

sampling into their state to reduce the variance on 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 171

their estimates. 1 

   So it could be handled state-by-state, 2 

but as a general rule, the more finer the resolution you 3 

have in your spacial estimates the higher the variance 4 

is going to be, the more uncertain. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Thank you, John.  Are there any comments from the public 7 

about this specific question, that is, moving forward 8 

with pursuing state-by-state and regional models for 9 

managing the fishery?  Adam. 10 

   ADAM NOWALSKI:  Thank you, 11 

Mr. Chairman.  Adam Nowalski.  Let me just start off by 12 

expressing my sincere condolences for the passing of 13 

fellow Council member Mr. Wheatly.  I had numerous 14 

conversations with him, and he'll certainly be missed 15 

here.  And I extend my condolences to his friends and 16 

family.   17 

   With regards to the moving ahead of this 18 

amendment and some of the questions that have been 19 

raised here before, I'll touch on this one and the last 20 

question:  What are we trying to accomplish here?  And 21 

I'll save additional comments as we move forward to some 22 

of the other questions. 23 

   First off, with regard to the amendment 24 
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as a whole, certainly support moving forward with this 1 

process.  When I think about, though, what is the 2 

genesis of why are we here dealing with this right now, 3 

I have to go back to the reason why we're here is because 4 

of the quota that we have today. 5 

   If we were dealing with a quota of a five 6 

to six million pound level, something that approximates 7 

the historic level of landings that we've seen 8 

throughout the last decade, we wouldn't have been having 9 

so many discussions that we've had with regards to 10 

taking cuts and now paying in one area that shouldn't 11 

be shared by somebody else because of a disproportionate 12 

share of the landings. 13 

   So that's one of the issues that we're 14 

really trying to address.  And where is the real 15 

underlying problem here with regards to the science, and 16 

a lot of that is really coming out of the method that 17 

we're using.  Now, I understand that the Council can't 18 

sit here today and just implement a new mechanism, but 19 

I hope that one of the things that we all continue to 20 

realize is that it is a stock that there continues to 21 

be a lot of research on. 22 

   There is a lot of research that was done 23 

within a few miles of this very room with regard to 24 
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tagging studies conducted by Rutgers in this past summer 1 

and early spring that is continuing to yield a lot of 2 

information. 3 

   And I think that one of the real 4 

shortcomings of the science that we're dealing with is 5 

the current fishery independent method of conducting a 6 

trawl survey to sample a species that is highly site 7 

fidelity specific is a real issue. 8 

   And I hope that as science moves forward 9 

given unlimited time and unlimited resources that I wish 10 

we could all provide to the process, we'd be able to 11 

implement some better processes here so that the 12 

fisheries independent process could go ahead and yield 13 

better information for species like this, which will 14 

hopefully yield better data as we move forward. 15 

   So I really think that that's one of the 16 

issues, the challenges, that we're faced with.  So I 17 

appreciate the Council's efforts, the Commission's 18 

efforts in the past year to go ahead and provide some 19 

more type of regional-based management, but let's not 20 

lose sight of the fact that we're still fishing at 21 

historic levels.  It's not a case that we're suddenly 22 

fishing at levels that far exceed the past decade.  23 

That's not reality. 24 
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   We've been fishing at levels that are 1 

about where we've been over the course of the last 2 

decade.  So I think that's important to understand.  3 

With regards to the state-by-state measures, I think 4 

that it's important, as you've heard around the table 5 

here today, to consider both state-by-state and the 6 

regional approaches. 7 

   I think there's been a lot of pain shared 8 

by certain states at certain times with regard to the 9 

state-by-state approach, but I certainly think that it 10 

needs to be considered as we move forward with this. 11 

   And, again, I look forward to sharing 12 

comments as well about some of the other questions, and 13 

I'll hold them until the discussion about those.  Thank 14 

you. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

Thank you, Adam.  Further comments on the question?  I 17 

think what I'm hearing from the members is a consensus 18 

for moving forward with developing both ranges of 19 

options at least state-by-state and regional.  I would 20 

just suggest that I think Jack pointed out that as we 21 

move forward with this, it would be important to really 22 

go through the summer flounder model if we're looking 23 

at state-by-state and really break that down in detail 24 
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and see what's worked well and what hasn't worked well. 1 

   One concern I would have, too, about 2 

going to that model as it is today is the fact that now 3 

the Council after the Reauthorization Act is 4 

responsible for the AMs and the ACLs and we have this 5 

new overlay that we're responsible for, and it is a new 6 

operating paradigm. 7 

   And the way it's set up now under 8 

conservation equivalency, the Commission ends up 9 

setting the final measures at the state level, and the 10 

Council doesn't have a final say in any of those 11 

measures. 12 

   So I would just suggest that as we go 13 

through this, if we go to a state-by-state model, we try 14 

to develop mechanisms whereby the Commission and 15 

Council can both stay together through the whole process 16 

so that we jointly make decisions and share that 17 

responsibility because otherwise we run the risk of a 18 

disconnect, and I think under the new ACL/AM 19 

requirements we have some potential problems there.  20 

So, if we're going to go state-by-state, I would just 21 

suggest that we explore the governance structure also 22 

about how we're going to make decisions in the process.   23 

   The next question is:  Does the Council 24 
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want the FMAT to move forward with approaches to 1 

allocation for each alternatives based on base years? 2 

   And I think we've already had some 3 

comments that people would not want to see a single year 4 

used, but rather a range of alternatives that would 5 

bring some innovation to bear on it. 6 

   And I think also as a matter of principal 7 

would want to have an adaptive approach to it.  In other 8 

words, we wouldn't want to simply have a static 9 

allocation, but something that could be revisited on a 10 

frequent basis to ensure that it's fair and it's 11 

responsive to the distribution of fish. 12 

   And I don't think it would have to be 13 

formulaic in that regard, but we could at least have a 14 

commitment right up front to revisit those allocations 15 

periodically.  Jessica, do you have a question? 16 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Yeah, I did.  I think 17 

I've got a lot of ideas in terms of different ways of 18 

approaching the base years here.  But moving back to the 19 

prior question in terms of the 20 

state-by-state and the regional, there are two types of 21 

mandatory regional alternatives that are in there.  One 22 

is to have essentially a mandatory, fixed region up 23 

front.  The other alternative was to have regions that 24 
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must be developed by the Commission after you meet 1 

jointly.  So it would be through the Commission's 2 

process.  So you wouldn't know what those regions are 3 

going to be up front.  They would have to go through 4 

their process of development. 5 

   And while I've got the Council here, are 6 

you interested in the development of both of those types 7 

of mandatory regional options for purposes of public 8 

hearings? 9 

   Do you have one approach that you're not 10 

interested in that we could trim from the document?  I'm 11 

fine either way, but while we've got everyone together 12 

to get input, I think it's something that the FMAT was 13 

looking for input on as well 'cause those were two 14 

approaches we had brain-stormed. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

Jessica, what would the Council's role be in the model 17 

whereby the regions are developed after we've met?  Are 18 

you suggesting that they would not be developed in a 19 

joint setting? 20 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  No.  I can scroll up 21 

to the two alternatives.  I've got them up here.  So for 22 

the Alternative 2B(2) essentially the Commission would 23 

have guidelines, which are similar to what we do under 24 
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the state-by-state conservation equivalency.  So the 1 

Commission would be tasked with developing regions, and 2 

there would be guidelines, such as the regions must have 3 

at least two states -- you know, whatever the criteria 4 

might be; and then the Commission would simply submit 5 

those regional measures to NMFS at the end of their 6 

process so that the feds can consider weighting those 7 

measures. 8 

   But the former alternative 2B(1) it 9 

would be a fixed region that would be established both 10 

in the Council and Commission's FMP so when you met in 11 

December, you would jointly vote on what the measures 12 

would be for both region as well as a precautionary 13 

default measure and a coastwide similar to what you do 14 

for summer flounder, and then the Commission would meet 15 

to submit their states measures in May or June once 16 

they've gone into place to get the federal measures 17 

waived.  So those are the two types of approaches that 18 

the FMAT has brain-stormed. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 20 

think the one that keeps us together jointly is the one 21 

that probably gives us the best chance of a 22 

collaborative outcome.  But I would ask around the 23 

table what the thoughts are.  Jack. 24 
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   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  As much or as vocal 1 

as the minority has been against state-by-state, it 2 

surprises me that with respect to summer flounder we 3 

still have never had states join up in regions, and I 4 

can't quite figure that out.  I'm convinced that 5 

regions under any circumstance aren't going to work; 6 

otherwise, we would have done them already.  All the 7 

states have opportunities to do it voluntarily for years 8 

under summer flounder, and nobody has tried it; nobody's 9 

willing to do that. 10 

   Unless something is totally different 11 

about sea bass, are we wasting our time even talking 12 

about regions?  I don't know. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  14 

Well, I think Jessica has pointed out there are some data 15 

limitations here that are a little bit different than 16 

what we've dealt with under summer flounder.  That's 17 

one consideration. 18 

   I think the other is the point you made 19 

earlier about what are the characteristics of the 20 

fishery off Virginia versus Maryland, Delaware.  I 21 

think that analysis, a review of the characteristics of 22 

those fisheries state-by-state and when the fish are 23 

available inshore versus offshore and the size 24 
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characteristics of the fish that are available for each 1 

of those states within the region would be informative 2 

to the discussion about what might be an appropriate 3 

region if we were going to go to regions, or how fine 4 

would those scales have to be or how broad could they 5 

be and still be relevant and responsive to this basic 6 

problem.  Mike. 7 

   MICHAEL LUISI:  Thank you, Mr. 8 

Chairman.  Jack, I can't disagree with you because 9 

we're not a region yet.  But I think that there were so 10 

many drastic changes with flounder, just talking about 11 

flounder. 12 

   States took such drastic measures to 13 

achieve the reductions that were necessary that it 14 

separated them more greatly than they are now, and 15 

that's just thinking about how our regulations relate 16 

to Virginia and Delaware. 17 

   I find that we're getting closer 18 

together.  Ultimately, I would prefer if we could move 19 

to some type of region.  And you guys can consider that 20 

an invitation for discussion on that as well.  So, 21 

thanks. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  But, 23 

Mike, if we were to move the more regional model, the 24 
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question there as far as the options that are in the 1 

document are whether we would want to determine that  2 

jointly and what those regions are going to be, as 3 

opposed to simply handing it over to the Commission.  At 4 

that point the Council's out of it.  I guess I would be 5 

concerned about that model.  Peter and then Steve. 6 

   PETER deFUR:  Thank you, 7 

Mr. Chairman.  Just thinking about the regional concept 8 

and the difference among the states is that for black 9 

sea bass I think would be the case more so than the 10 

flounder there are probably nonpolitical differences 11 

that would be more sensible in terms of regions because 12 

of basic biology of the species, which creates a 13 

different sort of approach to it because then you'd be 14 

splitting them up according to the way the fish occur 15 

in time and probably more so in space. 16 

   So I don't know that you'd divide 17 

New Jersey in half, but the Hudson Canyon might be a more 18 

significant feature than any political boundary, which 19 

means the state-by-state or the region both of them are 20 

going to run into problems with the way the animals live. 21 

   So I don't know how the FMAT can deal 22 

with that, or if they can help us out, or if they're going 23 

to just say, yeah, well, deal with it. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Well, maybe the tagging study that was done previously 2 

I think in 2008 or '9 might be of interest there in terms 3 

of trying to put together some of those regions.  Steve. 4 

   STEVEN HEINS:  Thanks.  I think we need 5 

to leave the regional approach in the document as 6 

opposed to state-by-state in fairness.  Leave the 7 

regional approach in the document.  But I just want to 8 

say that, Jack, we've tried.  We've sent letters.  I 9 

guess we're just the ugly person at the dance.  Nobody 10 

wants to be in a region with us.  But we would have 11 

gladly been a regional with just about anybody, so. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  No 13 

comment.  All right.  Pete. 14 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Yes.  I guess to make 15 

Jack a little happier, I'll be a little more vocal in 16 

saying that if you went with regional, New Jersey would 17 

like to be its own region.  So by extrapolation we prove 18 

further state-by-state issue. 19 

   And through ecological equivalency we 20 

like to be like masters of our own fate.  If we foul up 21 

in any given year, if we get too liberal when we 22 

shouldn't have been, then we pay for it. 23 

   And, yeah, I know going down this road 24 
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is asking a lot of the data, but hey, we've been pretty 1 

successful with summer flounder.  Nobody likes our 2 

allocation, but our track record in pleasing our 3 

fishermen and keeping the fishery going is pretty good.  4 

So I'll endorse the state-by-state, obviously. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  That 6 

means you're not dancing with Steve? 7 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  No, not at all. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I saw 9 

Greg had his hand up. 10 

   GREG DIDOMENICO:  Thank you, 11 

Mr. Chairman.  Just a quick question to Jessica, if I 12 

could.  Jessica, when I was on the FMAT call, I forgot 13 

to ask a question because I think we sort of ran out of 14 

time.  Has there been any discussion about the impact 15 

of the scup fishery on the black sea bass fishery and 16 

visa versa? 17 

   In other words, every time we sort of 18 

talk about black sea bass and scup, they're a fishery 19 

in the recreational and the for-hire sector that do 20 

coincide with one another.  So has the FMAT considered 21 

that maybe scup should be added to this to sort of 22 

facilitate in both fisheries?  Thank you. 23 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Sure.  The FMAT 24 
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didn't really talk about the scup fishery on the call 1 

but from past monitoring committee discussions they had 2 

talked about the relationship between the scup and the 3 

sea bass recreational fishery particularly for the 4 

party charter mode and those types of modes that fish 5 

in conjunction for them. 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Yes.  7 

Jim. 8 

   JAMES LOVGREN:  Thanks, Rich.  In 9 

regard to the lowering the minimum size of the bass, I 10 

think you really ought to look into that.  Okay.  One, 11 

you're mentioning you're be able to more balance sex 12 

ratio on the landings, which is preferable.   13 

   14 

   But, two, it would also reduce discards, 15 

regulatory discards and the mortality of those 16 

discards, which could eventually lead to increases in 17 

the quota.  I think it's a very important thing to 18 

consider that.  I've been a proponent of smaller fish 19 

sizes all the time, not in the commercial industry 20 

because the smaller we get the less marketable those 21 

fish are. 22 

   But the recreational guys they catch 23 

this fish; it's small; let them bring it in.  It's not 24 
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going to hurt anything 'cause chances are it's going to 1 

float away dead, and a sea gull eats them. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  3 

Thanks, Jim.  Are there any further thoughts about the 4 

Council's preference if we were to agree to go to 5 

regional models, about whether you prefer to have a 6 

model that keeps the Commission and Council jointly 7 

involved in the process of establishing the regions as 8 

opposed to simply having a voluntary regional model that 9 

gets handed over to the Commission and takes the Council 10 

out of it?  Jack. 11 

   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  Just one last 12 

comment.  I would prefer the model that keeps both the 13 

Commission and the Council engaged in the decision 14 

process. 15 

   I think when we start to go off our -- 16 

when just one group is making the decision, I think it 17 

can separate us.  I don't think the resource or the 18 

fishermen are served.  When that happens, there's 19 

potential for problems.  I guess I would be supportive 20 

of the model that has both Commission and Council making 21 

the decisions. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Any 23 

other discussion on that?  Steve. 24 
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   STEVEN HEINS:  I agree completely with 1 

Jack. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Is 3 

there any objection to then moving forward with that, 4 

if we're going to have regional options that we seek to 5 

preserve Council and Commission jointly on it?  Why 6 

don't we do that. 7 

   The next question the FMAT poses is:  8 

Does the Council want to explore alternative management 9 

systems for black sea bass?  This may include work to 10 

identify potential spawning time and area closures, 11 

potential lowering of the minimum fish size to enable 12 

more balanced sex rations in the landings, and 13 

examination of the present possession bag limit.  Red. 14 

   RED MUNDEN:  I think we should explore 15 

these alternatives for both the recreational and 16 

commercial fisheries.  And if the FMAT says, well, you 17 

know, we just don't have time or the personnel or the 18 

expertise to look at commercial, at least we should go 19 

forward with it with recreational and then fold in 20 

commercial at a later point in time. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  22 

Thanks.  Jack. 23 

   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  I agree with Red.  I 24 
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think we ought to look at these.  Obviously, spawning 1 

closures you're saying it's going to be the life history 2 

and the animal demands it.  It's something easy for the 3 

public to understand. 4 

   I assume we'd have the data to be able 5 

to formulate these.  I guess my question to Jessica is:  6 

This lowering of the minimum fish size do you feel like 7 

you all have enough information to really to be able to 8 

evaluate the benefits of that, or is this just sort of 9 

a concept at this point? 10 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  At this point, all 11 

three of those are general concepts.  While there is 12 

extensive research that's been done on protogynous 13 

hermaphrodites in the South Atlantic and in the 14 

Caribbean, there are not a lot of studies that are 15 

directly on black sea bass. 16 

   And I have a theory that you can't get 17 

a grad student in a dry suit with a clipboard in waters 18 

off of New Jersey versus off of a nice tropical reef.  19 

So a lot of the information we have is by analogy, 20 

looking at red hind, grouper species, other kinds. 21 

   So I think in order to explore these, the 22 

FMAT would have to work in conjunction with people at 23 

the South Atlantic Council, Southeast Center, try to 24 
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pull together all the information that's available, see 1 

what we have available in terms of data, and if we can 2 

evaluate the impacts of changes in those regulations.  3 

So that's pretty much where we are. 4 

   I guess in posing this question, the 5 

FMAT is asking:  Do you want us to take the time to do 6 

that? 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 8 

think one of the considerations that goes into that is 9 

just looking at the last couple years of data the 10 

recreational discards are going up -- the rate at which 11 

recreationally caught fish are being discarded is going 12 

up considerably because the minimum size limits have 13 

gone up so much for some of the states. 14 

   It almost puts us back in a situation 15 

we've had with summer flounder where we're discarding 16 

an overwhelming percentage of the catch.  That works 17 

against the public satisfaction with management of the 18 

resource and probably fishing experience. 19 

   So I think these are important things to 20 

look at if we had the resources to do it and time to do 21 

it while we're engaged in this discussion.  We may as 22 

well at least bring that perspective in and see if we 23 

could make some headway on that question.  Other 24 
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comments on the minimum size or spawning area, seasonal 1 

closure?  John. 2 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  Thank you, 3 

Mr. Chairman.  First, I support this, particularly the 4 

spawning time area closures.  It really makes a lot of 5 

sense.  I don't know why we haven't done it before.  But 6 

I wanted to -- actually, I'm going to save this question 7 

for later.  Go ahead. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  No 9 

problem.  Mike. 10 

   MICHAEL LUISI:  Thank you.  This is a 11 

question for Jessica.  The spawning closures -- and 12 

sometimes these species tend to blend together.  This 13 

isn't the first time that we've or that it's been 14 

discussed whether or not closures should take place 15 

during the spawning period. 16 

   I seem to remember conversations that 17 

we've had regarding reductions that needed to be made 18 

in December when we were setting specifications for the 19 

next year, and at times there were closures within the 20 

spawning period.  Do you have any recollection of that, 21 

or am I thinking of something completely different? 22 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  No.  I think it was 23 

maybe three or four Decembers ago there were really 24 
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substantial reductions that needed to be made, and it 1 

was the Monitoring Committee that had recommended to the 2 

Council and the Board that if they needed to have a 3 

closure, it might make sense to try to have that closure 4 

coincide with those spawning time periods because of the 5 

reproductive behavior that you would expect to get some 6 

greater benefit from closing during those time periods. 7 

   And it was something -- I don't recall 8 

when the closures were put in place.  I don't think 9 

closures that year were lined up with the spawning 10 

period.  I think they were on the tail ends of the season 11 

like we typically do. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  13 

Jessica, how much information does the FMAT have right 14 

now as far as the spacial variation in the spawning 15 

periods throughout the range of the fishery?  In other 16 

words, do you have information on when spawning is 17 

occurring off Virginia versus when it's occurring off 18 

Massachusetts, or is there some information and 19 

literature that you'll be able to draw on in that 20 

discussion? 21 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  There is some 22 

information in the literature.  Gary Shepherd is on our 23 

FMAT, and we have talked with him during the FMAT 24 
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meeting, and we talked in subsequent phone calls that 1 

spawning does occur over a relatively protracted 2 

period, but there's a very strong peak spawning time 3 

period when those fish are spawning very actively, and 4 

then it tapers off relatively quickly.  So he seemed to 5 

think that it was possible if we went through all the 6 

information that a several-week closure could be 7 

identified that might maximize the benefit; but, again, 8 

we'd have to go through all the information and work with 9 

some of the technical experts to figure out what those 10 

specific weeks might be. 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  12 

Okay.  Are there any further thoughts on this?  John. 13 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Yeah.  Another one of 14 

the hats I wear, I'm a member of the South Atlantic SSC.  15 

But I'm not chair, thank goodness.  They are dealing 16 

with groupers and red hind black sea bass down there. 17 

   In terms of looking to the South 18 

Atlantic or the Caribbean for analogous situations and 19 

how they're handling it, I don't think we'll have much 20 

luck.  They're dealing with data that's even more -- 21 

it's data that -- the data sets they're working with are 22 

less than the ones we're working with. 23 

   In other words, they have even less data 24 
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than we have in terms of fishery independent sampling 1 

and sampling of landings and characterization of the 2 

landings and the populations. 3 

   For black sea bass down there, they're 4 

dealing with the same issues we are in their assessment 5 

as well as and the groupers even less data for the 6 

groupers.  So I don't think we'll be able to look down 7 

there to get some idea of how the lowering of the minimum 8 

size limit will enable a more balanced sex ratio.  9 

First, for this protogynous hermaphrodite we got to 10 

figure out what balance is adequate up there.  We don't 11 

even know that.  So it's worth bringing up, but as I 12 

said, the South Atlantic is dealing with even less data 13 

than we have on this type of species. 14 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  John 15 

McMurray. 16 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  Regarding lowering the 17 

size limit, maybe I'm missing something here, but won't 18 

that increase F exponentially at a point where we'd be 19 

facing even more restrictive seasons? 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  21 

Jessica. 22 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Yeah.  The 23 

monitoring -- the FMAT wasn't talking about doing any 24 
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of these things in isolation.  They thought it requires 1 

a comprehensive evaluation of how these measures are 2 

applied. 3 

   And if you did look to do something like 4 

lowering the minimum fish size, it would require an 5 

examination of how you apply the bag limit.  Perhaps the 6 

25 fish possession limit would not be appropriate under 7 

a lower minimum size, and that might want to be taken 8 

in conjunction with some sort of fixed seasonal closure 9 

or spawning time closure to address those issues.  So 10 

they weren't looking at any individual measure in 11 

isolation, but thinking that it's the effect of all of 12 

them in conjunction that you may wish to consider. 13 

   And I do want to comment just really 14 

quickly on John's comment about the limited data.  And 15 

while there is limited data in the South Atlantic, what 16 

the FMAT was looking to were -- there are some research 17 

studies that have been done that do suggest there is a 18 

benefit to spawning closures, the effects of spawning 19 

closures or spacial closures.      20 

   While we may not know what the optimal 21 

sex ratio is, there is information to suggest that 22 

removing all of the large males in a spawning harem 23 

during peak reproductive times is probably not the best 24 
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thing to do. 1 

   Especially, now that you've removed 2 

that male, now all that social hierarchy the fish now 3 

have to re-identify themselves.  You typically have a 4 

female, but then a large female that transitions to a 5 

male over a couple of weeks or maybe other males try to 6 

compete for the group.  I mean it's very complicated. 7 

   So, while we might not have all of the 8 

information, the FMAT did say there is information to 9 

suggest that what we are doing may not be optimum given 10 

the life history strategy.  So we just wanted to make 11 

sure the Council was well informed whatever approach you 12 

take. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  14 

Thank you.  Adam. 15 

   ADAM NOWALSKI:  Thank you again, 16 

Mr. Chairman.  Start with the easy part.  Well, maybe 17 

it's not so easy part of out of this.  But certainly 18 

support the efforts to look at alternative fish sizes 19 

including the minimum and alternative minimum as 20 

potentially something that could provide benefits not 21 

just to the fishery, to the management, but potentially 22 

as a conservation mechanism as well. 23 

   Just to relate an example of what we see 24 
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on the water, a typical six-pack boat before we went to 1 

a 12 1/2 inch size limit at 12 inches, we'd go out in 2 

order to harvest a hundred to a hundred and twenty-five 3 

fish; we'd probably catch three or four hundred fish to 4 

bring home -- you know, a hundred fish or so. 5 

   Now what we're finding -- we went up to 6 

12 1/2 inch size limit.  Now we're finding that we got 7 

to catch six, seven hundred fish in a day to bring home 8 

sixty-five or seventy fish. 9 

   So, when you do the math assuming a 25 10 

percent mortality rate out of what we're discarding, by 11 

doubling our overall catch in the day taking 25 percent 12 

of that as a discard mortality, we're killing more fish 13 

now than we were under a smaller size limit.  I don't 14 

see how that's beneficial to the conservation of the 15 

resource in any way, shape, or form.  And this is data 16 

that could be validated through VTRs or other mechanisms 17 

as well.  So I think going ahead and looking at that is 18 

certainly something beneficial. 19 

   With regard to some of the other things 20 

here in this particular question, spawning, time area 21 

closures, etcetera, one appreciates some of the points 22 

that Dr. Boreman has brought up. 23 

   One, that in some of the earlier slides 24 
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we saw, that the FMAT indicated that north of Cape 1 

Hatteras the stock has shown a single genetic trait, 2 

genetic signature. 3 

   That may very well be true, but as Dr. 4 

Boreman indicated, there are definite behavior 5 

differences within the stock north of Cape Hatteras.  6 

And specifically, I would draw a line almost right here 7 

off of New Jersey where tagging studies have shown that 8 

fish migrate from north of New Jersey, New York, 9 

Massachusetts, Rhode Island to; and when they're found 10 

in those waters, they're caught inshore of 15-20 11 

fathoms. 12 

   They're caught in 50/60 feet of water, 13 

even shallower in the summertime, June, July, August; 14 

and then later in the year they migrate to offshore of 15 

Maryland and Virginia.  The tagging studies show 16 

another component of fish that stays inshore, inshore 17 

of 15 to 20 fathoms, 90 to 120 feet.  These fish migrate 18 

from New Jersey to North Carolina.  And this was clearly 19 

demonstrated, the studies run by Josh Mosher out of 20 

Woods Hole in '05/'06. 21 

   He's done tagging work down here.  I 22 

helped with the tagging on some vessels out of Barneget 23 

here as well as we captured a lot of fish clearly 24 
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demonstrate that there are patterns. 1 

   Even if their genetic signature is the 2 

same, these fish are behaving differently, and we have 3 

to reflect that in the management.  We simply cannot 4 

treat all the fish north of Cape Hatteras the same.  It 5 

simply is not the way these fish behave. 6 

   Now, with regard to the spawning, these 7 

fish also behave differently with regard to how they 8 

spawn.  First of all, if you're going to enact a 9 

spawning closure, you might as well close the entire 10 

season from May through September because these fish 11 

spawn throughout the entire period during that time 12 

frame. 13 

   The tagging work that we've done with 14 

Rutgers this year in the thousands of fish that came 15 

aboard, every fish was sexed in one of two ways, either 16 

made to either express milk or eggs or a biopsy was done 17 

on these fish to internally see if there were eggs or 18 

milk inside of these fish.  We tagged fish from May 19 

through September.  Every one of these fish provided 20 

eggs or milk in a reproductive state.  None of these 21 

fish were empty.  You're talking about a four-month 22 

time frame, the entire period that the season were open. 23 

   So, if you're going to go ahead and do 24 
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this, it's going to be something that I just don't 1 

believe there's enough information on to clearly 2 

identify that these fish, that they don't spawn for just 3 

a couple weeks.  There's a very large time period that 4 

they spawn. 5 

   And that's going to have to be something 6 

that this Council in conjunction with the Commission as 7 

they move forward is going to have to take into serious 8 

consideration. 9 

   With regard to that, the last point I'll 10 

make with regard to different substocks, whatever you 11 

want to call it, within the regions, you look at landings 12 

that come from New York, Rhode Island, Massachusetts; 13 

you routinely see five, six, seven pound sea bass taken 14 

inshore in state waters.  Those fish simply do not come. 15 

   Do you have any seven pound fish landed 16 

in Maryland?  They simply don't -- they're not found in 17 

state waters.  So, again, it clearly demonstrates that 18 

while the genetic footprint may be the same of these 19 

fish, they exhibit very different characteristics.  20 

And lastly, I'll echo Dr. Boreman's sentiments here that 21 

while there is research going on on similar species in 22 

the South Atlantic, I would caution this group to go 23 

ahead and use that information carefully with regards 24 
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to drawing the parallels to the fish that we have here 1 

in the Mid-Atlantic and up into New England because I 2 

do believe they behave differently.  Thank you. 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  4 

Thank you.  Is there any objection to exploring these 5 

items in the amendment?  Seeing none, we'll do that.  6 

We still have a couple of questions left. 7 

   One is:  Does the Council want the FMAT 8 

to explore restrictions on data disaggregation and use 9 

under the alternatives?  Can you summarize that for us 10 

again, Jessica? 11 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Sure.  This would 12 

be, for example, limitations, if you had 13 

state-by-state measures, you would have to have a 14 

certain proportional standard of error to your rec 15 

estimates before you could split the data up by mode or 16 

by area.  That would be one example of that type of 17 

approach. 18 

   Although, I will note whatever we 19 

consider at this point we would need to revisit that once 20 

the MRIP estimates are released with their new estimates 21 

of precision, which will likely be different, which 22 

would effect whatever the disaggregation criteria might 23 

be. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Yes.  1 

And I would think that we would want to see all the 2 

information about the quality of the data before we made 3 

a decision whether to exclude or impose requirements on 4 

it that were that specific. 5 

   I think it might be premature to impose 6 

some sort of constraint right now on the data before 7 

we've seen all the potential regions or states and 8 

related data -- acquire the data that would be 9 

associated with that. 10 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  It's something that 11 

the FMAT can pull information together on that, like 12 

what some of the sample sizes would be if you 13 

disaggregate the data, by region or by state in terms 14 

of like the length data you use to evaluate the 15 

regulations, look at the proportional standard errors 16 

and those changes. 17 

   And, likewise, when the MRIP estimates 18 

come out, you do have disaggregation criteria under 19 

summer flounder, and that may be something down the line 20 

that you want to think about. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  22 

Thanks, Jessica.  The final question you have here is:  23 

The FMAT noted the Council may want to give 24 
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consideration to the overall management approaches for 1 

the black sea bass fisheries, commercial and 2 

recreational.  I think the one point I've heard is that 3 

if we're going to have seasonal closures for spawning 4 

considerations, that we might want to consider those 5 

also for commercial, but I don't know that I've heard 6 

any other specific concerns about the commercial 7 

fishery.  Is there any desire around the table to add 8 

any other items for consideration relative to the 9 

management of the commercial fishery?  Chris. 10 

   CHRISTOPHER ZEMAN:  Yes.  Thank you.  11 

At the last council meeting, I think I raised the point 12 

about we need a better assessment of estimates of 13 

bycatch of black sea bass in the commercial fishery. 14 

   So I want to restate that at this 15 

meeting.  I think there's an opportunity to actually 16 

evaluate the approaches that we use to estimate discards 17 

in the commercial side. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Do 19 

you want to better understand discards within the 20 

directed black sea bass fishery or the bycatch of or 21 

incidental catch of black sea bass in other fisheries? 22 

   CHRISTOPHER ZEMAN:  I would say both, 23 

actually.  Yeah.  But primarily directed fishery as 24 
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well.  Because I think the discussion at the last 1 

meeting was regarding I believe that for pots there's 2 

an estimate of zero discards, that there are no discards 3 

in the black sea bass pot fishery.  I remember reading 4 

that in the SAW report. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Jessica. 7 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Yes.  Actually, just 8 

two weeks ago the Commission's Technical Committee met, 9 

and one of the tasks from our last joint meeting in 10 

August was to describe how discards are calculated for 11 

summer flounder, scup and black sea bass, describe that 12 

in detail:  how the calculations are done, what 13 

fisheries it incorporates, and to better explain that 14 

to the Board. 15 

   So I can work with Toni to make sure that 16 

whatever report that the Technical Committee prepares 17 

that that's also distributed to the Council members. 18 

   And that was one of the things 19 

specifically when they do the SBRM calculations:  what 20 

gear types do we have observer coverage for, what gear 21 

types do we not, what proportion of the federal 22 

fisheries also have state permits, which would also give 23 

us an indication of how many state-only vessels may not 24 
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have coverage, observer coverage that feeds in the 1 

discard estimation process.  So those were things that 2 

they had planned to explore at that point.  So I can make 3 

sure that we follow up and get that out to the Council. 4 

   CHRISTOPHER ZEMAN:  Okay.  That's 5 

great.  I'm very glad to hear that there's been progress 6 

on that.  Just to clarify, so you're saying that it will 7 

be included into this FMP amendment, or will it be 8 

provided separately? 9 

   I'd prefer that it be as part of this FMP 10 

amendment just because we have an obligation to sort of 11 

comply with all the Magnuson requirements including 12 

reporting as in by discards. 13 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, it was a 14 

separate report that the Technical Committee was 15 

preparing for their board.  When we do prep any of our 16 

amendments, we do describe what types of species are 17 

discarded, and we typically go through what the landings 18 

of discard estimates are. 19 

   But in terms of the underlying methods 20 

that are used to derive all of those, this report would 21 

describe those in more detail. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  23 

Jessica, when do you think we might see that report? 24 
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   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, they just met 1 

two weeks ago, and I know they're going to need time to 2 

work on it.  I don't think we set a specific deadline 3 

at the Technical Committee meeting.  But I can check 4 

with Toni Kearns and get an ETA on that. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:   6 

Yeah.  Why don't we stay in touch on that, and if that 7 

reveals initial information that may warrant attention 8 

in this amendment, we can circle back to it as a council.  9 

Also, what would your timeline be in terms of developing 10 

a document for this?  Would it be the development of an 11 

EIA or and EIS? 12 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Well, I think I'll 13 

need to go back to the FMAT and restructure a timeline 14 

and come back to that.  And this is the October meeting, 15 

so I can have a new timeline and action plan prepared 16 

for the December briefing book so you can take a look 17 

at that. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  19 

Okay.  We've run through these questions.  Have we 20 

given you enough information to go back to the FMAT with 21 

at this point? 22 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  Yes.  I think this 23 

was very helpful.  Thank you. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Good.  I would just ask for a motion to move forward with 2 

continued development of Amendment 17. 3 

   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  So moved. 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  5 

Jack.  Second by Rick Cole.  Discussion on the motion?  6 

Is Council ready for the question?     7 

 (Motion as voted.) 8 

 {Move to forward with continued development of 9 

 Amendment 17.} 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Is there 11 

any objection to the motion?  Are there any abstentions 12 

on the motion?  Seeing none, it's approved by consent.  13 

Thank you.  Thanks a lot, Jessica.  Do you have any 14 

other business related to the amendment? 15 

   JESSICA COAKLEY:  I do not. 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  17 

Thank you.  John. 18 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  Thanks, Rick.  I'm 19 

going to ask that question that I bailed on before.  It 20 

was inappropriate then and maybe inappropriate now, but 21 

frankly, I just don't know.  As I understand it, there's 22 

no biological reason -- I'm going back to the 23 

state-by-state spacial management. 24 
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   There's no biological reason for us to 1 

be doing that, and Magnuson, as I understand it, is 2 

pretty clear that we should be managing single stocks 3 

as single stocks.  I guess if we did it for summer 4 

flounder, we can do it here.  What's the rationality?  5 

How are we getting around that? 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  7 

John, it's a fair question and one that we will have to 8 

provide in making the final determination of whether to 9 

stick with what we have or adopt a regional management 10 

approach or a state-by-state management approach.  In 11 

the end we're going to have to be able to provide a solid 12 

rationale for doing that.  Obviously, around the table 13 

some of the discussion has gone to the fact that the 14 

states would like to have the flexibility to deal with 15 

the specific considerations that are unique to their 16 

individual fisheries.  I don't know what the analysis 17 

of the data will show, whether we have enough resolution 18 

of data to manage state-by-state or whether we need to 19 

do it on more of a regional basis and how large those 20 

regions would have to be. 21 

   I wouldn't project what the final 22 

outcome of those analyses would be.  But you raise a 23 

fair concern and point.  We will have to provide a solid 24 
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record basis and justification for the decision that we 1 

make in the end. 2 

   Okay.  Our next item is going to be 3 

spiny dogfish specifications.  Jim, how much time do 4 

you need to set up?  Just a few minutes?  Okay.  Why 5 

don't we come back in 10, and we'll take up spiny dogfish 6 

specs.  Thanks.  Thanks, again, Jessica. 7 

   [Break: 3:01 p.m. to 3:14 p.m.] 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  9 

Let's go ahead and come back to our seats, please, so 10 

we can get started.  We're going to be setting the spiny 11 

dogfish specifications for the upcoming fishing year, 12 

and Jim Armstrong will get through the staff 13 

presentation on it.  Jim. 14 

 ___________________________________________________ 15 

 SPINY DOGFISH COMMITTEE AS A COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 16 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  All right.  Thank 17 

you very much.  You see my opening slide has a picture 18 

of some spiny dogfish on it, and every year there are 19 

more of them.  So that's kind of the theme of the talk.  20 

Here's a flow chart.  By the way, we're under Tab 6 in 21 

the briefing book if you want to follow along in there. 22 

   And the way I arranged that tab the first 23 

thing in there -- it goes in reverse chronological 24 
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order.  So the first thing that's on there is the 1 

Monitoring Committee summary.  That was the last 2 

meeting we held on this. 3 

   And then the SSC report.  And I'll pause 4 

and let Dr. Boreman present the results of the SSC's 5 

deliberation on ABC.  And then there's my staff memo to 6 

the SSC and Monitoring Committee as well as the stock 7 

status update.  So that's the material we can draw from 8 

during the discussion. 9 

   So this is the flow chart that describes 10 

the specification process in the ACLAM amendment and I'm 11 

going to precede that with an assessment update, which, 12 

of course, has to inform that whole process.  So that's 13 

what I'll briefly go through. 14 

   Here's a slide that shows the catch 15 

history for spiny dogfish at least with regard to the 16 

domestic fishery going back to 1989, which is about when 17 

that started.  And you can see that there's a peak in 18 

the mid-'90s.  That was when there was an unregulated 19 

fishery due to the way the product is marketed and 20 

targeted, the largest individuals in the catch, and 21 

those were the mature females.  Mature female spiny 22 

dogfish were fished very heavily in the mid-'90s to the 23 

point that even prior to development of the FMP the 24 
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landings started to go down. 1 

   The stock was declared overfished in 2 

1997.  An assessment was done.  An FMP was implemented 3 

in 2000.  Development shortly followed the overfished 4 

status, but it was finally implemented in 2000. 5 

   And then there was a rebuilding period, 6 

which there's a lot of pain, and landings were greatly 7 

reduced.  The quotas were constrained to the point 8 

where no directed fishery could exist, and there was a 9 

small allowance for incidental or retention of 10 

incidentally catch of dogfish, about 600 pounds or 300 11 

pound trip limits and four million pound quotas. 12 

   Well, the payoff for that came in 2010 13 

when the Northeast Science Center trawl surveys started 14 

catching a lot more dogfish, and the stock was declared 15 

rebuilt in 2010, actually on my birthday which I always 16 

find kind of interesting. 17 

   And then the quotas were expanded in 18 

2009 through 2011.  Actually, in 2009 it was still in 19 

rebuilding, but achieving the rebuild fishing mortality 20 

rate was still allowed for an increase in the quota from 21 

four million to twelve million pounds.  And the quota's 22 

been going up ever since.  It's currently at twenty 23 

million pounds but still a fraction of the landings that 24 
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occurred in the '90s. 1 

   And what this looks like in terms of the 2 

effect on stock biomass is while there was a peak in 3 

biomass heading into the '90s, and then biomass 4 

according to the trawl survey went down to a low point 5 

around 2000, during rebuilding there's been a fairly 6 

steady -- or during the constraints on the fishery, the 7 

shutdown of the directed fishery in the 2000s, the early 8 

part of the century, the stock rebounded fairly quickly.  9 

And so we're on the upward leg of that biomass curve 10 

there on the left-hand side -- right-hand side. 11 

   In more exact terms or more recent 12 

terms, biomass from 2008 through the current year 13 

estimate, what you see here are red curves, which the 14 

mode or the peak of the curve shows the biomass estimate 15 

and its proximity to the -- there's a green line which 16 

you have to stay above.  That's the biomass threshold.  17 

And then the blue vertical line is the biomass target. 18 

   So that shows that for the last four 19 

estimates of biomass it has been above BMSY.  And 20 

there's a circle on the bottom right which is the most 21 

recent one.  That's the one we're concerned with.  22 

Fishing mortality has been achieved, the F rebuild or 23 

the specified F throughout the management history 24 
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actually of the stock, and you see here its estimates 1 

for the last four years. 2 

   And the fishing mortality threshold is 3 

actually off the chart to the right.  So all the 4 

uncertainty that's at least captured by the assessment 5 

is displayed here and is to the left of that assessment 6 

saying that within the assessment there appears to be 7 

a very high probability that overfishing is not 8 

occurring. 9 

   And so the stocks status right now is 10 

that it's not overfished, overfishing is not occurring.  11 

Biomass are stable for now and consistent for the last 12 

several years.  Biomass right now is estimated to be 13 

about 170,000 metric tons compared to 160,000 SSB max, 14 

which is the BMSY proxy. 15 

   F1, which is the estimate of fishing 16 

mortality on exploitable female stock is estimated to 17 

be .09 compared to FMSY, so quite a bit below FMSY of 18 

.24. 19 

   And so in the process, what we have to 20 

do now is discuss the determination of the overfishing 21 

limit and acceptable biological catch, ABC, in 22 

consideration of scientific uncertainty.  And for that 23 

I'll turn to Dr. John Boreman. 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 212

   JOHN BOREMAN:  All right.  Thank you, 1 

Jim.  The SSC met in the third week in September. 2 

Dr. Paul Rego, who has been the lead stock assessment 3 

scientist on dogfish.  Even though he's a branch chief, 4 

he still can't get dogfish out of his system. 5 

   Paul did show up and was very helpful 6 

giving us a presentation and then during our 7 

deliberations was available to answer questions and 8 

comment on our research recommendations and so forth. 9 

   By the way, for those of you who don't 10 

know, Paul's son won the Pulitzer Prize this past 11 

spring, which is pretty impressive for a 27-year-old 12 

working for the Wall Street Journal. 13 

   So I guess it runs in the family.  14 

Paul's son obviously comes from a good genetic stock 15 

even though we haven't measured the variability yet.  16 

We don't know if they're both going to wind up in the 17 

same fishery component or not. 18 

   But the SSC's recommendations.  First, 19 

we determined that this is a Level 3 assessment, and the 20 

justification as it's stated there relates to the lack 21 

of a credible estimate of certainty on the overfishing 22 

limit. 23 

   We did get an estimate of overfishing 24 
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but not an estimate of the variance of overfishing that 1 

the SSC was satisfied with as well as uncertainty 2 

related to stock structure.  The overfishing limit 3 

itself, the FMSY proxy was calculated from a projection 4 

model, as it says here: For which a finite rate of 5 

population increase equals 1.0.   6 

   What happened last year in our SSC 7 

meeting is we were presented with an FMSY proxy from Dr. 8 

Rego in the assessment, but in looking at the 9 

projections, the FMSY they were giving us showed that 10 

the stock declined, was going to decline after 20 or 30 11 

years. 12 

   And if it's FMSY the stock should reach 13 

a level where it's neither increasing or declining.  In 14 

other words, it just flattens out, the projected 15 

biomass. 16 

   So we asked Dr. Rego to go back and 17 

rework the FMSY proxy approach, which he did, and he 18 

presented that in August to a subgroup of the SSC stock 19 

assessment folks, and we did a peer review of that, and 20 

we found his approach was acceptable, and then he used 21 

that in his updated assessment that was delivered to the 22 

SSC during our September deliberations. 23 

   So the FMSY proxy now, as Jim says, is 24 
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.2439.  The reason why it's four significant digits is 1 

because that's what causes the projection to flatten out 2 

at 1.0.  But approximately .24. 3 

   And this is equivalent to a catch of 4 

25,000 metric tons or 55 1/2 million pounds.  And that's 5 

based on the projected biomass that we expect to see in 6 

2012 in the assumption that the catch in 2011 will be 7 

equal to the average of the last three years, about 10 8 

1/4 thousand metric tons.  So based on that OFL, the 9 

accepted -- well, first of all, the SSC recommends a 10 

one-year specification of the ABC. 11 

   We weren't in a position to recommend 12 

multi-year specs.  But out of the discussion of that, 13 

we are -- or I am going to be charging our scientific 14 

uncertainty subcommittee with developing some 15 

suggested criteria for under what conditions can we 16 

recommend multiple year ABCs versus one-year ABC. 17 

   And that would relate to the stability 18 

of the stock, the stability of the fishery, the catch 19 

history, the stock history, variability and recruitment 20 

and so on. 21 

   But we were uncomfortable at least with 22 

dogfish in recommending more than a one-year 23 

specification.  So applying the Omnibus Amendment ABC 24 
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control rules, we applied the Council's risk policy for 1 

typical life history. 2 

   And there was a discussion on this, too:  3 

Is this dogfish typical or atypical?  And I know the 4 

feeling around the Council a couple years ago when we 5 

talked about this was maybe dogfish was an atypical life 6 

history, being a shark and all that with a relatively 7 

low fecundity and late maturation rate and so on.  But 8 

in discussions, the SSC says, well, all those aspects 9 

are taken into account in the assessment.  And that's 10 

basically how we're differentiating typical and 11 

atypical in our control rule is atypical is the species 12 

has a life history pattern that's not entirely reflected 13 

in the assessment, and those aspects which the 14 

assessment isn't picking up are also those aspects that 15 

may make that species particularly more vulnerable to 16 

overfishing. 17 

   And we discussed this for quite a while 18 

and eventually agreed that under that definition that 19 

dogfish would be under the typical life history pattern, 20 

as I said, because it's life history characteristics of:  21 

a late maturation, not spawning every year when it does 22 

mature, a low number of pups or low reproductive rate 23 

relative to other types of fish species.  All those are 24 
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incorporated in the model. 1 

   So we looked at the risk policy and 2 

looked at the ratio of the projected biomass in 2012 over 3 

the BMSY, and that was greater than one.  In other 4 

words, the biomass in 2012 is expected to exceed the BMSY 5 

level -- and applying a CV of the OFL distribution of 6 

a hundred percent.  And that goes back to our previous 7 

meeting where Mike Willberg reported on a meta analysis 8 

he's done of coefficients of variations for overfishing 9 

limits in a number of species stocks around the country 10 

-- around the world.  And at that time, the SSC decided 11 

that a hundred percent CV for a Level 3 species is a good 12 

default value until somebody comes up with something 13 

better. 14 

   So we applied that hundred percent just 15 

as we did for the species in the previous for fluke and 16 

scup and black sea bass. 17 

   So using these parameters the Council's 18 

risk policy applies a P star of .4, and applying this 19 

P star to the OFL produces an ABC of 20,352 metric tons 20 

or about 45 million pounds.  Now, we do want to express 21 

some caution to this ABC, that if you saw Jim's plot of 22 

stock biomass -- I guess I can go back and show you that.  23 

I can cycle back here. 24 
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   You see there's a dip there around -- you 1 

can't see it -- 2000 -- 1998 to 2002, 2004.  There the 2 

stock was really low.  Now we're going to be 3 

experiencing the result of that, and then as the low 4 

recruitment from those years is going to be catching up 5 

to us. 6 

   So the biomass will be projected to 7 

decline in the future because of those poor recruitment 8 

during those years.  And that means that the ratio of 9 

the biomass in that particular year over the BMSY will 10 

likely become less than one, and as a result, the P star 11 

value will be lower,  lower than .4. 12 

   And the way that P star operates is the 13 

further you move down from the ration of B over BMSY, 14 

the further you move away from one towards zero the 15 

quicker the P star drops. 16 

   So it drops relatively slowly from let's 17 

say P star .4 to .35, but as you move closer to zero, 18 

it's going to start picking up speed.  So we're just 19 

giving you a heads-up that in the future we may not be 20 

able to sustain this level of catch given the current 21 

biomass at the time.   22 

   So, in terms of sources of uncertainty, 23 

the assessment relies heavily on an assumed 24 
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catchability of the survey year.  What they do is they 1 

use a minimum swept area estimate of biomass in the area 2 

swept by the survey gear, and then they use a 3 

catchability coefficient to extrapolate that out to 4 

total stock biomass.  That catchability assumption 5 

there's some uncertainty associated with that.  And 6 

then there's also apparent inter annual differences in 7 

availability of the stock to the survey gear. 8 

   It seems, though, it's not a function of 9 

biomass growth or decline; it's more a function of 10 

whether the stock is within the survey area or out of 11 

it at the time the survey's being conducted.  12 

   Some additional sources of uncertainty, 13 

considerable uncertainty exists in the level of 14 

discards in the stock.  The discards are available but 15 

for a small portion of the fishery, and from that small 16 

portion, it's expanded to the entire stock.  So there's 17 

considerable uncertainty associated with that. 18 

   The FMSY proxy is based on a projection 19 

model that relies on an assumed pattern of selectivity 20 

in the fishery, and empirical evidence suggests that -- 21 

empirical evidence means just observations that are 22 

taken of the fishery -- suggests that this pattern of 23 

selectivity varies highly from year to year. 24 
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   And then finally, both the FMSY proxy 1 

and the projections rely on a model that assumes a 2 

constant pup survival.  Again, empirical evidence.  3 

This is based on measurements taken on our survey 4 

suggests that pup survival rates vary substantially 5 

with the size structure and the population.  Younger 6 

females their pups don't have as high a survival rate 7 

apparently as the older, larger females.  This was 8 

particularly important when the population biomass was 9 

fished down with the larger minimum size limit when the 10 

fishery was targeting these larger females.  What they 11 

were doing is they were reducing the overall pup 12 

survival rate for the stock.  But now that the female 13 

population is building up in the older age groups, we're 14 

getting the pup survival rate is increasing, but again, 15 

we're assuming a constant pup survival rate that doesn't 16 

vary with stock size.  And that's probably not a perfect 17 

assumption to be using.  And that wraps up the ABC 18 

recommendations. 19 

   There's also a list in our report of 20 

research recommendations, and it's quite extensive.  21 

We looked at the five-year research plan, and we tried 22 

to prioritize those.  But still a lot of work that needs 23 

to be done on dogfish.  Thank you. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS: Are 1 

there questions for Dr. Boreman before we go back to Jim 2 

related to the ABC recommendation?  Pete. 3 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Thank you, Mr. 4 

Chairman.  I'm looking at the SSC report.  And then the 5 

next day the Monitoring Committee met and gave their 6 

recommendations.  Why did they have a higher ABC of 44 7 

million pounds and then come up with a TAL of 35.6 8 

million pounds when the SSC laid out a flow chart here 9 

that takes us down to a quota of 31.2 million pounds? 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Jim. 11 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Pete, I think you 12 

might be looking at a flow chart that was in my memo to 13 

the SSC because I was using the atypical P star 14 

formulation, and then that was changed.  Their report 15 

is exactly the same as the ABC used by the Monitoring 16 

Committee. 17 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Okay.  Thank you. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Any 19 

other questions for Dr. Boreman before we go back to Jim?  20 

All right.  Jim. 21 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Okay.  Just to 22 

reiterate, OFL set at -- everything's in metric tons 23 

coming out of the assessment, so the pounds that we're 24 
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use to using are in parentheses, 55.4 million pounds for 1 

OFL/ABC based on P star reduced to about 45 million 2 

pounds. 3 

   And process wise we determined the TAL 4 

based on further reductions from ABC.  And that's what 5 

I'll go through.  That's what the Monitoring Committee.  6 

So we've done that.  And check.  So the next thing we 7 

did and what we have in the process is ACL. 8 

   And ACL is actually equivalent to ABC in 9 

the Omnibus Amendment.  So we set ACL equal to ABC, and 10 

then we take out landings from Canada or the catch, the 11 

renewables from Canada, to get a domestic catch, a 12 

domestic -- I'm sorry. 13 

   So the ACL is actually the domestic ABC.  14 

So we take ABC, take out the Canadian catch.  Then we 15 

have ACL.  So the first step with the Monitoring 16 

Committee deliberation was to discuss Canadian catch 17 

and how much to take out. 18 

   What's our expectation, in other words, 19 

in 2012 of what the level of Canadian catch will be so 20 

that it's appropriately reduced, the total catch is 21 

reduced, so that we don't exceed ACL so we don't invoke 22 

accountability measures.  And so what we observed here, 23 

you can see there in the red line is Canadian landings, 24 
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and you can see them just kind of falling off the chart 1 

in 2009, while the U.S. landings were going up, and total 2 

landings were staying fairly constant.  So that's kind 3 

of interesting maybe from a market perspective. 4 

   But the point is that it appears that 5 

with the increases in the U.S. landings, that Canadian 6 

product has pretty much disappeared, and, in fact, we 7 

had several of the processors -- well, all three -- well, 8 

no.  We had two processors, two of the three processors, 9 

at the Monitoring Committee meeting, and they told us 10 

that the -- there were two Canadian processors, and 11 

they're out of business. 12 

   So the only way for Canada to sell its 13 

dogfish is to sell it to U.S. processors, and they don't 14 

want them because the Canadians want too much money for 15 

them, the fish are smaller.  And so it's actually 16 

cheaper for them to get U.S. product from North Carolina 17 

than from Canada, even though they're in New Bedford. 18 

   I don't know if the drive might be -- but 19 

anyway.  So that the demand for the Canadian product has 20 

pretty much disappeared.  And so the Monitoring 21 

Committee decided to treat this as sort of a regime shift 22 

or a new stanza in the Canadian landings beginning in 23 

2009 when they fell off. 24 
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   So what we did is we took the average of 1 

2009 and 2010 Canadian landings to reduce for 2012.  And 2 

we'll just anchor that in 2009 until we see the 3 

development of a new stanza, say the Canadian fishery 4 

picks up again.  Okay.  Not my laptop.  How about that?  5 

So to get the domestic ABC and by definition the ACL, 6 

we reduced the ABC determination from the SSC by 60 7 

metric tons.  Okay.  So that's done.   8 

   Now management uncertainty.  Next step 9 

is to go from the ACL to ACT.  All right.  And while the 10 

Monitoring Committee recognizes that management 11 

uncertainty is non zero, we also observed that in the 12 

most recent two years of the fishery the landings have 13 

actually not exceeded the TAL.  In fact, they came in 14 

a little bit below from the fishing year landings. 15 

   So, in fact, there was a discussion of 16 

other issues, timeliness.  In other words, as the 17 

landings are coming in, the degree of late reporting has 18 

gone down quite a bit.  As I said, the TAL hasn't been 19 

exceeded in the last couple of years. 20 

   Importantly, from a stock 21 

sustainability or rebuilding or maintaining 22 

standpoint, the fishing mortality target that was 23 

envisioned in specifications and in any year in its 24 
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management history has been achieved or the realized F 1 

has actually come in below that level.  Okay. 2 

   Now, there were some lags in reported 3 

landings when Period 1 closed this year.  The fishing 4 

year is divided up into two, six-month periods.  The 5 

first one goes from May 1 to November 1 or October 31 6 

and then November 1 through April 30th. 7 

   And the fishery closed August 26th, and 8 

landings came in a little late after that above the 9 

Period 1 level.  But those are deducted from the Period 10 

2 landings so that as those come in at a lower rate, then 11 

it's possible to close that before the total quota is 12 

exceeded.  That remains to be seen, whether that's 13 

going to be done successfully or not.  Nevertheless, 14 

with the observation that the F targets have been 15 

achieved or come in below target and that accounting has 16 

improved greatly and that the TALs haven't been exceeded 17 

in the last couple of years, there was zero adjustment 18 

for management uncertainty recommended by the 19 

Monitoring Committee.  All right.  So, basically, in 20 

other words, ACT equals ACL. 21 

   The next step was to discuss discards.  22 

There's an estimate of U.S. commercial discards and 23 

recreational discards that's made every year as part of 24 
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the assessment update, and so that information provides 1 

the basis for our expectation of discards going into the 2 

future. 3 

   And the Monitoring Committee observed 4 

that discards have been fairly constant for the past 5 

several years -- you can see here going back to about 6 

2004 it's almost like a straight line -- while landings 7 

have been going up. 8 

   Okay, and so if landings are going up, 9 

but discards are remaining constant, that is very 10 

consistent with what we've said in the past, that 11 

discards of spiny dogfish, dead discards of spiny 12 

dogfish, are primarily a function of an overall fishing 13 

effort because they're encountered by all, basically 14 

any kind of gear that goes in the water. 15 

   In fact, the majority of discarded 16 

dogfish come in the trawl fishery, but trawl landings 17 

aren't really as important as, say, gillnet landings.  18 

And last year we made the decision with the 19 

implementation of Amendment 16 to the multispecies plan 20 

there was going to be significant drops in overall 21 

effort in the Northeast region.  And so we thought that 22 

we had moved into a new sort of effort stanza with that, 23 

and we wanted to see if that was -- you know, how that 24 
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was playing out.  It turns out the 2010 estimate of 1 

discards was, in fact, lower by about 30 percent 2 

compared to the 2009 discard estimate.  And that was a 3 

calendar year estimate. 4 

   If it had been a year that started May 5 

1 instead of including January 1 to April 30 of 2010, 6 

it might be lower yet, relatively.  So that's all that 7 

provides the basis for not using a ratio. 8 

   And here is the ratio of discards to 9 

landings.  You can see it's declining.  Because of that 10 

we decided to use the level of landings that has been 11 

observed rather than a ratio of discards to whatever 12 

landings correspond to the ACT. 13 

   So we just took the 2010 estimate of 14 

discards, which was 4,081 metric tons, and rationalized 15 

that by saying we've transitioned to a lower fishery 16 

effort; that's supported by the groundfish report that 17 

was published in September or August; there's a 18 

decreasing dead discards landing ratio, so we believe 19 

that an estimate rather than a ratio is more 20 

appropriate. 21 

   We do acknowledge that dogfish 22 

encounters could increase as the number of dogfish 23 

increases.  And we look forward to further information 24 
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coming on this expectation of being in a low effort 1 

stanza.  And importantly, there are gear-specific 2 

discard mortality rates that are applied in the 3 

assessment update. 4 

   A certain percentage is basically 5 

multiplied by the total discard estimate depending on 6 

what gear -- you know, was used.  But there's not a lot 7 

of confidence that those are very -- you know, 8 

empirically based.  I mean there is a basis for them, 9 

but there is a need for more research in that direction.  10 

All right.  So we have our discard estimate.  That 11 

takes us to our total allowable landings.  And our total 12 

allowable landings is basically the commercial quota.  13 

It also includes recreational landings. 14 

   So we subtracted recreational landings, 15 

which were estimated in 2010.  We didn't have a basis 16 

for using any other number.  So that came up with a TAL 17 

or a commercial quota of 35.694 million pounds, which 18 

is about a 78 1/2 percent increase of the 20 million 19 

pound quota that we've got in place this year. 20 

   Another management measure that's in 21 

place for spiny dogfish is commercial trip limits.  The 22 

existing or status quo trip limits are 3,000 pounds all 23 

year long.  They don't vary by period.  That's the 24 
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coastwide maximum. 1 

   The Monitoring Committee in the past has 2 

considered making recommendations on trip limits, but 3 

has tended to back off because we feel that our 4 

perspective is a biological one, and trip limits are 5 

more of a socioeconomic, how fast do you want to catch 6 

the quota kind of an issue.  So we don't have a 7 

recommendation on trip limits.  That's pretty much it.  8 

That's the summary. 9 

   I'm throwing some stuff up here that's 10 

not in any of the material.  It's an exercise I did that 11 

I'm just -- you know, I'm just throwing out there for 12 

discussion because I think there's going to be some 13 

discussion about the rate of landings and trip limits 14 

and all that sort of stuff.  What you see here on the 15 

screen in this top figure is just a screen capture of 16 

the quota, the weekly quota report from the regional 17 

office's web page, and that was the report that was on 18 

there right before the fishery was closed.  And then 19 

what I did is I took the landings rate for when this thing 20 

got kind of linear here, starting in July, and it's about 21 

a 1.2 million pound per week accumulation of landings, 22 

and I just extrapolated that. 23 

   If I took the TAL that we came up with, 24 
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the commercial quota that we came up with by all the 1 

reductions, then I wanted to see if we landed at the rate 2 

for Period 1 with a new commercial quota, would we even 3 

close the fishery before November 1. 4 

   And actually, yes, according to this 5 

sort of back-of-the-envelope analysis, it would have 6 

closed in late October.  But that would be quite a long 7 

-- you know, fishery -- or a very short closure period 8 

compared to what we've been doing.  Like I said, August 9 

26th was when it closed this year. 10 

   All right.  If the rate of accumulation 11 

is decreased by a few percents, like 88 percent or 12 

something, 89 percent, then you'll hit it right on the 13 

nose.  So this is in the Monitoring Committee report. 14 

   It basically gives all the measures and 15 

what the basis was, what the value is in English and 16 

metric units, and it gets us down to that 35.694 million 17 

pound commercial quota.  Special comments from the 18 

Monitoring Committee echo the SSC's concern that 19 

although this is a hefty increase for a single year, if 20 

you kind of start thinking in a longer term way, then 21 

basically the absence of recruits from 1997 to 2003 in 22 

this fishery, in the stock, are going to start 23 

recruiting in or growing into the spawning stock, the 24 
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exploitable female stock.  And so, even if you didn't 1 

fish at all, we're expecting spawning stock biomass to 2 

go down.  So the rate at which that goes down is going 3 

to be affected by how many are removed. 4 

   If you remove a lot in 2012, then there 5 

will be fewer over the next several years.  And so while 6 

we calculated the commercial quota using the methods 7 

that I described, that sort of serves as a maximum on 8 

the commercial quota to what it could be. 9 

   It may be that a lower commercial quota 10 

in 2012 would be more consistent with one that could be 11 

maintained for the next several years.  And this was a 12 

figure that I shared with the SSC.  I wasn't sure if they 13 

were going to accept or reject the idea of multi-year 14 

ABCs, and so I threw this out there. 15 

   What we have here is OFL in the red and 16 

ABC in the green.  You can see that it declines faster 17 

than OFL, but it's based on OFL.  And then you have this 18 

sort of happy medium with the blue.  And this was based 19 

on our projection that Paul Rego did where he took the 20 

first year and then said what's the fishing mortality 21 

rate for that first year, and let's just maintain that 22 

rather than trying to base it on OFL every year. 23 

   So that was about an 18.5 metric ton 24 
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catch.  And then if you take out all the reductions that 1 

the Monitoring Committee took out, 4,161 metric tons of 2 

reductions, then you end up with something in the 3 

neighborhood of a little more than 30 million pounds in 4 

2012.  It's just something to throw out there.  Here's 5 

the summary.  And what I'll end with is we don't have 6 

the Advisory Panel reports yet.  That's a process that, 7 

as you know, is going to be built into our specifications 8 

next year.  But we did, as I said, include industry 9 

input at the Monitoring Committee Level, and we actually 10 

have ex officio Monitoring Committee members that are 11 

industry. 12 

   And I reached out to the industry 13 

advisors on our Industry Panel, and I got feedback from 14 

Steve Barndollar through the Sustainable Fishery -- SFA 15 

-- Sustainable Fishery Association, and they had 16 

recommendations.  And those were circulated to you. 17 

   You'll see a document with a Nicholson 18 

Barnett letterhead where they're advocating for a lower 19 

than possible, the upper limit as far as the commercial 20 

quota goes.  Additionally, Eric Brazer, who's the 21 

sector manager for the Cape Cod Hook Fishermen's 22 

Association, responded, and he would very much like to 23 

see the commercial quota maximized.  So you have two 24 
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perspectives on that.  At that end, I'll take any 1 

questions. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Jim, 3 

there's a hole in the age structure of the population.  4 

It's been apparent at least in the assessment updates.  5 

And so how long will that play out? 6 

   In other words, if it started in 2013 or 7 

2014, is that expected to influence the biomass for five 8 

years or eight years?  Do you recall how long of an 9 

impact we might be under with that? 10 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Yeah.  It's really 11 

around 2020 is when it's supposed to reach the bottom, 12 

and then it's supposed to start climbing up. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  14 

Okay.  Thank you.  Howard. 15 

   HOWARD KING:  Yeah.  Thanks, Jim. That 16 

was really good.  If you keep the trip limits as they 17 

are at 3,000, then the difference between the 36 million 18 

pounds and the 30 million pounds is about a five week 19 

difference. 20 

   And so instead of the end of October, the 21 

season might close if the accumulation rate is the same 22 

as last year, it may close the third or fourth week in 23 

September perhaps.  I mean that's the tradeoff.  24 
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Right? 1 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Yeah.  I mean the 2 

figure I showed had the 36 million actually and then an 3 

alternative rate, which was I just solved for where 4 

would that line intersect with the new limit.  So I 5 

didn't solve for the 30 million. 6 

   But, of course, that would mean that the 7 

rate would have to be lower to reach the limit at the 8 

end of the period.  I just don't have -- it was about 9 

an 11 percent reduction in the rate.  So I imagine it's 10 

15 or something like that. 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Red 12 

Munden. 13 

   RED MUNDEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  14 

One comment to Howard's question about trip limits.  15 

The 3,000 pound trip limit was applicable only to 16 

federal waters.  ASMFC removed the trip limit 17 

specification when they went to state-by-state 18 

allocations for the southern portion of the range of 19 

spiny dogfish last year.  In North Carolina's case, we 20 

kept trip limits to 3,000 pounds, and we had requests 21 

from fishermen to go up to 4,000, but it was kind of like 22 

the recommendations we got from industry, conflicting 23 

recommendations.  But, Jim, my question goes back to 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 234

the Monitoring Committee recommendation for 35.7 1 

million pound TAL for the commercial or the quota for 2 

the commercial sector. 3 

   Was there any discussion by the industry 4 

members as to whether or not there was infrastructure 5 

in place to handle that quantity of spiny dogfish?  6 

Because when we set the quota at 15 million pounds 7 

several years ago, the industry folks said, we've lost 8 

our markets, and we really don't have the infrastructure 9 

to support that level of harvest.  So did they express 10 

concerns when you reached out to them relative to 11 

comments on the landing level? 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Jim. 13 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Well, there are a 14 

couple of distinct markets for spiny dogfish.  There's 15 

a fresh market, and there's a flat market.  And the flat 16 

market when it's working it's a very attractive market 17 

to the processors.  It's one that they're trying to 18 

reopen, and if there's resistance -- the recipients or 19 

the importers of this are Europeans, specifically in 20 

Germany, mostly in Germany. 21 

   And there's a lot of awareness there 22 

about the sad condition of the eastern Atlantic spiny 23 

dogfish, and so because of that there's resistance to 24 
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purchasing the U.S. product because of having to 1 

differentiate it from the European overfished stock.  2 

And so the processors are trying to get a label 3 

certification through MSC to let people know that this 4 

is a sustainably managed resource.  And so until they 5 

can convince that overseas market really to open back 6 

up, then that part of the market is kind of probably 7 

saturated to some extent.  The fresh market I'm not a 8 

hundred percent sure.  That's one that I think there's 9 

more flexibility in. 10 

   But, yeah, I mean if you saw the landings 11 

and the decline in the Canadian -- increase in U.S. and 12 

the offsetting decline in the Canadian product and the 13 

total landings staying fairly constant, that I think is 14 

informative of a market that's not got a lot of -- or 15 

it has some limitation on upper movement.  I hope I'm 16 

not guessing too much there.  I think I'm in the 17 

ballpark. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  19 

Yeah.  I think one of the concerns that we're 20 

reiterating is the relationship of the quota to the MSC 21 

certification process rather than really specifically 22 

talking about market constraints.  But that's what I 23 

heard the most about subsequent to that as well.  Peter 24 
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Himchak. 1 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. 2 

Chairman.  Every time we go through one of these flow 3 

charts in the Omnibus Amendment, I have new questions.  4 

Okay. So take the spiny dogfish flow chart on page 18 5 

behind Tab 6. 6 

   Now, the SSC is setting the overfishing 7 

level and the ABC, and that translates into a domestic 8 

ABC or annual catch limit of 44.9 million pounds.  Okay.  9 

So all scientific uncertainty is supposed to have been 10 

taken care of up to that point.  Now, the Monitoring 11 

Committee goes and talks about management uncertainty, 12 

and we know the discards in Canadian catch and the 13 

recreational landings translate into a 35.69 million 14 

pounds as a TAL.  I don't know why still call it TAL.  15 

But that's the quota.  Now we're talking about issues 16 

related to caution and concern over the lack of recruits 17 

from 2002 and 2006 and how they would not be entering 18 

the fishery and the biomass available would not be as 19 

abundant.  Okay. 20 

   So, when you start talking about a level 21 

of concern, that's not really management uncertainty to 22 

me.  I mean I consider that more under the realm of 23 

scientific uncertainty.  And hasn't the SSC already 24 
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considered the concept of the low recruit during that 1 

time period in setting the ABC?  Because, you know, I 2 

like things nice and tidy. 3 

   And I saw this come up in Atlantic 4 

mackerel.  And we started throwing in issues about, 5 

yeah, I know the Council can lower the recommendations 6 

of the Monitoring Committee, but I'm not sure what to 7 

call it. 8 

  We've identified all the management 9 

uncertainty, and we're subtracting that out.  So now we 10 

have additional concerns based on recruitment issues.  11 

Is that still within our realm of -- that's not 12 

management uncertainty to me.  Say we lower the 35.6 13 

million pounds.  On what basis are we doing that? 14 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  15 

Pete, I think that's going to be the question of the 16 

hour, frankly.  And as far as the recruitment and how 17 

that will play out in the future of the population, I 18 

think the SSC has taken that into consideration.  But 19 

what they've done is applied the control rule to the 20 

current stock size.  So they've taken the relationship 21 

between OFL and ABC and applied that to the current 22 

biomass, and that's what they've derived their one year 23 

ABC recommendation from.  But what does appear in the 24 
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projections is the fact that biomass is expected to go 1 

down because of what Paul Rego calls the birth dearth 2 

when you had that low level of abundance around 2000, 3 

in the early 2000s.  There was low recruitment. 4 

   So that's expected to play out in the 5 

overall trajectory of the biomass.  The SSC has given 6 

us a one-year ABC recommendation.  I think the issue the 7 

Monitoring Committee was speaking to and that the 8 

processors to some extent were speaking to were about 9 

the tradeoffs potentially between foregoing a little 10 

bit of quota this year in order to have potentially more 11 

stability over the next few years. 12 

   And I see that concept challenged in one 13 

of the public comments we received, this letter from 14 

Eric Brazer.  But, again, I think that was what the 15 

Monitoring Committee was speaking to was just raising 16 

concern about the expected trajectory of the population 17 

and cautioning against going all the way to the ABC that 18 

was offered by the SSC. 19 

   But Jim can comment more about the 20 

projections over the next few years.  And Paul Rego had 21 

done a set of projections that looked at a multi-year 22 

ABC, and his suggestion or his analysis concluded that 23 

a 31.5 million pound quota or TAL would correspondence 24 
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to a relatively stable catch over that period. 1 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Well, yes.  He 2 

provided a projection that tried to anchor -- we took 3 

the reduction from OFL to ABC into account, tried to find 4 

out what fish mortality rate that corresponds to, and 5 

then said, well, if that was maintained, what would the 6 

catches look like over the next several years compared 7 

to the approach that I used in presenting multi-year 8 

ABCs where each year it was taken off the OFL 9 

projections, which were, of course, very -- you know, 10 

kind of unrealistic catch levels. 11 

   And so by going down, taking the catch 12 

down to what was more likely for the first year, that 13 

appeared to be something that could be maintained -- you 14 

know, over the next several years. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  But, 16 

perhaps more specifically to your question, Pete, I 17 

think if a reduction were made from the ABC for that 18 

specific reason, I think that would be an OY rationale 19 

for the modification because that would be a 20 

modification below MSY based on a socioeconomic 21 

consideration, that is, trying to preserve some degree 22 

of stability in the fishery over the next couple years.  23 

If the Council were to do that, as opposed to strictly 24 
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scientific or management uncertainty, I think it would 1 

be an OY consideration. 2 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  So, if I might, Mr. 3 

Chairman, then, okay, I can see where the projections 4 

are essentially advising us not to grab the full 5 

allowable quota initially and it would create 6 

instability -- it may create instability over the 7 

following years, and it would not be wise to just max 8 

out given the opportunity.  Am I reading this 9 

correctly?  So it's advice for stability in the 10 

fishery? 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  That 12 

would be the rationale.  I mean I think there's a 13 

relationship between the level at which we -- if you 14 

accept that there's a relationship between the level at 15 

which we set the quota today and what the population 16 

trajectory would look like in future quotas over the 17 

next few years would look like.  I believe John Boreman 18 

had his hand up.  John, do you have a comment to this 19 

point? 20 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Well, I'd like Jim to go 21 

back one slide to that multi-year.  I strongly suggest 22 

we do not look at this or take it seriously.  And the 23 

bottom line is that the idea of this constant catch, 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 241

whatever that circled line is there, is not consistent 1 

with the ABC control rule because as you get out there, 2 

you notice that buffer is getting less and less even 3 

though the stock size is declining, the stock biomass 4 

is declining. 5 

   If anything, the buffer should grow, and 6 

that's what our risk policy says:  when the biomass 7 

falls below the B over BMSY equal to one, we should 8 

increase the buffer.  And what that's doing is it's 9 

working in the opposite direction.  So it's 10 

inconsistent with the risk policy of the Council and the 11 

ABC control rule.  So I don't think that should be part 12 

of the discussion today. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Jim. 14 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Well, I mean the 15 

figure wasn't created -- obviously, the data were in the 16 

spreadsheet and all that so that the figure could go over 17 

the same time period.  But they're kind of independent 18 

in a sense.  I mean I'm not trying to argue to take it 19 

too seriously.  It's a general concept of keeping some 20 

fish in their bank, so to speak.  But those are the 21 

catches that correspond to that constant F.  And then 22 

the OFLs assume that OFL is caught every year.  So on 23 

one scenario, they're kind of independent in that 24 
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respect, that you're not going to assume now that in four 1 

years from now you caught OFL every single year.  So I 2 

don't know that really a buffer exists there, but it may 3 

be too fine a point. 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  5 

Howard. 6 

   HOWARD KING:  A question for John.  Are 7 

you saying that since the decline in biomass is 8 

preordained there is no constant harvest strategy that 9 

would work and remain stable? 10 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Well, if we maintain a 11 

constant harvest strategy, what -- OFL was defined in 12 

terms of landings, not in terms of F.  It's the 13 

landings.  What you're doing here is you're maintaining 14 

constant landings so the buffer between the annual 15 

landings and the OFL is getting less and less.  The 16 

landings are getting closer to OFL, and in some cases 17 

you might exceed the OFL. 18 

   And the whole purpose of having an SSC 19 

is the built in scientific uncertainty.  And that's why 20 

we should stick with an ABC that's based on some risk 21 

policy that the Council has put forward. 22 

   'Cause here what we're saying is if the 23 

constant F strategy and we follow this recommendation, 24 
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that is, as we go out into the future in terms of our 1 

landings, we're taking more and more risk that will 2 

exceed OFL.  And I don't think that's the purpose of the 3 

ABC control rule. 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  5 

Laurie. 6 

   LAURIE NOLAN:  Thank you.  The 7 

projections are assuming, though, that the TAL is being 8 

caught in full?  I mean when you show us that the biomass 9 

is going to go down, that's assuming that in 2012 if we 10 

set the quota at 35 million pounds it's going to -- the 11 

biomass is going to go down because all those fish were 12 

caught.  So, if they're not all caught, then the biomass 13 

would appear to be larger than the projection on what 14 

we're catching. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

John. 17 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Yeah.  But the OFL will 18 

change, too, in those out years.  The OFL wouldn't be 19 

declining as much.  You have to readjust the OFL every 20 

year to account for that, and that chart there is not 21 

doing that. 22 

   It's assuming, as you're saying, that 23 

the OFL is declining because these fish are being caught 24 
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every year, and you're not saving fish to carry over to 1 

the next year.  So the projection for that OFL and the 2 

ABC are assuming that those fish are removed every year 3 

from the population according to the ABC 4 

recommendation, and you're not reducing that to build 5 

biomass for the out years.  That's a misleading graph 6 

the way it is. 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  8 

Thanks for the clarification, John.  Other questions on 9 

this aspect of the presentation?  Greg.  And, again, we 10 

will be setting specifications today, so we'll be 11 

specifying a quota and a trip limit.  And so we can go 12 

ahead and go to public comment on both of these issues, 13 

and it will come back to the Council.  Greg. 14 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  I was just really 15 

prepared to just ask a question actually, if that was 16 

okay, Mr. Chairman. 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  18 

Please. 19 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  Jim, I didn't have 20 

an opportunity to stay at the entire SSC meeting.  But 21 

did you ever resolve the issue of reducing for Canadian 22 

discards and landings?  Because they had gone so low, 23 

I assume that you wouldn't be removing that from the U.S. 24 
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ABC. 1 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Well, at the SSC 2 

meeting -- we don't have an estimate of Canadian 3 

discards, so that just hasn't been taken out.  We have 4 

an estimate of Canadian landings, and that's taken out 5 

and used to estimate -- you know, fishing mortality for 6 

the most recent year.  And that's about where it stops. 7 

   There wasn't much discussion at the SSC 8 

level about Canadian catch.  It's mostly a Monitoring 9 

Committee level discussion that has to do with what's 10 

going to happen next year with Canadian landings.  But 11 

what was discussed at the SSC level was this is what we 12 

think it was.  So it's looking back. 13 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  So the projection 14 

for 2011 -- I'm sorry -- the projection for 2012 has to 15 

assume Canadian catch, which has gone down in recent 16 

years, but you're assuming it may go up. 17 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  The projection 18 

doesn't really assign where the catch is going.  It just 19 

applies an F.  So we're still reducing.  Then we make 20 

assumptions about who's getting what out of that. 21 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  Okay.  So we 22 

don't -- if we do reduce it -- the US ABC and next year 23 

there is no Canadian -- there's relatively low Canadian 24 
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landing -- there's no way to sort of account for that? 1 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Well, I mean we could 2 

have taken the 2010 Canadian landings, which were six 3 

metric tons.  There was almost zero.  I mean it had 4 

pretty much gone away.  We thought that the previous 5 

year in which there were 113 metric tons if we average 6 

those two together that 2009 was really going to fall 7 

off the table, and that was our anchor year.  So we 8 

wanted to be consistent, and so we used that.  We could 9 

have said zero.  I mean we couldn't go much lower than 10 

what we did go. 11 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  I'm trying to 12 

comprehend if we're reducing for no reason at all.  This 13 

is another shared stock.  It's an issue with mackerel.  14 

It's an issue here in dogfish.  And if there's not going 15 

to be very high landings, I think we shouldn't account 16 

for them. 17 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  It's like a hundred 18 

thousand pounds or something that we took out, and that 19 

could have been -- you know, it could have been an 20 

overestimate.  But they just kind of made the decision.  21 

The Monitoring Committee did. 22 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  So we're not 23 

removing 6,000 metric tons off of the U.S. ABC? 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 247

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  No.  Sixty.  Six, 1 

zero metric tons. 2 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  Six, zero. 3 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Yeah.  Not as much. 4 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  Okay. 5 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Sorry. 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  7 

Greg, do you have any comments on the specifications? 8 

   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  Yeah.  Actually, 9 

you know what, I'd prefer to give my time to the 10 

gentleman here in the fishery from Barnegat Light and 11 

Point Pleasant.  So let them speak to the issue of trip 12 

limit.  Their organization and several of our members 13 

from Viking Village, Belford, Point Pleasant all 14 

request a 4,000 pound trip limit.  Thank you. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

Thank you, Greg.  I saw Jim Lovgren in the back.  Jim. 17 

   JAMES LOVGREN:  Thank you, Mr. 18 

Chairman.  Those of you that were here 10 years ago at 19 

this table you remember the dogfish argument fairly well 20 

I believe.  I'm going to rehash it a little bit for you, 21 

though, because it was Dr. Rego here that stood in front 22 

of us all and told us there that under no fishing, okay, 23 

that the stock was in such poor condition that under no 24 
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fishing effort the earliest it would recover was 2017.  1 

With a minimal amount of effort -- I forget exactly what 2 

the F max was -- it was 2037, and one of his models 3 

showing the stock would never recover. 4 

   And low and behold by 2008, that stock 5 

was fully recovered.  And despite me and Jimmy Ruhle 6 

sitting at this table telling you:  your stock 7 

assessment is wrong; you're not going where the dogfish 8 

are; the pups are all in deep water 100 to 140 fathom; 9 

that's where they are, the Continental shelf; that's 10 

great, probably spending the first eight or nine years 11 

of their life, and you were doing about four surveys in 12 

that water at that time.  I don't know how much you've 13 

increased, but it's the most egregiously wrong stock 14 

assessment ever put in front of the public.  So, 15 

frankly, I have a problem with anything that's coming 16 

forward in the way of stock assessments that's saying 17 

this is what that's going to do when it comes to dogfish.  18 

Okay.  I can tell you I've never seen so many puppies 19 

as I saw this year inshore and offshore.  Okay. 20 

   I don't know what they were doing 21 

inshore, but we couldn't get away from them for two 22 

weeks.  We've seen teenagers -- we call them teenagers; 23 

these are the ones that are about seven or eight years 24 
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old -- tons of them. 1 

   You're not going to see a collapse in 2 

this stock.  You're not going to see it dip.  Okay.  3 

Plain and simple, I just don't see it happening.  What 4 

I don't want to see happening is a trip limit large 5 

enough to create a directed fishery because we've proven 6 

you can hurt this fishery.  Okay.  You can't have a huge 7 

directed fishery for it. 8 

   I myself, I've said for years here you 9 

should just set this trip limit at 3,000 pounds and keep 10 

that fishery open all year, no closure.  What it does 11 

is instead of a two or three month closures that we've 12 

been going through, and at that point discards start. 13 

   And it's not that they're starting.  14 

Okay.  There's discards throughout the year.  But if 15 

you can bring in 3,000 pounds of them, it's reducing 16 

discards.  It might reduce discards by 50 percent. 17 

   Those discards could be added onto the 18 

landings as opposed to just a regulatory discard that's 19 

being thrown away.  It's total waste.  So keeping that 20 

fishery open should be the main objective of this 21 

Council.  You need to figure out whether it's 30 million 22 

pounds or 35 million pounds.  But our recommendation -- 23 

and you could set it -- I would just say just set a 4,000 24 
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pound trip limit and keep it open year round.  See what 1 

it ends up at.  You don't know where it's going to end 2 

up at, but it's not going to go too far.  It's not going 3 

to go too high. 4 

   Four thousand pounds will discourage 5 

new entrants from coming into the fishery.  You said it 6 

opened too high.  You still have no limited access 7 

program here in dogfish.  It's a fear.  Every time you 8 

open up a little crack feet get in there. 9 

   And it ends up the traditional guys get 10 

screwed out of it, such as general category scallopers, 11 

the old timers there that got screwed out by guys that 12 

just got in it in the last year. 13 

   Anyway, 4,000 pound trip limit.  See 14 

where it goes.  If you want to put a cap on it and say 15 

we'll close it down at some point.  But the main thing 16 

is keeping that fishery open, converting discards to 17 

landings.  That would be my comments. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  19 

Thank you, Jim.  Kevin. 20 

   KEVIN WARK:  Hi.  Kevin Wark from the 21 

Dana Christine out of Viking Village.  We've got about 22 

a dozen gillnetters at Viking Village and we do support 23 

the 4,000 pound trip limit primarily because it's a low 24 
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economic value fish.  You all know that.  And with the 1 

increased fuel prices it would be a big help.  And we 2 

do want to see a low trip limit, like no more than 4,000 3 

because we don't want to see this fishery get over 4 

exploited.  But it would certainly benefit everyone in 5 

the fishery to raise it to 4,000.  And we can see how 6 

it goes, how it gets caught.  And as far as the 7 

processors setting the number, we'd like to see some 8 

other people start processing these fish, not just the 9 

New Englanders. 10 

   So, hopefully -- you know, that 11 

situation will alleviate itself maybe with the 12 

certification in Germany with the belly flaps where 13 

these things get a little bit more economically valuable 14 

to everyone.  So I'd just like to say that.  Thank you. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  16 

Kevin, can I ask you:  Do you all feel strongly about 17 

4,000 versus 3,000; or how big of an issue is that for 18 

you? 19 

   KEVIN WARK:  Yeah.  And older guys.  20 

Just because if you really look at 3,000 pounds of 21 

dogfish, you don't have a lot of money there.  You don't 22 

even have $600.  If you steam around and -- you know, 23 

burn a hundred gallons of fuel, half that catch is going 24 
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in the fuel tank.  So the 4,000 would help a little bit. 1 

   You don't always have to ride around a 2 

lot.  Sometimes they're thick, and you can get them 3 

fast.  But primarily -- I mean none of us want to see 4 

this like it was.  Ocean City, Maryland used to look 5 

like New Hampshire.  There were so many displaced 6 

groundfish boats down there.  And we never want to see 7 

that again.  That's what really happened. 8 

   I mean we went from having a 20,000 -- 9 

20/30,000, whatever you could catch to three to six 10 

hundred pounds.  It was quite extreme, pretty sorry 11 

really.  I always say to people if we were managing 12 

money, we all would have ended up in jail, I mean, for 13 

that stunt.  I mean it wasn't good.  And you don't want 14 

to see that situation again.  But, really, in those 15 

years the groundfish was collapsing, and those guys were 16 

looking for something to do, and the markets could 17 

handle that.  But to say now that -- you know, the market 18 

at 3,000 is it. 19 

   Think about the '90s, how many dogs are 20 

being moved.  And so I don't like to be trapped that low.  21 

I just don't think that there's much money for the 22 

traditional fisherman.  We fished them in the '90s, and 23 

-- you know, we'd like to get back into this at some 24 
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level. 1 

   We've been fishing on them -- you know, 2 

when we can to make sure we have some landings, but we're 3 

really not making much money.  We're just kind of just 4 

going through the motions.  So I don't think 4,000 is 5 

out of hand by any means.  I think it's pretty 6 

conservative for what we're seeing out there. 7 

   And I don't think we could really -- if 8 

the ABC allows, I think we should try to maximize it for 9 

a little bit; and if it doesn't work out, we could always 10 

go back the other way.  But I don't think we can damage 11 

it at those rates. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  13 

Thank you, Kevin.  It's a 60 million pound a year 14 

fishery, so none of us want to go through the problems 15 

we had again.  Peter. 16 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Mr. Chairman, I had a 17 

question for Kevin.  I don't mean to put him on the spot.  18 

And maybe not now is the appropriate time to ask.  Do 19 

you have any comments on the particular quota, the range 20 

of the quota, for the next fishing year we're talking 21 

about?  I mean it's a pleasant dilemma from 20 million 22 

pounds to potentially 31 or 36.  What's the industry's 23 

viewpoint on that? 24 
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   KEVIN WARK:  Well, again, I mean we were 1 

conservative through all these years of this -- you 2 

know, supposed huge collapse.  I mean we kind of knew 3 

that really wasn't the truth 'cause we saw even when we 4 

fished off all those super big females there were some 5 

coming right behind them.  We can see them. 6 

   I actually wrote a letter back in those 7 

days asking the folks on the Council, the Mid-Atlantic, 8 

to look at some mesh size restrictions 'cause we were 9 

going down in net size to try to capture.  Everybody 10 

wanted the big females obviously because they're the 11 

bigger fish.  And we went down in net size. 12 

   And I always thought even in those days 13 

if we had went to a 10,000 pound trip limit in a gillnet 14 

fishery and a minimum mesh size -- you know, like 5 1/2 15 

or 6 inch or something, we could have never -- if we had 16 

stopped the mesh size at like 6 inch, no 5 1/2, we would 17 

have never gotten in the predicament we were 'cause we 18 

wouldn't have caught all the big females. 19 

   But there was fish coming right behind 20 

them all the time.  We saw when the assessment people 21 

said or -- you know, the trawl survey said there was no 22 

females, that's all we could catch.  So we never could 23 

agree with what the science said. 24 
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   I'm not saying that they did a bad job, 1 

but the ocean's a pretty big place, and if you're where 2 

all those males are, and we know they segregate, you're 3 

not going to see those females.  But we were seeing 4 

those females.  We had times when we'd drift for 5 

bluefish and bonitos in the spring.  We had times where 6 

you'd set a piece of net from here to that wall three 7 

minutes rip it back, 10,000.  I mean this is when it was 8 

closed.  You're ready to hang yourself.  You couldn't 9 

get away from them.  And we're talking huge female 10 

dogfish.  So they're pretty hard to track down.  Not to 11 

ramble on about silly stuff. 12 

   But I think we should go with the 36 13 

million personally because we've been so conservative.  14 

And I think it's time maybe we lean the other way a little 15 

bit.  Certainly, we need this fishery.  We want to see 16 

it survive, but I don't think we need to be 17 

ultraconservative on these critters anymore. 18 

   And we don't need an ocean just jammed 19 

full of dogfish working the fluke over and all these 20 

things that this Council has helped to rebuild -- sea 21 

bass -- because we know they're pretty serious 22 

predators. 23 

   We've got weak fish problems, and you 24 
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hate to see these dogs -- you know, just taking over.  1 

We have big winter skates just biblical amounts of 2 

those, and it seems like we're getting a little too much 3 

on the predator end of -- you know, of the scale here 4 

lately to me.  That's just what I see.  I fish about 200 5 

days a year.  All these guys do.  And that's just what 6 

we're seeing out there, so.  Thank you. 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  8 

Thanks, Kevin.  Sean. 9 

   SEAN MCKEON:  Thanks.  Sean McKeon,  10 

North Carolina Fisheries Association.  A couple 11 

points.  One is to Red's comments before.  First of 12 

all, I think the 3,000 pound trip limit is wrong.  I 13 

think it's being promoted by folks in another fishery.  14 

We're talking about Mid-Atlantic region here.  I think 15 

we need a 4,000 pound trip limit.  A lot of my guys would 16 

like to see that mostly because of what the fellow before 17 

me just said.  It makes a lot more sense to them.  18 

There's also a practicability aspect to it in the 19 

balance of the usable are 2,000 pounds.  It just makes 20 

it a lot easier. 21 

   I think the fishery itself needs to make 22 

it for the fishermen needs to be something that's going 23 

to make sense to them.  With respect to processing, I 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 257

think that they're all waiting. 1 

   I know people are having discussions to 2 

have some sort of a processing facility either in 3 

Virginia or North Carolina, somewhere other than New 4 

Bedford; and, therefore, I think the fishery needs to 5 

have some predictability and continuity in the amount 6 

of fish that you put forward for some years, not just 7 

one year.  And that seems to be the thing that holds 8 

everybody back. 9 

   So I like the higher end of the 10 

commercial quota, and I like the consistency of having 11 

a number of years.  Combine that with the fishermen's 12 

request that I heard, that they go up to 4,000 pounds, 13 

and I think you might see these markets come back. 14 

   I never hear anybody worry about the 15 

markets.  They will come.  If these guys can get some 16 

fish to the docks, those markets will reopen.  The guys 17 

are pretty good about marketing their products.  18 

Thanks. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

Thank you, Sean.  Other comments?  Yes, sir. 21 

   JIM BRINDLEY:  Yeah.  I'm Jim Brindley 22 

from Barnaget Light.  I agree with what Kevin and Jimmy 23 

Lovgren said.  I do the same thing they do, and I just 24 
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want everybody to realize I think we were unnecessarily 1 

punished for all those years. 2 

   We had about -- I think it was about ten 3 

years -- nine or ten years we had no fishery, and then 4 

we were told it wasn't going to rebuild anytime soon, 5 

and here we are at this huge increase, which I think is 6 

right. 7 

   But being overly conservative for all 8 

those years I don't really like the dialogue saying, 9 

well, maybe we shouldn't give these guys too much 10 

because according to our numbers they're going to go 11 

back down. 12 

   I'm not real confident in those numbers, 13 

so I would rather take what we can get now, and we'll 14 

see what happens in a couple years.  But we see plenty 15 

of fish, and we need that extra revenue, and we're tired 16 

of throwing them overboard.  So I think the 4,000 would 17 

be a good number, and the 35 million would be a good 18 

number. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

Thank you for your comments.  Are there any other 21 

comments?  Yes, sir. 22 

   CHRIS RENEAU:  Thanks.  My name is 23 

Chris Reneau, fishing vessel Anise Marie from Barneget 24 
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Light, and I'm also for the 4,000 pound trip limit and 1 

open all year because like Kevin had said, just when we 2 

closed you seen all the other stocks getting eaten up.  3 

The sea bass decline.  The fluke decline.  I mean 4 

they're major predators.  They're like the coyotes out 5 

in the woods right now eating all the deer.  That's a 6 

worse scene than the ocean's in.  I think that's a 7 

comfortable number, and I don't think you'll see any 8 

decline in the fishery.  Thanks. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  10 

Thank you.  Other comments?  Jim. 11 

   JAMES LOVGREN:  Thanks, Mr. Chairman.  12 

I had forgotten to mention this.  I wanted to point out 13 

one thing.  When we talk about the overall stock of 14 

dogfish, okay, back in 1964 the original spawning stock 15 

biomass was estimated at 46 metric ton. 16 

   Back when they were talking about a 17 

collapse in the fishery around the year 2000, the 18 

spawning stock biomass was down to 46 million pounds, 19 

right exactly where it was in a nonfished fishery.  But 20 

then it was considered collapsed. 21 

   Now, Dr. Morowski had done a study.  It 22 

was on the Georges Bank takeover of (inaudible) when the 23 

(inaudible) were all overfished.  Okay.  And basically 24 
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what you saw from '64 to 1990 was a trip limit on the 1 

dogfish biomass and the skate biomass, and we had set 2 

our biological target at that high level. 3 

   So what we're looking at now is a stock 4 

of dogfish that's more than two times higher than it was 5 

in an unfished fishery.  So, if you're worried about 6 

overfishing, I don't think you have to be.  That's the 7 

point I want to bring home. 8 

   Because they are a very destructive 9 

animal to the rest of the biomass.  They spit up 10 

everything when we catch them whether it's fish.  It's 11 

not jellyfish, as Dr. Rego will tell you.  Okay.  It's 12 

whatever is an opportunistic predator.  They eat 13 

everything.  I can tell you when we were offshore, the 14 

deck is full of chewed up butterfish.  Now, if you want 15 

to know where butterfish are going?  Hmm.  I would like 16 

to -- I don't want to do this here, but when this is done, 17 

a couple of minutes talk about the effects of global 18 

warming on all of this, if I could, Rich. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

Yeah.  Afterward.  Thanks, Jim.  Any other public 21 

comment?  All right.  Seeing none, we're back to the 22 

Council for discussion and action.  Again, we'll need 23 

to set the specifications for the quota and trip limit.  24 
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Pete. 1 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Mr. Chairman, I'm 2 

prepared to offer a motion on the TAL.  Do I have to go 3 

through the whole sequence of OFL and ABC?  I was going 4 

to separate out the TAL for the 2012 fishing year in one 5 

motion and then the trip limit in a separate motion. 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 7 

think what we'll need to set is the ACL, the ACT, and 8 

the TAL.  But I'm going to defer to Jim and just ask him 9 

to clarify that. 10 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Yeah.  That's 11 

correct.  I mean the amended plan says that the Council 12 

has to set a TAL that prevents the ACL from getting 13 

exceeded.  So, in order to prevent the ACL from being 14 

exceeded, we need to specify what the ACL is. 15 

   It doesn't say that -- well, the process 16 

includes a TAC to deal with management -- ACT to deal 17 

with management uncertainty as well.  I would go ahead 18 

and put that in as well.  So ACL, ACT, and TAL. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

Thank you.  Jim, do you have a slide with those in it 21 

that you can just put up there just for reference while 22 

Pete makes his motion? 23 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Pointing to page 4 24 
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behind the tab that gives all of the numbers that I would 1 

put in the motion.  Save Jim some trouble. 2 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Appreciate it. 3 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  So I would move to set 4 

the spiny dogfish ACL at 44.868 million pounds, the ACT 5 

at 44.737 million pounds, and the TAL at 35.74 million 6 

pounds; and that translates -- and hence the commercial 7 

quota, the TAL would be 35.69.  Boy, it goes to five 8 

decimal points.  I don't think we need all those.  The 9 

commercial quota for the 2012 fishing season would be 10 

35.694 million pounds. 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Is 12 

there a second to the motion?  Second by Erling Berg.  13 

Discussion on the motion?  George. 14 

   GEORGE DARCY:  Thank you.  I think this 15 

is too high.  I don't agree that there's no management 16 

uncertainty.  I don't know what the number is, but the 17 

recommendation from the Monitoring Committee that they 18 

shouldn't take that into account I don't think can be 19 

correct.  They're have been overages.  There have been 20 

overages this year.  There's a different management 21 

regime between the ASMFC right now and the federal.  So 22 

I don't think that's a correct assumption. 23 

   And also I think in terms of keeping the 24 
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objective of trying to be as stable across time as 1 

possible, which is at least in the last few years, that's 2 

been the philosophy of this council and the New England 3 

Council, not to take the full bite when we get an 4 

opportunity like this, but to be somewhat more forward 5 

looking in trying to keep something that would keep the 6 

market stable and the processors happy.  I don't know 7 

what the number is, but I think taking this full amount 8 

when you have an opportunity to give a very large 9 

increase, even a lower number is not the right thing to 10 

do. 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  12 

Other comments on the motion?  Pete. 13 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Just to answer George.  14 

We have identified management uncertainty in the 15 

neighborhood of nine million pounds, so it's not that 16 

we've overlooking it. 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  18 

Pete, there's not much deduction here.  I guess the 19 

difference would be between the ACL and the ACT.  And 20 

I think that difference is -- well, it's between 44.8 21 

million pounds and 44.73 million pounds. 22 

   The Monitoring Committee recommended 23 

the ACT essentially be at virtually the same level as 24 
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ACL.  They didn't come up with a significant deduction.  1 

Jim, the difference there is out to like a third decimal 2 

point.  What is that difference?  I'm looking at Table 3 

1.  I'm sorry.  There's no difference at all.  It's 4 

just the domestic ACL.  So that difference between ACL 5 

and domestic ACL is the expected Canadian catch.  Mike. 6 

   MICHAEL LUISI:  Thank you. I just want 7 

to make sure I'm clear with the numbers.  I thought from 8 

the presentation that the management uncertainty that 9 

was considered was the ability to achieve the targets 10 

without exceeding them and that in previous years the 11 

level of harvest was so close to what the quotas were 12 

that the Monitoring Committee recommended not taking 13 

into consideration any additional management 14 

uncertainty about the ability to hit those marks.  15 

That's how I understood it.  And if I'm wrong in that. 16 

   The nine million pounds I think that's 17 

being discussed is the estimated discards that's being 18 

taken from the domestic ACT.  So that's what I've got 19 

in my head processing all this.  If I'm wrong, someone 20 

correct me, please. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 22 

think you're right as far as characterizing the 23 

management uncertainty, that the Monitoring Committee 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 265

took into account, and the U.S. discards are estimated 1 

at 8.997 million, so that's the nine million pounds. 2 

   That's not management uncertainty.  3 

That's just the best available estimate of discards for 4 

the next year.  The other buffer at the top end of this 5 

is between the OFL and the ABC, and that's accounting 6 

for the scientific uncertainty.  That's coming down 7 

from 55 million to 44.8 based on the Control Rule.  So 8 

you've got about a 20 percent buffer in there.  Pete. 9 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Okay.  Again, I go back 10 

to the flow chart.  We're going from an ACL of 44.9 11 

million pounds, and we're subtracting.  We've got 12 

management uncertainty and discards and recreational 13 

landings, and we're taking nine million pounds off of 14 

that as -- all right.  You're not calling it all 15 

management, discard management uncertainty, but we're 16 

still subtracting nine million pounds to come up with 17 

35.6 million. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  19 

Right.  8.997 million are discards.  It's almost all 20 

discards, so.  Anyway.  Further discussion on the 21 

motion?  Laurie. 22 

   LAURIE NOLAN:  Thank you.  Well, I go 23 

along with Pete's recommendation on this.  We have 24 
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timely reporting, and we have landings that were lower 1 

than the ABC.  George, you feel that we came in over, 2 

but on page 20, it's showing us that in '09 and in '10 3 

we came in under the landings, the total landings when 4 

you add the state and the federal landings together in 5 

here. 6 

   So, if we're coming in under, we're 7 

talking about doubling the quota, increasing a trip 8 

limit, which we haven't even discussed yet, by at the 9 

most a thousand pounds, and we're going to double the 10 

quota, and we don't have any great marketing changes 11 

today; I don't see how we can expect to come close to 12 

catching that quota even though it's a high one. 13 

   We have so many species that we're 14 

talking about around the table that are rebuilt, and we 15 

keep thinking we're going to get to give more fish to 16 

the industry, and it doesn't come out after all the 17 

buffers and all these deductions.  That if this can be 18 

justified as it was to us by the SSC, I don't have a 19 

problem supporting that high quota. 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  21 

George. 22 

   GEORGE DARCY:  Yeah.  When I said 23 

overages, I was referring to the first period where we 24 
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did go over, this year, the one that just closed.  The 1 

state quotas went over, and so did the federal, and we 2 

were off by six days in our closures.  So that's 3 

something we need to work on.  It didn't work the way 4 

it was supposed to.  So that to me is a source of 5 

uncertainty.  Another source of uncertainty in the 6 

management is you're assuming that the numbers are 7 

perfect, and we know they're not.  There are landings 8 

that aren't going to be accounted for.  There are errors 9 

in the accounting.  So there's noise in the system.  I 10 

can't believe that there's no management uncertainty.  11 

In fact, it wasn't the SSC I think that made that call; 12 

it was the Monitoring Committee that made that 13 

recommendation for zero.  Yeah. 14 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Red 15 

Munden. 16 

   RED MUNDEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  17 

Several points.  North Carolina during the last fishing 18 

year received 16 percent of the spiny dogfish quota.  19 

This was before ASMFC acted and for the southern portion 20 

of the range allocated the quota on a state-by-state 21 

basis. 22 

   Our quota was approximately 4.2 million 23 

pounds.  It was harvested in 24 fishing days. So I can 24 
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assure you that if we set the quota at 3.6, if you turn 1 

the North Carolina guys loose on it, coastwide they 2 

would harvest it. 3 

   But the point is going way back to 2000, 4 

I was the chairman of the Spiny Dogfish Committee, as 5 

I still am the chairman of the Spiny Dogfish Committee.  6 

I remember when the quota was 4 million pounds. 7 

   Now, the industry people would say, 8 

well, it was unjustified; it shouldn't have happened.  9 

That quota was set on the basis of the data that were 10 

available, just like today, 4 million pounds.  Keep in 11 

mind that our quota two years ago was 15 million pounds, 12 

for this fishing year 20 million pounds.  And if we go 13 

at 30 million pounds, that's a 50 percent increase.  And 14 

my concern is not the amount of fish that we allocate 15 

to the fishery.  It's what happens in 2013 to 2020.  16 

Now, a lot of you sitting at this table have been in it 17 

for quite a few years like I have, and let me tell you, 18 

it's a whole lot more difficult to reduce a quota than 19 

it is to increase it. 20 

   So, if we take action on this and we turn 21 

around in 2013 and say, well, guys, you had your shot 22 

at them, but now we got to reduce your quota, that's 23 

going to be tough.  So my comments, Mr. Chairman. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Thank you, Red.  Frank Blount. 2 

   FRANK BLOUNT:  Just a procedural point.  3 

This is a committee of the whole, so I intend on voting 4 

on this. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Yeah, you can vote twice, Frank.  Okay.  Are there 7 

other comments around the table?  Jack. 8 

   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  I share Red's 9 

concerns, that this 36 million pounds might be a little 10 

bit too high the more I think about it.  Thirty million 11 

pounds is still a heck of an increase from this year, 12 

and if it prevents us from having to face some tough 13 

times a few years from now and decrease the quota, I 14 

think it's worth considering. 15 

   I'm inclined to offer an amendment to 16 

the motion to change the commercial quota to the lower 17 

number.  Was that 30 million that was suggested?  I 18 

heard also 31 1/2 million.  That wasn't clear to me. 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

There have been several numbers discussed today.  Some 21 

of them were discussed in the context I think of the SSC 22 

meeting.  Some have come in through public comment.  23 

The one that's come in through public comment from the 24 
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sustainable fisheries association was 30 million.  The 1 

one that came in I think from Paul Rego's projections 2 

was -- 3 

   JACK TRAVELSTEAD:  I'd like to amend 4 

the motion to set it at 30 million pounds.  If it passes, 5 

it passes; if it doesn't, we'll consider something else. 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  7 

Motion to amend the 30 million pounds.  Is there a 8 

second to the motion? 9 

   JOHN MCMURRAY:  Second. 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  11 

Second by John McMurray. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  So 13 

the motion is to amend the commercial quota to 30 million 14 

pounds.  Jim, in order to be part of a full 15 

specification package, would that need to be 16 

accompanied by the attendant changes to the ACT and ACL; 17 

or could the commercial quota simply be specified at a 18 

lower number for OY consideration? 19 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Yeah.  The domestic 20 

ACL or the ACL, which is the domestic ABC, and the ACT 21 

are fairly formulated.  Unless, you're going to use 22 

management uncertainty as your rationale for this, you 23 

would not base it on ACT.  So you can certainly specify 24 
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a commercial quota of anything as long as it's less than 1 

the numbers upstream. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  So 3 

the ACL and ACT don't need to be changed; you could 4 

simply just reduce the commercial quota?  Okay. 5 

   JAMES ARMSTRONG:  Chris, we're 6 

obligated to provide rationale and analysis and all 7 

that, so it would definitely help in its submission to 8 

the Service to have a well understood rationale for it. 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 10 

understand.  And from what I've heard Jack say, it would 11 

be related to the stability of the fishery.  But as the 12 

maker of the motion, I'll ask if he wants to expand on 13 

that.  I had Chris Zeman. 14 

   CHRISTOPHER ZEMAN:  Yeah.  I just have 15 

a question for the Science Center.  In terms of I guess 16 

were the biological characteristics changed?  It seems 17 

like in 2000 we had an estimate that this fishery would 18 

not rebuild this quickly, and I'm guessing that was 19 

based on certain biological parameters based on the 20 

biology of the stock. 21 

   Now that we see that that's changed, I'm 22 

guessing that we saw a stock survey that showed 23 

significant abundance and that allowed us to raise these 24 
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quotas.  But when it goes back to the projections for 1 

future years, did we change the biological parameters 2 

to reflect the quicker rebuilding, or are we still using 3 

the same biological parameters that we used back in 4 

2000? 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Jim. 6 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  The projections are 7 

based on the sizes and ages of fish that we estimate are 8 

in the population.  So it goes down because in that 9 

projection, as Rick Robins had said, there was very 10 

little recruitment estimated for about 10 years in 11 

around 2000, from 1990-something to the early 2000s or 12 

maybe later.  So, as that is coming into the population, 13 

that's responsible for the lack of predicted fertility 14 

of the population and also the less accumulation of 15 

biomass due to growth.  So those things are in the 16 

model. 17 

   When you said biological parameters, it 18 

was kind of implying changes in the number of pups 19 

produced.  I think if that is estimated, I'm not sure 20 

that it is in the model. I don't think there's been a 21 

change in that. 22 

   But Paul does included relevant life 23 

history characteristics of the dogfish.  It's a fairly 24 
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detailed model that's grounded in life history and the 1 

sizes and ages of the dogfish in the population.  So 2 

it's not a real like overarching kind of model like a 3 

production model that doesn't consider life history.  4 

This model is really grounded in the details. 5 

   CHRISTOPHER ZEMAN:  And it's the same 6 

model that was used in 2000? 7 

   JAMES WEINBERG:  It is. 8 

   CHRISTOPHER ZEMAN:  I think just based 9 

on that response, I will support the original motion. 10 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  11 

Steve Schafer. 12 

   STEVEN SCHAFER:  Thank you, Mr. 13 

Chairman.  In looking at the original motion with the 14 

commercial quota of 35.694 and the corresponding set of 15 

numbers for the ACL and the ACT and the TAL, does this 16 

reduction in the motion to amend represent a level of 17 

management uncertainty, in your opinion? 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  19 

Well, I think the rationale that Jack offered was that 20 

it was intended to achieve some stability in the 21 

fishery.  And that's really more an OY consideration 22 

than it is a management uncertainty factor. 23 

   STEVEN SCHAFER:  Thanks.  I just 24 
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wanted to make sure it wasn't attributed to management 1 

uncertainty. 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 3 

have Mike Luisi. 4 

   MICHAEL LUISI:  Thank you, Mr. 5 

Chairman.  The increase from 20 to 30 million pounds is 6 

pretty substantial, and I would be supportive of the 7 

amended change to 30 million.  But what I keep hearing 8 

the reasoning behind it it's to create some form of 9 

stability.  I mean that would be the reason why I would 10 

vote in favor of that option. 11 

   But I thought that the conversation just 12 

an hour ago regarding the graph that was shown with the 13 

constant harvest over time was somewhat looked down upon 14 

as far as whether or not there's any certainty of the 15 

stability if you were to choose a lower commercial 16 

quota.  I mean is there really any certainty whether or 17 

not stability would be achieved, or are we just kind of 18 

making things up here? 19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  20 

That's a fair question.  I think the point was that the 21 

projection that Paul Rego had done was based on a more 22 

of a constant F, and it didn't accurately reflect an 23 

application year to year of the Council's Control Rule 24 
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that we have in place.  But I think there is still some 1 

relationship between what's left in the water to the 2 

extent that that relates to future biomass, and the 3 

Control Rule would be applied to that future biomass to 4 

derive future quotas.  But that's not clearly reflected 5 

in those projections.  So I think there is some 6 

relationship between what's left and what can be taken 7 

in the future, but I don't think you can literally take 8 

Paul Rego's projections about a constant F and use that 9 

to project what we would catch next year.  John, can you 10 

elaborate on that? 11 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  That's a good summary of 12 

the issue.  Basically, what you're looking for here, 13 

you're saying:  Is a 30 million pound limit going to add 14 

stability to the fishery?  Well, it will probably add 15 

more than a 35 million pound limit, but exactly how much 16 

it's going to add is going to need some analysis. 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  18 

Frank. 19 

   FRANK BLOUNT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  20 

I intend to support the original motion.  I think we 21 

have an opportunity to give something back here.  I go 22 

back to Jim Lovgren's comments on how this fishery and 23 

what's taken place.  A couple other fisheries, they're 24 
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not quite the same because of the biology of the fish.  1 

If you look at the haddock resource, haddock is rebuilt. 2 

   The quotas going down every year because 3 

the stock is disappearing.  We don't have the 4 

opportunity for the fishermen to catch them.  A former 5 

Council members said we better hurry up and catch them 6 

before they disappear.  We heard this morning on fluke 7 

that -- you know, it's not official, but 8 

congratulations, they might be rebuilt, but we were 9 

wrong; you might have to take a 10 percent cut.  None 10 

of the numbers are an absolute science.  We're talking 11 

about one year specs here.  We're talking about the 12 

graph looks like out in the future.  We're not setting 13 

multi-year specs here.  These are one year specs to go 14 

forward. 15 

   The stability.  I mean if you're wrong 16 

for next year, instead of 35 million it might be 30 17 

million.  It's still going to be a huge increase from 18 

what they have this year.  I think it's a chance to give 19 

back.  I'm going to support the original motion. 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  21 

Thank you.  Further comments?  Pete. 22 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  I can't support the 23 

substitute motion because I'm not the (inaudible) -- I'm 24 
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the stability in the fishery.  And I look at New 1 

Jersey's allocation of 12 1/2 percent of the coastal 2 

quota, and I'm comparing the two quotas up there; and 3 

I can't under the stability of the fishery I cannot 4 

understand why I would deny our gillnet fleet 1.9 5 

million pounds.  And that's what it translates into.  6 

Why am I not giving them the opportunity to take that? 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  8 

Thank you.  Laurie.  And then I'll go ahead and call the 9 

question. 10 

   LAURIE NOLAN:  Well, I just wonder why 11 

Jack went to 30 and not at least 31.167, as was 12 

recommended by staff.  I don't see anywhere where we're 13 

talking about 30.  Where did the 30 come from?  I just 14 

feel that -- you know, not only did we go low, but we 15 

kind of went lower than what the numbers look like. 16 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  17 

Laurie, 30 came in from public comment.  All right.  So 18 

the motion is to amend.  We'll vote on the motion to 19 

amend the commercial quota to 30 million pounds.  Is the 20 

Council ready for the question?   21 

 (Motion as voted.) 22 

 {Move to amend the commercial quota to 30.0 million 23 

 pounds.} 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 1 

in favor please raise your hand.   2 

 (Response.) 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Seven.  4 

Opposed like sign.   5 

 (Response.) 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Eleven.  7 

Abstentions.   8 

 (No Response.) 9 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  The motion 10 

fails.  Back to the main motion. 11 

   Motion is to move that the spiny dogfish 12 

ACL for 2012 be set at 44.868 million pounds, the ACT 13 

at 44.737 million pounds, the TAL at 35.740 million 14 

pounds, and the commercial quota at 35.694 million 15 

pounds. 16 

   Is the Council ready for the question?     17 

 (Motion as voted.) 18 

 {Move that the spiny dogfish ACL for 2012 be set at 19 

 44.868 million pounds, the ACT at 44.737 million 20 

 pounds, and the TAL be set at 35.740 million 21 

 pounds, and a commercial quota at 35.694 million 22 

 pounds.} 23 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 24 
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in favor please raise your hand.   1 

 (Response.) 2 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Sixteen.  3 

Opposed like sign.   4 

 (No Response.) 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  6 

Abstentions like sign.   7 

 (Response.) 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Two 9 

abstentions.  The motion carries.  Thank you.  Pete. 10 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Mr. Chairman, I offer a 11 

second motion to set the trip limit for spiney dogfish 12 

up to 4,000 pounds for the 2012 fishing year. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Is 14 

there a second to the motion?  Second by Erling Berg.  15 

Discussion on the motion?  Discussion on the motion?  16 

Seeing none, is the Council ready for the question?  The 17 

motion is to move to set the trip limit at 4,000 pounds 18 

for the 2012 fishing year.   19 

 (Motion as voted.) 20 

 {Move to set the trip limit for spiney dogfish up 21 

 to 4,000 pounds for 2012 fishing year.} 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  All those 23 

in favor please raise your hand.   24 
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 (Response.) 1 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  Eighteen.  2 

Opposed like sign.   3 

 (No Response.) 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  5 

Abstentions like sign.   6 

 (Response.) 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIR RICK ROBINS:  One 8 

abstention.  The motion carries.  Thank you. 9 

   Jim, is there any other business to come 10 

before us for specifications?  Okay.  Jim, we are 11 

running behind right now.  We have to go into a scoping 12 

meeting.  If you want to offer a comment and just keep 13 

it very brief, that would be fine.  And then we'll go 14 

into our scoping meeting. 15 

   JAMES LOVGREN:  Yeah.  I had wanted to 16 

say something about black sea bass, but didn't really 17 

have a chance.  But I've been fishing over 35 years, and 18 

my observations I think I'm a pretty astute observer of 19 

the environment there, and what I'm seeing in the 20 

changes in fishery migrations due to the warming -- I 21 

can only attribute it to global warming.  It's really 22 

incredible.  Our lobster fishery's collapsing off of 23 

New Jersey.  What used to be 10/12 miles now these 24 
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lobsters are all 30 or 35 miles off.  They're off the 1 

Bank.  They're going into the deep water where it's 2 

colder.  Our summer flounder are changing migration 3 

there. 4 

   When you look at the North Carolina 5 

fishery there, well, they're catching the fish off of 6 

New Jersey in the wintertime.  They're off of the 7 

Hudson.  They're even east of the Hudson River or the 8 

Hudson Canyon. 9 

   This winter the best fishing was in 70 10 

fathom.  That's like 450 feet or so instead of 40 11 

fathom.  They're even in the deeper water in the winter 12 

down here. 13 

   I know they're packed tight on the 14 

southern Georges Banks.  We got flat back flounders 15 

have changed migratory patterns.  Half of them off of 16 

New Jersey are staying in deep water.  They're not even 17 

going into the rivers anymore.  We catch them in the 18 

summer and the winter around the mudhole area. 19 

   And I can tell you like a thousand pounds 20 

in the summertime in an hour is no problem, but we got 21 

to throw them away.  But there is a problem here, and 22 

it is global warming, and it needs to be addressed. 23 

   And we need to be looking into how that's 24 
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going to affect fishery management.  And let me point 1 

this out here.  If global warming is happening here, and 2 

we're watching it -- Preston and Red, Howard, you have 3 

the two biggest nursery grounds on the east coast here, 4 

in the Pamlico Sound and the Chesapeake Bay. 5 

   Pamlico Sound's going to be hit first.  6 

It's not closed, but it is very susceptible to warming 7 

up fast.  And it's going to get too warm for most of our 8 

species to be spawning, and the species in the 9 

Mid-Atlantic love to go into the inshore estuary 10 

borders. 11 

   You could be looking at a very serious 12 

problem here.  And there's nothing to replace Pamlico 13 

Sound and Chesapeake Bay to the north.  The fish can 14 

move north in the ocean, but where are they going to 15 

breed? 16 

   These are serious questions.  I just 17 

want to bring this to the attention.  Really there's 18 

serious work needs to be done here.  There's nothing 19 

you're going to do to reverse it really, but you need 20 

to find out what can happen and is there any way to 21 

address it.  That's my concerns here. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  23 

Thanks for sharing that,  Jim.  We've seen a number of 24 
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factors that may be related to -- or a number of 1 

fisheries issues that may be related to climate change.  2 

And the productivity in the inshore resources of 3 

surfclams, for example, here off New Jersey and the 4 

DelMarva has changed a lot.  And that's a leading 5 

hypothesis, so. 6 

   JAMES LOVGREN:  I didn't even mention 7 

surfclams, the populations, whatever.  It's dying out 8 

down south.  You got these hog nose rays moving into all 9 

of the northern New Jersey bays and so forth eating hard 10 

clams.  There's a lot of stuff going on here. 11 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  12 

Yeah.  Thank you, Jim.  Okay.  We have an HMS scoping 13 

presentation next.  Do you all need a minute to set up, 14 

or are you ready to go?  All right.  We'll just be at 15 

ease for a few minutes while you all get ready.  Thanks. 16 

   [Break: 5:05 p.m. to 5:10 p.m.] 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  The 18 

FMP scoping presentation.  Pete Cooper and Steve Durkee 19 

will be presenting on behalf of HMS.  And so if you 20 

gentlemen want to go ahead and start, that would be 21 

great. 22 

   And before anybody leaves the room, we 23 

have a reception at six o'clock in the ballroom next to 24 
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the bar in the hotel beginning at six o'clock.  Go 1 

ahead. 2 

 ____________________________________________ 3 

 4 

 SCOPING PRESENTATION ON CONSOLIDATED HMS FMP 5 

   PETER COOPER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  6 

This is a issues and options presentation for scoping 7 

to amend the HMS fishery management plan.  And just a 8 

quick overview:  We're going to talk about need for 9 

action, some recent shark stock assessments, some 10 

possible management alternatives, and just kind of 11 

throwing out a list of directions to go before we start 12 

deciding on what we put things together for our 13 

predraft, and request for comments. 14 

   So the need for action here are the 15 

availability of new and updated stock assessments for 16 

scalloped hammerhead, dusky sandbar and black nosed 17 

sharks. 18 

   These assessments indicate management 19 

measures are necessary to end overfishing and rebuild 20 

some of these stocks.  And the timeline that we're 21 

working on for these new management measures to be in 22 

place would be finalized by April 28, 2013. That's two 23 

years from when NMFS made the determination for 24 
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scalloped hammerhead sharks. 1 

   And so here's a quick table.  And I'm 2 

going to go into the stock assessments in more depth, 3 

but just a quick look.  We have six new stock statuses 4 

and then one improved status, and that's overfishing of 5 

sandbar sharks. 6 

   So for scalloped hammerhead shark it was 7 

determined to be overfished with overfishing occurring 8 

by NMFS in April.  And the determination is based on the 9 

Haze et all paper stock assessment of scalloped 10 

hammerheads in the western North Atlantic Ocean and the 11 

Gulf of Mexico.  That was published in 2009 in the North 12 

American Journal of Fisheries Management.  The 13 

Southeast Fishery Science Center reviewed the paper and 14 

determined that the assessment is complete and an 15 

improvement over the 2008 aggregated assessment for 16 

hammerhead sharks and that the assessment is 17 

appropriate for U.S. management decisions. 18 

   In the paper the stock is estimated to 19 

be at 17 percent of virgin stock size, and an annual TAC 20 

of 2,853 sharks is estimated to allow a 70 percent 21 

probability to rebuild the stock in 10 years.  And when 22 

looking at 2009 scalloped hammerhead commercial 23 

landings plus recreational landings and using the 24 
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discard estimate that was used in the stock assessment, 1 

it leads to a reduction of 20 percent in scalloped 2 

hammerhead mortality. 3 

   For the next four stocks, they all come 4 

out of the recent SEDAR 21 stock assessment, which the 5 

final stock assessment became available a couple weeks 6 

ago. 7 

   For dusky sharks, the assessment used an 8 

age-structured, catch-free variant model mainly 9 

because dusky sharks have been prohibited from 10 

commercial and recreational retention since 2000.  So 11 

the landings data and poor species ID for duskies in the 12 

data was deemed untrustworthy to be used in a standard 13 

model, so they went with the catch-free.  What came out 14 

of it was an estimated fishing mortality rate of 0.2 and 15 

provides a 70 percent chance of rebuilding.  And the 16 

current F of 2009 is about -- is .06. 17 

   So to rebuild the stock looks like we'll 18 

undertake a two-thirds reduction in fishing mortality 19 

relative to 2009 F.  An occurred fishing mortality has 20 

a low probability of rebuilding the stock. 21 

   There was also a TAC estimate, but 22 

because it was a catch-free model, stock assessment 23 

scientists don't feel that that's really reliable, and 24 
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they suggested we work on reducing F. 1 

   For sandbar sharks, also in the SEDAR 2 

assessment, they came back as continuing to be 3 

overfished, but that overfishing is no longer 4 

occurring.  So it seems hopefully as a result of the 5 

prohibition of sandbar sharks in 2008.  And the only 6 

commercial harvest is in the shark research fishery. 7 

   The year rebuild improved from 2070 to 8 

2066, but stock seems to be slightly more overfished.  9 

And there is a greater than 70 percent probability that 10 

the stock will rebuild by 2070 maintaining a 2009 TAC 11 

of 220 metric tons.  For black nosed shark the last 12 

assessment took place in 2007, but in this assessment, 13 

the stock was split based on genetic life history and 14 

tagging information, so it was one stock in 2007 split 15 

into Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico stocks in this 16 

2010-2011 assessment.  For the Atlantic it came back as 17 

overfished with overfishing occurring.  The estimate 18 

of rebuilding of 70 percent by 2043 is with a TAC of 7300 19 

sharks. 20 

   For the previous assessment, the TAC was 21 

19,200 sharks for both areas, just to make everybody 22 

aware of that.  The Gulf of Mexico assessment when the 23 

assessment came to the Review Workshop, the Review Panel 24 
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made up of members from the Center of Independent 1 

Experts took a look at the model. 2 

   It was unable to fit trends in some of 3 

the abundance indexes, and there was a fundamental lack 4 

of fit in some of the input data to the model, so the 5 

Review Panel did not accept the stock assessment for 6 

Gulf of Mexico black nosed sharks; therefore, we have 7 

unknown status for overfished and overfishing. 8 

   So those were the five stock assessments 9 

that we're dealing with.  And now in the next few slides 10 

it's just kind of a list of possible management 11 

approaches to rebuild the stocks that need rebuilding.  12 

So for scalloped hammerheads, I'm just kind of looking 13 

at some of the challenges.  It's overfished with 14 

overfishing occurring.  It's generally not directly 15 

targeted in commercial shark fisheries.  They made up 16 

about 16 percent of the total landings since 2008 when 17 

Amendment 2 went into place.  They have extremely high 18 

vessel mortality rates in the bottom long line shark 19 

fishery over 90 percent and pretty high in the gillnet 20 

fisheries.  It looks to be about 75 percent. 21 

   We have recreational landings that 22 

average about a thousand sharks per year from 2006 to 23 

2009.  But retention in ICCAT fisheries, so that is 24 
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fisheries that target tuna and tuna-like species, 1 

specifically the pelagic long-line fishery. 2 

   And the recreational fishery if you are 3 

retaining a tuna, a swordfish or a billfish, they are 4 

prohibited from retention.  And it came into effect on 5 

September 28th when the final rule to implement the 6 

ICCAT recommendations to prohibit retention of oceanic 7 

white tail and scalloped hammerhead shark published. 8 

   So the list of potential measures we're 9 

going to have to develop a TAC and ACL for scalloped 10 

hammerhead sharks and create the appropriate quotas. 11 

   And then how to reduce mortality.  12 

Would gear restrictions be helpful?  There are some 13 

limits on number of hooks in the shark research fishery, 14 

and it seems like those fishermen are still able to reach 15 

their trip limits.  Soak time seems to be a big issue 16 

with hammerhead sharks.  After you get passed four 17 

hours, we see a drastic increase in 18 

at-vessel mortality.  We've had suggestions to require 19 

gear tending for bottom long-line fishermen. 20 

   We have some instances where guys will 21 

set a large amount of gear, catch their trip limit, leave 22 

the gear in the water, come back to port, land their trip 23 

limit, and then go back out and haul the rest of the gear. 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 290

   Time area closures for commercial and 1 

recreational fishing.  Just avoidance, especially 2 

since they do have high at-vessel mortality rates.  3 

Should there be an individual commercial quota for 4 

scalloped hammerhead sharks right now? 5 

   They are within the non-sandbar large 6 

coastal shark quota.  So should they be maybe pulled 7 

out, and should that quota be linked with the 8 

non-sandbar large coastal shark quota? 9 

   So, if the scalloped hammerhead quota 10 

was reached, then the rest of the non-sandbar large 11 

coastal shark fishery would close.  And that's a 12 

similar situation that we have with black nosed sharks 13 

currently and small coastal shark quota. 14 

   Bag and trip limits for commercial and 15 

recreational vessels.  The trip limit is 33 for the 16 

commercial directed guys for non-sandbar large coastal 17 

sharks.  Should it be smaller for scalloped 18 

hammerheads?  They could catch 33 right now.  Should it 19 

be a number less than that?  Gear technology and would 20 

rehooks work?  There's been some research with 21 

electropositive metals that might work in the pelagic 22 

long-line fishery where scalloped hammerhead sharks 23 

aren't the targeted species. 24 
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   There's an overall retention 1 

prohibition.  You could also add it to the research 2 

fishery priorities and just make harvest available 3 

within the research fishery or just looking for other 4 

suggestions that we may be missing or directions to go. 5 

   For duskies, they're prohibited from 6 

commercial and recreational harvest, but we still have 7 

an F that needs to be reduced by two-thirds to reach 8 

rebuilding those. 9 

   So a lot of the ideas for scalloped 10 

hammerheads are met by time area closures, gear and soak 11 

time restrictions especially when you have a high 12 

at-vessel mortality rate of 75 percent on bottom 13 

long-line and 50 percent on pelagic long-line.  And 14 

then just any other suggestions on how to approach 15 

duskies. 16 

   For sandbars, currently they're 17 

prohibited from recreational harvest, and commercial 18 

harvest is limited to the shark research fishery.  And 19 

the stock assessment came back encouraging that 20 

overfishing is not occurring and there's a greater than 21 

70 percent probability of rebuilding the stock by 2070.  22 

So is there a need to even take additional measures here 23 

for sandbar? 24 
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   For black nosed sharks now we have two 1 

stocks.  So we have two new ACLs or TACs to create.  2 

Should we consider regional allocations based on the 3 

current TAC and recommended Atlantic black nosed TAC? 4 

   For example, should we take that 5 

recommended 7300 sharks for the Atlantic, subtract it 6 

from the current TAC of 19,200 sharks and give the rest 7 

to the Gulf of Mexico, which is about 11,900 sharks? 8 

   Or should we take a look at the previous 9 

assessment, which had a split between the Gulf of Mexico 10 

and Atlantic at 51 percent to 49 percent and give the 11 

Gulf of Mexico 51 percent of that previous TAC, which 12 

is about 9800 sharks and then use the recommendation for 13 

the Atlantic in the Atlantic? 14 

   Should we also reconsider some of the 15 

recreational size and bag limits?  And should we 16 

consider using or limiting harvest of black nosed just 17 

in the research fishery? 18 

   So I just kind of blew through 19 

everything.  I'd like to have a chance if you want to 20 

do comments now, I'll definitely take those.  You can 21 

also submit comments on regs.gov.  And we take 22 

anything, fax, e-mail, phone.  And we would have a bunch 23 

of other scoping meetings.  The comment period ends 24 
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December 31st. 1 

   And at some point we're going to have a 2 

conference call, on December 15th, that anybody can dial 3 

into.  We'll kind of go through the same thing.  And 4 

then here's our timeline, just kind of for scoping.  And 5 

then a predraft proposed rule.  And then finally IS. 6 

   So I'll open it up to questions and 7 

comments. 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  9 

Pete, you spoke about the potential time and area 10 

closures for scalloped hammerheads and I believe also 11 

for duskies.  Can you give us an idea of the potential 12 

range of those closures? 13 

   Would you be looking to potentially 14 

cover them throughout their life cycle or when they're 15 

concentrated at certain times of the year?  I mean do 16 

you have any starting point or frame of reference for 17 

us to understand what the implications of the time and 18 

area closures could look like? 19 

   PETER COOPER:  Right now we're just 20 

trying to kind of figure out what we should do, and so 21 

we've received comments that we should kind of take a 22 

kind of directed specific approach to looking at time 23 

area closures.  So we haven't decided on how exactly to 24 
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do it.  In my opinion, taking a look at where a lot of 1 

the interactions are taking place and maybe not only 2 

spatially but temporally and figuring out where we can 3 

minimize some of those interactions so that we can reach 4 

the rebuilding goals.  I think more specifically 5 

targeted rather than kind of blanketed time area 6 

closures. 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Are 8 

some of those concentrations in the Mid-Atlantic? 9 

   PETER COOPER:  I am trying to see what 10 

I have for landings.  We kind of have things lumped 11 

together.  There are -- I don't recall.  I think we have 12 

a lot -- go ahead. 13 

   STEVEN DURKEE:  Yeah.  We don't have 14 

specific data as far as where that time area closure 15 

could be in reference to the Mid-Atlantic; however, 16 

there are a number of interactions in this area. 17 

   So whether it would be appropriate to 18 

have it in the Mid-Atlantic versus in the South 19 

Atlantic, we need to look at the data a little closer 20 

for that.  We don't have that available right now. 21 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I'll 22 

be glad to follow up with you all about that.  I just 23 

wanted to understand what we might be in store for.  24 
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Howard. 1 

   HOWARD KING:  Yes.  Thank you.  Is 2 

there a fairly large population of dusky and sandbar but 3 

just not anything close to the unfished population size?  4 

For instance, with such a bleak rebuilding probability, 5 

why aren't they declared endangered, for instance? 6 

   PETER COOPER:  I think as far as 7 

declaring endangered, that's a different process than 8 

what we're going through.  As far as the number from 9 

virgin biomass, I don't have that. 10 

   STEVEN DURKEE:  While he's looking that 11 

up, we do sometimes receive petitions for Endangered 12 

Species Act listing; however, it's a completely 13 

different process than what we're using right now. 14 

   What we see out of the previous stock 15 

assessment:  Is it possible to have rebuilding under a 16 

low F?  What we're seeing now in the new stock 17 

assessment, though, is that that F is still too high. 18 

   And so within the realm of 19 

Magnuson-Steven and our responsibilities as we're 20 

looking in as far as a separate petition for Endangered 21 

Species Act, that's not what our goal is right now.  22 

That would be somebody else submitting a petition for 23 

that. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Pete. 2 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. 3 

Chairman.  To follow Howard's question, I mean through 4 

the ASMFC shark plan that mimics everything in the 5 

federal plan perhaps endangered isn't the word, but we 6 

moved about 10 species over to the prohibited species 7 

list. 8 

   And I guess I'll rephrase Howard's 9 

question then about the scalloped hammerhead.  If the 10 

future is bleak, yeah, why wouldn't you just put it on?  11 

Wouldn't it be easier for us just to slide over to a 12 

prohibited species?  I'm not saying I'd like to do it, 13 

but we've done it for about 10 other species already just 14 

recently within the last year. 15 

   PETER COOPER:  And we have gotten other 16 

comments to put it on the prohibited species list 17 

especially when we went through our rule making to put 18 

in the ICCAT recommendations. 19 

   I think one of the challenges is it is 20 

prohibited, and the fisheries are still interacting 21 

with it because of its at-vessel mortality especially 22 

in the bottom long-line fishery.  You're still going to 23 

have a high level of dead discards if you just prohibit 24 
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it. 1 

   So I don't know if putting it on the 2 

prohibited species list will necessarily get mortality 3 

down to where it needs to be, but that's something we 4 

can look into.  And then I believe there is a petition 5 

to put scalloped hammerheads on the Endangered Species 6 

List, and that's currently undergoing a review. 7 

   STEVEN DURKEE:  Yeah.  I think so.  8 

And you also notice that it's not too bleak for scalloped 9 

hammerheads.  I believe it's there's a 70 percent 10 

probability of rebuilding within 10 years under a TAC 11 

that's only 20 percent less than what we had.  So it's 12 

manageable within management measures at our disposal. 13 

   Really, as Pete mentioned, though, the 14 

at-vessel mortality is the big problem.  And if you 15 

prohibit them and they're still catching them and 16 

bringing them in dead, it's just regulatory discards.  17 

It's not doing anybody any good including the stock. 18 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  19 

Other questions?  Kevin. 20 

   KEVIN SAUNDERS:  Thank you, Mr. 21 

Chairman.  Pete, it's more of a comment than a question.  22 

But I'd like to discourage you from using soak time as 23 

effort control. 24 
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   In general the shark fishery is already 1 

pretty challenging to enforce regulations upon just 2 

because of the difficulty of identifying the species and 3 

the number of regs that are associated with it.  I 4 

understand for these fisheries you got to look outside 5 

the box and do some more things.  But usually these 6 

regulations are enforced by our better boarding 7 

officers.  If there's a tier level, it's their top tier.  8 

And to tie one of those guys up for four hours when they 9 

sat there and waited for a vessel just to get the proper 10 

evidence they need to prosecute a case, it would be bad, 11 

or it would be discouraging to even enforce that. 12 

   So, if you do choose to go that route, 13 

I would suggest something like a nighttime all the gear 14 

has to be pulled, something to that effect than like a 15 

four hour soak time limit.  Thank you. 16 

   PETER COOPER:  Thanks.  And if you have 17 

a moment after we're done, I'd like to talk to you about 18 

that stuff.  19 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Any 20 

other questions or comments on scoping?  All right.  21 

Gentlemen, thank you very much for the presentation. 22 

   PETER COOPER:  Thank you. 23 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  And 24 
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we'll stay in touch.  I'd like to follow up with you 1 

after the meeting or otherwise about some of the 2 

distributions of these issues so that I think we can 3 

maybe better understand where we should be concerned 4 

about these interactions. 5 

   PETER COOPER:  Yeah. Definitely.  6 

Thank you. 7 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  And, 8 

again, we have a reception beginning at six o'clock in 9 

the ballroom adjacent to the bar, not the bar area where 10 

we ate lunch today, but the bar beyond the check-in 11 

registration area.  There's an adjacent reception 12 

room, and we have a reception there beginning at six 13 

o'clock.  Thank you.  Yes.  And we reconvene tomorrow 14 

morning at 8:30.  With that we're adjourned.  Thanks. 15 

   16 

WHEREUPON: 17 

   18 

   THE MEETING WAS SUSPENDED AT 5:35 P.M. 19 

   20 

   21 

   22 

   23 

     24 
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[8:14 a.m.] 1 

 _______________________________ 2 

 INTRODUCTIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 3 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Good 4 

morning.  Let's go ahead and get started.  We've got 5 

just a few items this morning.   6 

 _______________________ 7 

 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 8 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  And 9 

the first is approval of the minutes.  You've had the 10 

minutes.  They've been distributed with the briefing 11 

book.  Are there any corrections to the minutes?  12 

Seeing none, those are approved by consent.  We'll go 13 

into the enforcement reports, and I'll start with the 14 

Coast Guard.  Kevin. 15 

 _______________________ 16 

 U.S. COAST GUARD REPORT 17 

   KEVIN SAUNDERS:  Thank you, Mr. 18 

Chairman.  So our year ends closeout these last two 19 

months we had 278 boardings, which is up from last year, 20 

FY 10. 21 

   We actually over the whole year we had 22 

a 58 percent increase in fisheries violations for the 23 

previous year.  Most of those took place during the 24 
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striper season. 1 

   We had about a 50 percent compliance rate 2 

in that fishery, whereas, most other fisheries are in 3 

the high 90s for an average of 98.3 percent compliance 4 

overall for the fisheries in the Mid-Atlantic. 5 

   That number is somewhat flawed because 6 

technically I can do boarding and have my eyes closed 7 

the whole time, and there will be a hundred percent 8 

compliance.  The Coast Guard recognizes that.  So we're 9 

actually this upcoming year we're changing our metric 10 

for measuring compliance to a level of effective 11 

enforcement which takes into account the number of 12 

boardings we do on each of our major fisheries. 13 

   We call them high presence fisheries and 14 

low presence fisheries.  And we have a percent of target 15 

we want to hit of each of those.  And then we're going 16 

to measure the number of violations we found in each one. 17 

   So hopefully, we'll have a much more 18 

effective measure to determine if overall in the 19 

Mid-Atlantic our fleets are compliant or not.  But over 20 

these last two months, we had zero fisheries violations. 21 

   We did have two marine protected species 22 

supports.  We did one with Station Portsmouth.  There 23 

was a turtle that we transferred to a fish center, and 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 5

we also had 38 turtles that were hatchlings that were 1 

rehabilitated and released back into the ocean.  That 2 

was down in North Carolina. 3 

   So, as far as our search and rescue 4 

highlights go, we had 13 marine casualties these last 5 

two months.  The big point we want to point out here is 6 

that we spend a lot of effort and time concentrating on 7 

the tuna fleets because we've had some MEC coverage, the 8 

medium endurance cutters, and in the process of doing 9 

that we've noticed that a lot of the commercial boats 10 

that have the general permits they're actually fishing 11 

like they have recreational gear on board when it comes 12 

to safety compliance. 13 

   So the big thing that we're trying to 14 

promote now is if you have an angling permit and you're 15 

a recreational vessel, you can get away with a 16 

recreational required gear for safety, but if you have 17 

that commercial permit, even if you think you happen to 18 

be fishing recreationally, if you have that permit on 19 

board, we're going to consider you a commercial vessel 20 

when it comes to your safety requirements. 21 

   So just please pass that to the fishermen 22 

in your regions to take that in high consideration.  I 23 

mean you guys are fishing offshore in sometimes smaller 24 
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boats anyway.  It's important to make sure that they 1 

have the proper safety gear to ensure their 2 

survivability if something was to happen. 3 

   So with that, unless there's any other 4 

questions, I'd like to introduce Special Agent Logan 5 

Gregory.  He's the new special agent in charge. 6 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  7 

Logan, welcome and congratulations on your new position. 8 

 ___________________________ 9 

 NMFS LAW ENFORCEMENT REPORT 10 

   LOGAN GREGORY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  11 

Just real quick I'd like to thank everybody here for 12 

giving me this opportunity to speak and introduce myself 13 

a little bit and give you an idea of my perspective and 14 

where I come from. 15 

   I just have a brief write-up here that 16 

I'd like to read to you.  As you know, we have a new 17 

director with the Office of Law Enforcement, who started 18 

last month, Bruce Buxon. 19 

   I know he is planning to come to some 20 

Council meetings as his schedule permits, and we're 21 

looking forward to moving forward and getting past some 22 

of the issues that have occurred. 23 

   This week I assumed my new role as the 24 
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agent in charge in the Northeast Division.  I'm looking 1 

forward to continue to work with the councils and the 2 

fishing industry leaders to help ensure that our 3 

enforcement mission priorities are in line with ensuring 4 

the sustainability of the nation's fisheries resources. 5 

   Over the last 20 years with the Agency, 6 

I've learned many things, and I'm mindful of the fact 7 

that commercial fishing is not just a job or even a career 8 

for most, but a way of life, a part of their family 9 

history and even a right of passage.  It's because of 10 

this that I believe it is vitally important that we all 11 

work together to ensure that this can continue.  Our 12 

office serves a vital role in this process, and among 13 

other goals we want to ensure a level playing field to 14 

ensure that those who are trying to comply with the 15 

regulations are not disadvantaged by those who don't. 16 

   We continue to receive positive feedback 17 

with the hiring of Don Fry, who is a former commercial 18 

fisherman and a regional fishery specialist as our new 19 

Northeast Division compliance liaison. 20 

   Don spent numerous hours traveling the 21 

Northeast and the mid-Atlantic coasts and has met with 22 

several industry leaders.  The Northeast Division has 23 

hired five new uniformed officers who are currently in 24 
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various stages of training. 1 

   We're in the process of hiring an 2 

additional five officers, and that should be occurring 3 

in the next month.  In the Mid-Atlantic we have an 4 

enforcement officer in the Menoran, New Jersey office, 5 

Kevin Matthews, and we hope to hire another enforcement 6 

officer next month to work out of the Newport News, 7 

Virginia office. 8 

   The key to this new program is 9 

communication and coordination with our state and U.S. 10 

Coast Guard partners.  So there has been some concerns 11 

from industry that they fear that maybe we would be sort 12 

of like a triple entendre threat to boarding vessels or 13 

interacting with the industry, so the Coast Guard would 14 

board them at sea; the state may board them closer 15 

inshore, and then we would be there at the dock or at 16 

sea.  But the whole idea is to work with the Coast Guard 17 

and our state enforcement partners to improve 18 

effectiveness. 19 

   And another change in operations, NOAA 20 

has selected administrative law judges from the 21 

Environmental Protection Agency to hear NOAA Fisheries 22 

cases. 23 

   Before putting these new ALJs in place, 24 



  
 

 

 
 
 

 9

NOAA has looked at a number of factors including 1 

experience in hearing enforcement cases, experience in 2 

handling complex natural resource issues, and a full 3 

support infrastructure. 4 

   Administrative law judges from the EPA 5 

have extensive experience handling enforcement cases 6 

involving complex federal natural resource statutes 7 

including the Clean Water Act, the Marine Protection and 8 

Research and Sanctuaries Act. 9 

   I have a few cases here that I'd like to 10 

mention.  We're continuing an investigation into seal 11 

shootings around Cape Cod, Massachusetts, and we just 12 

opened an investigation into the shooting of the pilot 13 

whale in New Jersey.  There's not a lot of information 14 

available on either of those at this time, so that's 15 

pretty much all I have.  Recently a 15 count indictment 16 

was returned by a federal grand jury in Camden, New 17 

Jersey following the arrest of six individuals from New 18 

Jersey and Maryland and the seizure of 10 oyster fishing 19 

boats in New Jersey.  The indictment charges the six 20 

individuals and two related companies with creating 21 

false reports and records of harvested oysters, 22 

illegally trafficking and illegally harvested oysters, 23 

obstruction of justice, and charges the five individuals 24 
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and two companies with conspiracy to commit all of these 1 

offenses. 2 

   Steven Delaney was sentenced in the 3 

United States District Court in the District of 4 

Massachusetts.  Mr. Delaney was the owner and operator 5 

of South Shore Fisheries, which is a seafood repacking 6 

company. 7 

   Delaney was found guilty of one felony  8 

Lacey Act violation for the false labeling of seafood 9 

and one misdemeanor FDA misbranding charge for 10 

falsifying the country of origin. 11 

   Delaney was sentenced to probation, and 12 

he will also serve three months of house confinement with 13 

electronic monitoring and must pay a $5,000 fine and 14 

court costs.  And that's my presentation. 15 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Thank 16 

you, Logan.  And, again, we look forward to working with 17 

you.  Are there any questions on either of these 18 

reports?  Thank you.  All right.  Chris Moore.  19 

Executive director's report. 20 

 _________________________ 21 

 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 22 

   CHRIS MOORE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  23 

I'll be referring to the items behind Tab 9 in your 24 
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briefing book.  The first item there is the thing that 1 

you typically see behind my tab.  It's a schedule of 2 

activities. 3 

   It's hard to believe that the year is 4 

almost over.  But if you had a chance to look at what 5 

we have planned for November and December, it looks 6 

pretty busy. 7 

   Plus we've had discussions over the last 8 

couple days indicate that we're going to have some 9 

additional meetings that aren't in this particular 10 

schedule. 11 

   Next week we have an NRCC meeting.  12 

Rick, Lee, Rich and I are going to be going up to that.  13 

We also have tentatively scheduled a meeting of the RSA 14 

Committee to look at some of the things that we discussed 15 

over the last couple days. 16 

   We've had discussions about an Ecosystem 17 

and Ocean Planning Committee meeting.  That's going to 18 

be scheduled in November.  Rick and I have also 19 

discussed the fact that we need to have an Executive 20 

Committee meet sometime in November to consider a number 21 

of issues.  We have also another committee that started 22 

up to support MREP, M-R-E-P.  So we've actually received 23 

funding to do the M-R-E-P, Marine Resource Education 24 
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Program, in the mid-Atlantic, and we have an Oversight 1 

Committee that's going to be meeting in November to start 2 

putting that together. 3 

   The other documents behind the tab 4 

include the specification table.  The thing that's not 5 

in the table is the fact that we submitted the spec 6 

package for summer flounder, scup, and black sea bass 7 

last week.  So that's been submitted. 8 

   Hopefully, that package will contain the 9 

range of alternatives that include some of the new 10 

information that you've been made aware of over the last 11 

couple days that we'll see. 12 

   The other thing is the status of 13 

amendments and frameworks.  That hasn't changed much 14 

since the last time we talked about it.  The next item 15 

behind the tab, I just want to spend a little time with.  16 

This is the 2011 council priorities and projects that 17 

we identified last year. 18 

   We're going to go through a similar 19 

exercise in December, so this is to really look at what 20 

we've done and actually have you start thinking about 21 

what our priorities and projects might be for 2012.  So, 22 

if you take a look at the list quickly, the Amendment 23 

11 to squid, mackerel, butterfish, that's in proposed 24 
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rule.  Amendment 14 obviously we talked about that this 1 

week, so that's ongoing.  The Amendment 15 to surfclams 2 

and ocean quahogs involves that excessive shares report.  3 

We were going to have a report, that CIE report at this 4 

meeting.  Because Lee Anderson couldn't be here, we 5 

decided to reschedule that for December. 6 

   So after we have that CIE report and the 7 

Council decides how it wants to proceed, we'll continue 8 

work with Amendment 15.  Spiny dogfish Amendment 3 is 9 

continuing.  We continue to work on that.  And 10 

Amendment 6 to monkfish we continue to work on that. 11 

   We've had discussions of the RSA Program 12 

at this meeting, and we'll continue with those 13 

discussions.  We did have an AP performance report.  14 

Remember we had that done for squid, mackerel, 15 

butterfish, and that was well received. 16 

   We'll be doing those AP performance 17 

reports for other species next year.  The Visioning 18 

Project we're going to talk about in a little bit.  The 19 

Ecosystem-Based Fishery Management Plan Project we 20 

continue to work on that through our ecosystem 21 

subcommittee of the SSC. 22 

   That will be the focus of our discussion 23 

for the Executive Committee in November.  MARCO we 24 
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talked about asking for representation on MARCO on the 1 

Board.  We did send in a letter.  We never got a response 2 

to that request.  We volunteered to serve on their 3 

technical committees as well, and we're continuing to 4 

proceed with that particular activity. 5 

   In terms of communications, outreach, 6 

and education, we've had a busy time.  Remember 7 

initially when I first got to the Council, we talked 8 

about hiring a public affairs person and decided to hold 9 

off on that. 10 

   Instead we've actually used the money 11 

for that communications person to support a number of 12 

contracts.  As a result we developed a new brand.  We're 13 

working on a website that you'll see soon.  It should 14 

be launched in middle October.  We have a Twitter 15 

account. 16 

   So if you haven't checked that out, you 17 

should.  Again, we'll talk about the Visioning Project.  18 

That's supported a lot of outreach and communication 19 

activities.  We're going to talk about that in a little 20 

bit. 21 

   Press releases have changed.  Before 22 

they were a laundry list of what happened at the Council 23 

meetings.  Now they're one single focused sort of press 24 
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releases that seem to have gotten a little more attention 1 

in the press.  And we'll continue to proceed with that 2 

format.  One thing that you may or may not be aware of 3 

is that we actually do a Council summary now, and we post 4 

that summary to the website.  And that's something 5 

similar to what New England Council does.  So it's a 6 

three- or four-page document that basically details the 7 

activities that occurred at the Council meeting. 8 

   It's not widely distributed.  We do that 9 

for a number of reasons, for folks that want some 10 

additional information.  And certainly if you guys want 11 

that, more widely distributed copies of that, we can 12 

provide those to you.  So that's communications and 13 

outreach and education in a nutshell. 14 

   Summer flounder, scup, and black sea 15 

bass.  That's going to be very interesting over the next 16 

couple months as we deal with a number of issues related 17 

to summer flounder, scup and black sea bass. 18 

   We had Jessica here yesterday talk about 19 

Amendment 17.  Obviously, we continue to pursue the 20 

development of Amendment 17.  Remember we also have that 21 

analysis that's ongoing that we funded for scup, that 22 

scup economic analysis. 23 

   That report's going to be made available 24 
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to the Council sometime in January.  So we'll be talking 1 

about that at our February Council meeting.  So that was 2 

the one that was looking at the allocations between 3 

commercial and rec and between commercial and 4 

commercial.  So, again, that's ongoing.  We talked 5 

about this at our last Council meeting.  I don't know 6 

if you remember.  But we had planned to do EFH for 7 

bluefish in our spec package.  The Service said that the 8 

information wasn't there to do that this year, so we're 9 

going to do that next year. 10 

   So that's the list of priorities and 11 

projects.  Certainly, we can talk about that in a little 12 

bit.  The next thing behind the tab is just to remind 13 

you that we did have a contract with CBL to do some work, 14 

the title being, Evaluation of Acceptable Biological 15 

Catch Control Rules for Mid-Atlantic Stocks. 16 

   So that work is done.  The report is 17 

available and under review.  If you want a copy of it, 18 

you certainly can get a copy.  We can provide that to 19 

you.  The executive summary is on the next page. 20 

   Last, but not least, I want to talk about 21 

the Visioning Project a little bit.  There's a memo to 22 

me from Mary Clark, who is our coordinator for that 23 

project.  She's doing an excellent job managing the 24 
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project. 1 

   If you had a chance, just going through 2 

this memo, she notes that we launched the project 3 

officially on September 20th.  So on September 20th, we 4 

made the survey available to the public and basically 5 

started letting folks know that it was on there and 6 

started a media campaign to raise awareness of the 7 

project.  We've had a number of articles published in 8 

various media outlets including the Cape May County 9 

Herald, the Dover Post, the Asberry Park Press.  A 10 

number of blog sites as well picked it up and started 11 

to really push the survey to their folks. 12 

   We're going to be using a number of 13 

communication techniques to reach out to our 14 

constituents to get folks to take the survey, and later 15 

this month we're going to launch a personal outreach 16 

campaign where each of the staffers are going to call 17 

folks, some of the folks that they know, to encourage 18 

them to participate in the survey. 19 

   We're also going to send a letter out to 20 

all the commercial permit holders letting them know 21 

about the survey.  We're also contacting a number of 22 

organizations to let them know about the survey 23 

including NGOs, commercial fishermen associations, 24 
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recreational fishing clubs. 1 

   We're also reaching out to stakeholders 2 

at various events.  So Jason, Rick, and Mary were at the 3 

Working Waterfront Festival in New Bedford, 4 

Massachusetts on September 24th and 25th.  Their 5 

presence there was well received.  They had a number of 6 

folks stop by the booth, learn about the Council, the 7 

Council activities, and of course about the Visioning 8 

Project as well.  Mary was also at some events in 9 

Maryland and Delaware, and then she was also at this New 10 

Jersey Coast Day in Cape May here last weekend. 11 

   Over the next four months, we're going 12 

to be holding a number of small group meetings up and 13 

down the Atlantic coast, from Massachusetts through 14 

North Carolina.  Those meetings are going to be 15 

facilitated by our contractor, Touchstone, basically to 16 

sit down with some small groups of folks, commercial and 17 

recreational NGOs, have more candid and indepth 18 

discussions about Council activities and their vision 19 

for mid-Atlantic fisheries. 20 

   We're also going to hold a workshop for 21 

recreational stakeholders.  That's scheduled for 22 

December 2nd and 3rd in Baltimore to look at not only 23 

the vision of the recreational folks who are in the 24 
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mid-Atlantic fisheries, but also engage them in the 1 

discussions related to recreational management measures 2 

for summer flounder, scup, and black sea bass.  As of 3 

today we've actually had close to 300 completed survey 4 

responses.  So not too bad. 5 

   Our goal - (inaudible) story -- you know 6 

if you think about it you only just really started so 7 

already we have 300 so we are doing pretty well.   And 8 

as Mary notes in her memo to me, in less than two weeks 9 

since the survey opened, the Council's website has had 10 

a surge of web traffic.  There's been very positive 11 

interest, very positive support.  If you have a chance 12 

to look at any of those blogs and see how people are 13 

responding to the survey, you'll see that people are very 14 

positive for the most part. 15 

   So we expect that there's going to be a 16 

high level of interest.  There's going to be a high level 17 

of participation.  Certainly, as Council members if you 18 

are interested in having meetings with constituents in 19 

your states or if you think of any other ideas to help 20 

us promote the Visioning Project, certainly let us know.  21 

With that, Mr. Chairman, I'll be glad to answer any 22 

questions. 23 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Thank 24 
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you, Chris.  Pete. 1 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. 2 

Chairman and Mr. Executive Director.  I had a lot of 3 

discussions with Mary when your press release came out, 4 

and something that the state representatives may want 5 

to consider here is that -- well, first of all, you needed 6 

a blank questionnaire that you fill it out online.  You 7 

can't print it out unless you fill it out. 8 

   So, anyway, the bottom line is get the 9 

questionnaire and people that are like me that are 10 

proxies for state directors you need to take the 11 

questionnaire and the press release and this sort of 12 

helps, the brochure, and the states can actually augment 13 

through their websites and press releases and e-mail 14 

distribution lists a promotion of the Visioning Project.  15 

But we need to get, like me, I have to get prior approval 16 

than just throw things out and mass distribute it 17 

throughout New Jersey. 18 

   And the other thing is that what you can 19 

also consider is that once you have the copy of the 20 

questionnaire and these brochures, which I need a lot 21 

more of, you can go to Marine Fisheries Council meetings 22 

within your state.  You can go to Committee meetings. 23 

   You can readily distribute this stuff 24 
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once you get the approval of your state director.  So 1 

I think it's a great avenue for the states to really 2 

increase the responses and promote the Visioning 3 

Project.  So that's kind of like a recommendation of the 4 

state representatives here. 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  6 

Thanks.  Chris. 7 

   CHRIS MOORE:  Thanks, Pete.  And 8 

certainly that highlights an important point, which is 9 

if you need anything, so if you need hard copies of 10 

things, of the survey or you need more of those 11 

brochures.  Some of those give-aways that you see in 12 

front of you are there to support the Visioning Project 13 

as well.  Some of the lower end ones, certainly we have 14 

a good quantity of, the pens, the magnets.  There's 15 

these little cards that we put together basically to get 16 

people to the website.  So we can make those available 17 

to any of the states who want to help us distribute those. 18 

   The other products, the bags and the 19 

mugs, are some of the things we're going to be using at 20 

our more focused events.  But, again, all of those are 21 

to promote the Visioning Project and get people to take 22 

the survey. 23 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  As 24 
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Chris pointed out, we did get a good start on the project.  1 

We did kick it off in New Bedford, and I did a lot of 2 

radio interviews that Thursday. 3 

   I met with Mayor Lang on Friday, and then 4 

we exhibited at the Waterfront Festival.  And I think 5 

we made a lot of good contacts in the course of that 6 

weekend.  So we got off to a good start. 7 

   And the survey responses are starting to 8 

come in in response to action alerts that different 9 

constituents have sent out.  So hopefully, we'll gain 10 

some significant inertia with the project.  Thank you, 11 

Chris.  Any other questions for Chris?  All right.  Why 12 

don't we do the General Counsel report.  Denise. 13 

 ______________________ 14 

 GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 15 

   DENISE DESAUTELS:  Good morning, Mr. 16 

Chairman.  Thank you for your patience.  Two very quick 17 

matters.  First, I'm Denise Desautels.  I'm 18 

substituting for Joel MacDonald for this meeting.  The 19 

first is Oceana versus Locke.  And in mid-July the D.C. 20 

Court of Appeals reversed the district court decision 21 

upholding SBRM established by the Omnibus Amendment for 22 

all FMPs administered by New England and Mid-Atlantic 23 

Councils. 24 
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   The Court held that because the SBRM 1 

amendment grants NMFS substantial discretion both to 2 

invoke and to make allocations according to a  3 

nonstandardized procedure, the Court found NMFS did not 4 

establish a standardized methodology under the 5 

Fisheries Act. 6 

   The current (inaudible) that has been 7 

remanded back to the district court with instructions 8 

to vacate the Omnibus Amendment and to remand to NMFS 9 

for further proceedings. 10 

   I understand that there will be a meeting 11 

I guess next week, October 20th, of the Northeast 12 

Regional Coordinating Council, and that's made up of 13 

representatives of the New England and Mid-Atlantic 14 

Councils, the ASMFC and the regional staff in Gloucester 15 

and also the Science Center. 16 

   And the Council and NMFS need to respond 17 

to the court's remand as soon as possible to develop the 18 

new SBRM Amendment.  And then also there is Martha's 19 

Vineyard versus Locke.  In mid-December the D.C. 20 

District Court dismissed a complaint against the federal 21 

defendants, which are NOAA and NMFS.  They also 22 

dismissed a complaint against the state defendants, 23 

which are ASMFC and the Commissioners.  The case 24 
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involved the management of river herring and shad. 1 

   The court interpreted claims addressing 2 

the way NMFS regulated other fisheries, non-herring 3 

fisheries; and consequently, the claims are subject to 4 

the procedural rules governing NMFS regulations 5 

implemented in other fisheries, specifically Atlantic 6 

herring, squid, mackerel and butterfish. 7 

   Because the statutory procedural 8 

provision requires challenges to be brought within 30 9 

days of the regulation having been enacted, the court 10 

dismissed the complaint as having been brought long 11 

after regulations were promulgated. 12 

   The court also dismissed a complaint 13 

against the state defendants because the Administrative 14 

Procedure Act is not applicable to the ASMFC because it's 15 

not a federal entity and there's no private right of 16 

action against the Commissioners.  Thank you. 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Thank 18 

you, Denise.  Any questions?  Okay.  The next item is 19 

Rich Seagrave's report.  And we did host the National 20 

SSC meeting in Williamsburg last week, so Rich will be 21 

reporting out on that. 22 

 ______________ 23 

 SCIENCE REPORT 24 
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   RICHARD SEAGRAVES:  Thank you, Mr. 1 

Chairman.  My report is behind Tab 10.  The first item 2 

is a letter to Rick Robins from the PEW environmental 3 

group, which provides an update on recent scientific 4 

developments relative to science and management of 5 

forage species. 6 

   The first -- and they reference two 7 

documents -- or actually three.  The first is a 8 

directive series from the Marine Stewardship Council 9 

relative to the assessment and management methodologies 10 

for fish species of low trophic levels.  And that's 11 

about five pages. 12 

   And that is followed by two recent papers 13 

published in the peer reviewed literature, the first, 14 

Smith et al: Science on the Impacts of Fishing on Low 15 

Trophic Level Species on Marine Ecosystems, and the next 16 

paper by Tyrell et al including one of the authors, Jason 17 

Link, the chair of our ecosystems subcommittee, on the 18 

importance of including predation in fish population 19 

dynamics models and the implications for biological 20 

reference points. 21 

   And just the abstracts of those papers 22 

are included.  We can provide you with the full paper 23 

if you're interested.  The next item is the five-year 24 
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research plan.  It's still at draft stage.  We'll be 1 

taking action on that in December.  But this was vetted 2 

through the SSC in September, and we modified the current 3 

five-year plan or five-year list and updated it based 4 

on the changes in the research recommendations included 5 

in stock assessments.  And so there were some 6 

modifications to the single species list. 7 

   And also I'll just report that we did get 8 

agreement or some discussion at the RSA Committee 9 

meeting to have a working group formed within the SSC 10 

to help the Council develop a real research plan, in 11 

other words, take the list that we currently have and 12 

do some evaluations of what are our most critical needs, 13 

what research should we fund immediately or in some 14 

sequence that will address sequentially our greatest 15 

area's research needs and subsequently reduce 16 

scientific uncertainty. 17 

   So that's going to be a big push.  And 18 

that was well received, and I think the SSC seems pretty 19 

excited, a lot of energy there to try to really move our 20 

laundry list into some workable plan. 21 

   And if you would bring my presentation 22 

up, Jan.  The next item you'll see is the agenda.  As 23 

Rick indicated, we hosted the Fourth National SSC 24 
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Workshop in Williamsburg.  I've got a brief Powerpoint 1 

here.  Give you the high points of what happened.  We 2 

finished up on Thursday, and, of course, people were 3 

traveling on Friday.  Monday was a federal holiday.  So 4 

the way that this thing works is the various staff 5 

members from all the regional councils around the 6 

country act as raponteurs, and they're assigned various 7 

duties.  And those reports are starting to trickle in 8 

now. 9 

   So I'm just basing this summary on my own 10 

notes and what I have available.  So the Council 11 

Coordination Committee approved funding for National 12 

SSC 4 and directed us to include two topics for 13 

discussion, first, ecosystem-based fisheries 14 

management issues and also the incorporation of social 15 

sciences in both traditional single species management 16 

and ecosystem-based fisheries management. 17 

   And, again, we hosted the meeting 18 

Tuesday through Thursday at the Kingsmill Resort, which 19 

is, I think, where we're going to be for the December 20 

Council meeting. 21 

   We formed a program steering committee, 22 

which consisted of the chairs of the eight regional 23 

council SSCs.  John Boreman served as a chair of that 24 
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steering committee and as well as chairing the meeting 1 

itself. 2 

   John did a great job as usual.  He always 3 

comes through in a clutch.  We had some interesting 4 

debates.  I think logistically the meeting went very 5 

well from a substantive point of view.  Anytime you get 6 

together that many disparate views, we had a lot of 7 

people since we had two really not separate topics, but 8 

two different areas of expertise, ecosystem folks and 9 

then the social science community discipline.  There 10 

was quite an array of viewpoints around the table. 11 

   It was a real large group, and it's 12 

difficult to operate any meeting with many people, but 13 

John really did a great job.  In our first meeting it 14 

was obvious that all the SSC chairs are primarily 15 

population dynamics folks or biology types, and we 16 

didn't have any representation at the chair level of the 17 

SSCs of the social science community, so we formed two 18 

program subcommittees which were to develop the program. 19 

   It was decided it would probably be most 20 

efficient that we made it an all MAFMC show, and so Jason 21 

Link chaired the ecosystem subcommittee, and David 22 

Tomberlin from our SSC chaired the social science, and 23 

they were instrumental in developing the program. 24 
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   We had about 65 people attended with 1 

representation from both disciplines from the eight SSCs 2 

from around the United States.  On day one, if you look 3 

through the program, we had our kickoff was Dr. Tony 4 

Smith from Australia, and he was chosen by the -- and 5 

this was really a democratic process for the science part 6 

of it in that each respective program subcommittee 7 

picked their keynote speakers.  And Tony was the clear 8 

choice in terms of the international expert on 9 

implementing ecosystem-based fishery management.  He 10 

gave a great talk. 11 

   I will mention at this point:  if you go 12 

onto our website, there's a little bullet there for the 13 

Fourth National SSC Workshop.  If you click on that, all 14 

the information, all the talks that were presented are 15 

available if you want to take a look at those.  You can 16 

look at Tony's presentation. 17 

   He basically gave us an overview of their 18 

experience, and probably most importantly he taught us 19 

how to say ecosystem-based fisheries management in 20 

Australian. 21 

   And then the next topic was the round 22 

robin reports from each of the eight SSC chairs, and they 23 

were given -- it might help a little bit -- part of the 24 
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planning of this because of the diversity in the topics 1 

that we were talking about, it was really critical that 2 

we had a good set of terms of reference and trigger 3 

questions to make sure that we had productive 4 

discussion. 5 

   And so each part, if you look behind the 6 

agenda itself, all the terms of references and trigger 7 

questions for the various sessions are listed there, and 8 

so each SSC chair had some direction as to what topics 9 

we wanted to talk about.  Of course, they were primarily 10 

how's your SSC involved in developing goals and 11 

objectives in moving ecosystem-based fisheries 12 

management into the system, and also more basic 13 

consideration for the social sciences in that they're 14 

somewhat behind in terms of really getting incorporated 15 

in the process.  So they had more a basic level 16 

discussion. 17 

   So we had our SSC chair report out 18 

following Tony's talk.  And their reports are also 19 

listed.  If you go on the website, you can see what's 20 

going on around the country. 21 

   Then in the afternoon the keynote 22 

speaker for the social science group was our own vice 23 

chair, Dr. Lee Anderson.  And Lee gave an address and 24 
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spoke to the role of social sciences within the SSC 1 

process and the larger council process. 2 

   And then that was followed by a talk by 3 

Dr. Brian Wells from the West Coast, the keynote one 4 

frameworks, and he gave a talk on the development of 5 

integrated ecosystem assessments, which is kind of a 6 

30,000 foot looking at all the parts of the system well 7 

beyond just the biological components of ecosystems and 8 

trying to include various climate factors, physical 9 

oceanographic factors that drive systems and how those 10 

ecosystems fit into the larger models that this thing 11 

tries to integrate all the various components.  And it 12 

was a talk based on the California current.  So that was 13 

really a talk on the state of the art of developing these 14 

sorts of models that NOAA has been working on for a couple 15 

years now.     On day two we broke out into 16 

separate groups.  And I'll go through these separately.  17 

The social science breakout discussed three topics.  18 

The first is just the basic question of what is the role 19 

of social science in the SSC process? 20 

   The second topic discussed was the use 21 

of catch shares.  And I'll go through some of the high 22 

points of these things in the next couple slides.  And 23 

then the last topic was procedural and data issues. 24 
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   The ecosystems breakout had three main 1 

topics.  The first were system level OY considerations.  2 

You're familiar with some of the work that's being done 3 

in New England.  And the leaders in this area are 4 

principally the North Pacific where they are setting 5 

overall system caps or levels of biomass removal that 6 

they can't exceed for the Bering Sea and Aleutian Islands 7 

fisheries and the Gulf of Alaska fisheries. 8 

   So, when they do their actual quota 9 

specifications and so forth, they sum up all their 10 

allowable harvests, and some of those cannot exceed 11 

their system level cap.  And so if they get in a 12 

situation where they are going to exceed it, the fishing 13 

industry actually kind of horse trades back and forth 14 

to decided what's got to be reduced so that they don't 15 

exceed their cap. 16 

   The next topic was forage species 17 

issues.  This was led with a paper by Rick Methot and 18 

Jason Link.  And, as you know, Jason has been developing 19 

for us a methodology to define what a forage species is.  20 

That was presented at the meeting, and there was some 21 

good discussion about forage species. 22 

   And then finally we wanted some help as 23 

we are actively engaged in trying to develop 24 
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ecosystem-based management goals and objectives.  One 1 

of the things that I thought was really good that Jason 2 

did is they polled all the various councils and they 3 

asked them actually on these three separate topics:  4 

What's your council doing; how far along are you on each 5 

of these issues? 6 

   And if you look again on our website, go 7 

to the ecosystems tab, and you'll see that there are 8 

three topic papers with the trigger questions that will 9 

give you flavor if you're interested on what's going on 10 

around the country.  So on day three, we came back 11 

together, and the social science group gave a report.  12 

And I'm at a little bit of a disadvantage because I sat 13 

in on the ecosystem side.  Mary Clark was helping me put 14 

this workshop together, and Mary sat in on the social 15 

science session on day two.  So I'm working off the 16 

notes.  I think John can probably help me as well.  John 17 

sat through the social science part of this. 18 

   But the upshot of summary of what they 19 

came up with was that in terms of social sciences, 20 

there's a wide range of engagement of social scientists 21 

within the SSC deliberation process.  And this varies 22 

from basically full engagement in the Alaska region to 23 

basically little or no engagement in some or many, 24 
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actually quite a number of regions. 1 

   So this was identified as a problem that 2 

these would be overcome.  And so I'll get into it a 3 

little bit later.  I think  one of the problems is 4 

timing and availability of information that they 5 

normally -- in Alaska they review -- the SSC and the 6 

social scientists within their SSC review basically 7 

every document that the Council staff and the Council 8 

puts forth.  So they have a very active engagement. 9 

   And most of the councils are not doing 10 

that, and that is because the information generally has 11 

not been made available to the social scientists.  The 12 

second bullet point is that many of the SSCs or the social 13 

scientists within their SSCs see the development of 14 

ecosystem-based fisheries management goals and 15 

objectives as a good point of entry into the SSC process.  16 

Apparently, during their discussion on catch shares, 17 

they felt that catch shares should be viewed as a vehicle 18 

to achieve community objectives in fisheries management 19 

I think was the take-home message from that discussion. 20 

   And their kind of overall summary was 21 

that there's a real need to more fully engage social 22 

scientists in review of the council documents including 23 

FMPs, amendments, frameworks, and the associated 24 
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environmental impact statements and/or environmental 1 

assessment analyses. 2 

   Day three the systems level OY 3 

consideration.  I'll go through those three topics.  4 

Some of the high points were that the councils need to 5 

recognize that the synopsis or the general summary of 6 

this was that system level MSYs are generally 7 

less -- are going to be less than the sum of single 8 

species MSYs. 9 

   And they pointed to the fact that the 10 

councils are probably going to have to consider more 11 

precautionary F policies.  Now, this is kind of a truism 12 

if you look at all the work that's been done on 13 

multispecies population dynamics models. 14 

   And when you take into account the 15 

interacts, biological and technical interactions 16 

between species, it's generally been found that you 17 

cannot achieve at a system level the MSY value that you 18 

derive is generally going to be less than the single 19 

species.  Now, what they didn't talk about was tradeoffs 20 

among species.  And a good example that we have is spiny 21 

dogfish, which is obviously a predator. 22 

   And I think that statement comes out of 23 

the fact that it's a given that, for instance, marine 24 
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mammals they're protected under Marine Mammal 1 

Protection Act have to be maintained at an optimal 2 

population level, which is kind of a similar concept to 3 

MS or BMSY for fish species. 4 

   So they're protected.  They have their 5 

energy and biomass consumption needs that have to be 6 

accounted for first, and that all species management 7 

under Magnuson still have the requirement to be 8 

maintained at least at BMSY. 9 

   And so there was no real discussion about 10 

is that something that for the long run the United States 11 

doesn't want to change its policy to kind of really 12 

evaluate and deal with tradeoffs among species. 13 

   I mean there may be some species that you 14 

don't want to maintain at BMSY, but I think the 15 

assumption imbedded in that statement is that you would.  16 

Their next conclusion was that obviously you need to 17 

define the system very carefully.  And the area that 18 

most people have been working in is again moving more 19 

toward a regional area based approach.  It's being 20 

discussed in New England.  And so the definition of the 21 

system obviously becomes very important.  They 22 

highlighted a need for better information on the 23 

interactions among species in trophic levels. 24 
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   I'm not sure how this one got in there.  1 

That's in the wrong slide.  My bad.  That one should go 2 

in the social science branch, was to form a social 3 

science working group. 4 

   Next slide.  In terms of forage species, 5 

there was complete agreement that there's a clear need 6 

to define forage species, but the conclusion was that 7 

a regional approach was preferred with some degree of 8 

national consistency. 9 

   We couldn't get any agreement on what 10 

would be the correct definition from a national 11 

perspective.  There are regional differences and how 12 

obviously regional differences in ecosystems in a way 13 

that various council and SSCs approach these problems. 14 

   So it was decided it would probably be 15 

best left to be determined on a regional basis with some 16 

overlying or underlying national consistency.  There 17 

are ways to address this in terms of protecting or 18 

special considerations for management of forage 19 

species, and that would be they could be addressed 20 

through OFL, the continue of OFL to OY buffers, biomass 21 

thresholds.  There was some discussion, some areas in 22 

Alaska they're doing spacial management where there are 23 

certain areas that protect forage species at certain 24 
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times in their life history and also just a direct 1 

set-aside. 2 

   They also felt there's a great need to 3 

review approaches to estimating biomass of forage 4 

species as a group for a system and also to estimate what 5 

the total forage demand by predators within a particular 6 

system might be. 7 

   And then in terms of goals and 8 

objectives, each council is concerned and actively 9 

engaged in developing goals and objectives for 10 

ecosystem-based fisheries management.  And it was clear 11 

based on the Australian example that Tony Smith gave us 12 

and discussions by all the councils that it's very 13 

critical that in the early stage of this that you engage 14 

your stakeholders in the debate so that really to 15 

determine what it is, the goals are, because obviously 16 

there are a lot of different tradeoffs in how you would 17 

manage at the ecosystem level. 18 

   They also highlighted the need to 19 

carefully develop transition strategies from their 20 

current single species focus to the ecosystem from all 21 

these species.  And clearly one of the questions that 22 

comes up is I think some folks in this area have within 23 

our council have raised a question:  Why would we be 24 
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better off; we've rebuilt our stocks under a single 1 

species focus, and why is ecosystem-based fishery 2 

management a better approach? 3 

   And it was clearly recognized that this 4 

needed to be demonstrated how we would be better off.  5 

And that's the distilled version of it.  As I said, we 6 

haven't gotten all the raponteurs' notes yet. 7 

   We'll be working on a summary document 8 

or a proceedings document that hopefully we'll have to 9 

give to the Council Coordination Committee at their 10 

January meeting or somewhere around there.  And that 11 

concludes my report. 12 

   Oh, the one thing I did want to mention 13 

is that we had our Council meeting this week.  Of course 14 

we did this last week.  And I wanted to thank Jan and 15 

Kathy for really doing a great job down there. 16 

   It was high anxiety when you're on 17 

display in front of all the other councils.  We had a 18 

big group, a diverse group of people, and I think it went 19 

really without a hitch, and I thank them. 20 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  I 21 

would just follow up and say, Rich and John and the staff 22 

did a great job all last week.  So thank you.  I should 23 

have mentioned earlier that Dr. Lee Anderson is overseas 24 
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attending an OECD meeting this week, so that's why he's 1 

not with us.  But questions for Rich?  Peter. 2 

   PETER deFUR:  Yeah, Rich.  I had a 3 

chance to attend one day there.  All the accolades are 4 

well deserved.  Good job.  And especially the people 5 

who did the real hard lifting over there keeping things 6 

going here. 7 

   I was curious because I heard part of the 8 

discussion about forage species.  That wasn't clear to 9 

me about why there was such confusion about why they 10 

couldn't recognize some sort of common definition. 11 

   It's not as though it's a question that's 12 

been raised for the first time in this context.  So the 13 

question what's forage is really an old biological 14 

question.  Or are they just unclear about how to define 15 

it in the specific context of fishery management? 16 

   RICHARD SEAGRAVES:  Well, I think the 17 

reservation was that -- first of all, within the 18 

discussions that we have had within our own SSC when 19 

Jason put forward his proposed definition or strawman 20 

to get us going, one of the issues was raised is all 21 

species at some part of their life stage most all of them 22 

are subject to predation.  They're forage species 23 

through some window of their life history.  So that kind 24 
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of complicates the situation.  There was some 1 

discussion about that.  But I think most of the problem 2 

was it came from regional differences in the types of 3 

ecosystems that are out there and how that might impact 4 

the first order of principal. 5 

   I agree with you.  We should certainly 6 

be able to do first order of principals for forage 7 

species.  And I'll let John add to what I have to say.  8 

But I think in the end I thought we were pretty close 9 

to forming a national group that was going to take this 10 

on because it was a little too much to do on the fly at 11 

the meeting. 12 

   But really Rick Methot on the last day 13 

kind of reversed the course on us and said that I don't 14 

think we're ready for this and derailed us.  But 15 

subsequently, I've gotten an e-mail from him saying 16 

maybe we should move forward with this.  So I'm not sure 17 

where we stand.  But I'll let John add to that. 18 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Yeah.  I think Jason did 19 

a good job of explaining how we're trying to define 20 

forage along the Atlantic coast.  It depends on what 21 

you're trying to manage for, too. 22 

   And I think once our visioning exercise 23 

is finished and the Council decides its goals and 24 
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objectives for ecosystem-based fisheries management, 1 

we'll be able to get a better handle on defining forage, 2 

and that is forage that's needed to support whatever 3 

goals and objectives we want to achieve on an 4 

ecosystem-based fisheries management level.  And I 5 

think that was kind of an underlying thread, all the 6 

regions saying we're handling it a little different. 7 

   There are two major reports that are 8 

coming out or just have come out from (inaudible), and 9 

I think Marine Stewardship Council and I think the other 10 

one, that discuss forage. 11 

   And the group last week decided to let 12 

those reports -- when those reports come out form a 13 

working group to evaluate those reports and then at our 14 

next national SSC workshop or some other time report back 15 

on how those reports may influence how we nationally 16 

would address this forage issue. 17 

   So we thought coming up with some type 18 

of national criteria at this point was a bit premature.  19 

We'll see what the experts in the field who have been 20 

working on this close hand have to say and then do an 21 

evaluation as a follow-up. 22 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  23 

Thanks, John.  Any further questions for Rich?  Greg. 24 
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   GREGORY DIDOMENICO:  Thank you, Mr. 1 

Chairman.  I just want to make a couple brief comments.  2 

We've been following this issue since the 3 

reauthorization in 2006.  I don't have to remind you all 4 

that the hard requirement, statutory requirement it was 5 

left out of Magnuson reauthorization.  This is an issue 6 

that we have an issue of governance, and statutory 7 

requirements, Rick, that sort of continues to be left 8 

undefined for us. 9 

   The Council may make these 10 

considerations.  It's not hard-wired in the law.  And 11 

there still seems to be this sort of approach.  This 12 

approach I think exceeds what we expected out of may 13 

consider ecosystem considerations. 14 

   We had a brief back-and-forth with Mike 15 

Fogerty who continues to say that, well, national ocean 16 

policy says that we will do 17 

ecosystem-based management. 18 

   Every time we talk about national ocean 19 

policy and coastal marine spacial planning, again, 20 

there's these vague sort of requirements.  I've 21 

attended several meetings now about coastal marine 22 

spacial planning.  NOAA staff and NMFS staff has said 23 

this has no legal requirement.  There are no new rules.  24 
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This is not going to trump Magnuson. 1 

   Now, this is starting to get a little 2 

disturbing for the people that are in the forage 3 

business.  And I guess what we'd like to see besides sort 4 

of the discussion about what really is required of the 5 

Council.  I know that's a separate discussion.  One's 6 

management, and one's statutory requirements.  This is 7 

a science.  I hope that the national SSC and our SSC, 8 

John, sort of answers the questions, the key question, 9 

which is:  Are human removals harming marine mammals, 10 

turtles, birds and other species;  are human removals 11 

by harvest lowering the energy requirements of these 12 

species? 13 

   I mean no one has information that tells 14 

us if that is true or not.  So I'd like to see at least 15 

an approach that answers those questions first.  Some 16 

of the literature from the (inaudible) Trust Program and 17 

from the gentleman from Australia is talking about 18 

halving of current removals, half of our current quotas.  19 

Is that really what we want to do? 20 

   There's another group here.  We're 21 

feeding people.  What about their energy requirements?  22 

I think that stands for something.  I think that's 23 

important.  It's got to be considered. 24 
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   So we're going to continue to be part of 1 

this approach, and we hope that we can answer some of 2 

those questions with some guidance from the Council and 3 

be part of the research that identifies whether or not 4 

this type of approach is necessary. 5 

   We've had quotas on squid for 20 years 6 

that has primarily been stable, harvest level stable, 7 

and you compare them to the predation rates over 20/30 8 

years, and they have nothing to do with one another.  9 

Predation rates go up and down regardless of harvest.  10 

So that seems to be a pretty clear indication that we're 11 

not having much of an impact on that.  So I just wanted 12 

to talk about those several issues, Rich.  Thank you. 13 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Thank 14 

you, Greg.  And, again, we are going to develop goals 15 

and objectives for ecosystem management before we move 16 

forward with any technical approaches.  Jeff. 17 

   JEFF KAELIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  18 

Jeff Kaelin of Lunds Fisheries.  Greg did a good job with 19 

his comments.  The direction that this is going in -- 20 

some of the literature -- I wasn't able to get to the 21 

SSC workshop last week.  We were at the New England 22 

Council and so forth. 23 

   But the direction this is going in is 24 
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extremely disturbing.  When you get recommendations, as 1 

he said, to have current quotas -- we think the ecosystem 2 

is pretty healthy, and we hope that this Council's first 3 

priority is to produce sustainable seafood and seafood 4 

products, fisheries products from the ocean.  That's 5 

what the law requires us to do. 6 

   And we've made a lot of sacrifices over 7 

the years, and we think things are going in a pretty good 8 

direction.  We're beginning to see some quota go up.  9 

The system is beginning to deal with success, and then 10 

this new campaign comes in after we've met the goals of 11 

the Sustainable Fisheries Act or whatever they call it 12 

now.  It's extremely disturbing and hard to understand 13 

really why combating overfishing wasn't enough.  Now 14 

it's a whole other layer of campaign that has us 15 

extremely concerned, and we hope that this Council will 16 

work towards allowing these quotas to go up when the 17 

biology says that they should and not leave those fish 18 

in the water for the interests of some of the 19 

environmental groups that we're hearing from all the 20 

time.  So it's a pretty disturbing trend, and we look 21 

forward to working with you to counteract it.  Thank 22 

you. 23 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Any 24 
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further questions or comments?  All right.  Seeing 1 

none, Dr. Boreman, do you have an SSC report? 2 

 __________ 3 

 SSC REPORT 4 

   JOHN BOREMAN:  Well, what can I say that 5 

hasn't already been said?  First of all, I do want to 6 

thank Jan and Kathy for their support last week.  They 7 

do a lot of work behind the scenes, as we all know.  But 8 

it was a smooth operation last week to say the least. 9 

   We've already talked about the dogfish.  10 

We had a meeting in September, the SSC, to discuss the 11 

ABC recommendation for dogfish, and we already presented 12 

that to the Council yesterday.  Other aspects of those 13 

meetings, though, I do want to touch on.  We spent a 14 

considerable amount of time talking about the five-year 15 

research plan, and Rich led the discussion.  There's a 16 

great interest, and Rich put it forward, and everybody 17 

agreed that we need a plan. 18 

   We just can't get by with coming up with 19 

a laundry list every year of what needs to be done for 20 

each species, but we need to take a step back and say 21 

is working on Species X more important than doing 22 

research on Species Y; where can we get the biggest 23 

benefit from expenditures of research dollars both 24 
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through the cooperative research program run by the 1 

Northeast and the RSA program as well as advice we're 2 

given the National Marine Fishery Service. 3 

   So to that end we decided that we have 4 

the option, I guess, pending approval of the chair of 5 

the Council to have a mid-winter meeting where we discuss 6 

topics other than setting ABC specs.  And we decided 7 

that we probably should have a mid-winter meeting with 8 

the topic on research planning, do a little work ahead 9 

of time, a little thought with the idea of developing 10 

some criteria for reviewing this whole laundry list and 11 

boiling it down to doable items and items that would make 12 

the most difference in terms of our ABC process.  Along 13 

those lines, Marty Smith who is a professor of economics, 14 

fisheries economics, at Duke University has a graduate 15 

program.  It's a non-thesis graduate program where 16 

they're looking for projects to work on, and what he 17 

volunteered to do is assemble a team of graduate students 18 

to what he calls a rapid assessment -- I would say a 19 

little bit more than that -- but review the 20 

characteristics of our fisheries in the mid-Atlantic -- 21 

the economic characteristics, employment, the value of 22 

the fisheries, the interactions, the technological 23 

interactions with other fisheries, bycatch issues, 24 
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ecosystem issues -- and come up with basically this 1 

assessment of our fisheries that we can use perhaps not 2 

this year 'cause work hasn't started yet, but next year 3 

or the year after in formulating some criteria for 4 

setting standards, for establishing research goals and 5 

objectives. 6 

   So he's going to move forward with that, 7 

and I'll be helping him on that at Duke University, which 8 

is a good thing I think.  I think that's something that 9 

we really need here, and it probably -- it's part of the 10 

SAFE report, but it hasn't really been done to the level 11 

that the SSC feels that type of information that we need 12 

to make some judgements about the priorities for 13 

research. 14 

   Another aspect that we discussed, we had 15 

Dr. Jonathan Finney, who's an ecosystems person from the 16 

Southwest Center.  He was on detail to the Office of 17 

Sustainable Fisheries in headquarters, and he had 18 

proposed to the SSC that we consider using programmatic 19 

EIS as a tool as we move forward into ecosystem-based 20 

fisheries management. 21 

   It shouldn't replace fisheries 22 

management.  There are a lot of benefits to using a 23 

programmatic EIS to just look at the whole system out 24 
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there and how we could move forward with the management. 1 

   It has a public participation process, 2 

as with any EIS development.  And he strongly encouraged 3 

the Mid-Atlantic -- he thinks that the Mid-Atlantic 4 

Council is in the best position of any council to be 5 

taking this approach, so we have asked our ecosystem 6 

subcommittee to consider the points that he's made and 7 

will be coming back to the Council with some 8 

recommendations shortly.  I guess maybe in February. 9 

   And finally, as Rich mentioned, Dr. Mike 10 

Willburg with Dr. John Weedman and Tom Miller completed 11 

their MSE study of our ABC control rules.  We're 12 

reluctant to release the final report because it hasn't 13 

undergone peer review yet.  We will be getting it peer 14 

reviewed and then out to people.  But there's some 15 

interesting revelations in that report.  What they did 16 

was create a simulated population and then removed data 17 

from that population to see how each level of interaction 18 

that we have, whether we know the OFL probability 19 

distribution or don't know it or only have landings data 20 

and nothing else, how do those stack up in terms of the 21 

risks that we're taking when we use our ABC control 22 

rules. 23 

   And they evaluated a number of different 24 
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methods that are being used out there especially for our 1 

Level 4 species where we don't have an OFL estimate and 2 

we have to rely on landings history to develop some ABC 3 

recommendations.  And some methods are better than 4 

others. 5 

   And we'll be coming out with that report, 6 

again, probably at the February meeting once it's 7 

undergone peer review.  If you want to see a draft, I 8 

guess Rich would be willing to send a draft of the report 9 

out to you. 10 

   And, as I said, the January meeting I 11 

suppose we'll be addressing -- or February now we'll be 12 

addressing black sea bass, the benchmark assessment 13 

that's going to be upcoming at the SARC in December.  14 

That report will be out, and I'm sure the SSC will be 15 

asked to evaluate that report in light of our ABC 16 

recommendations. 17 

   We heard yesterday from Jim Weinberg 18 

that there's been some issues with fluke, that when we 19 

got the updates that we had for our fluke SSC meeting 20 

were basically projections without any updates to the 21 

stock biomass estimates, which was kind of an update 22 

light from the Center because they're so busy working 23 

on groundfish.  I guess nothing else matters when that 24 
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happens.  That's the way it seems. 1 

   So they finally did the updates on the 2 

biomass estimates, and it doesn't look as rosy as was 3 

presented to us last June.  And I've just heard this 4 

morning from Jim, he sent me an email saying that the 5 

same situation may be happening with scup.  So I'm not 6 

a happy camper.  I don't think the SSC will be happy to 7 

hear this, but we'll have to deal with it; and we'll get 8 

those updated assessments and evaluate them and then see 9 

if we need to modify our ABC recommendations to the 10 

Council, and hopefully it won't screw up the process too 11 

much.  And that's the end of my report.  Thanks. 12 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  And 13 

we will have plenty to discuss at the NRCC meeting on 14 

that point.  John, thank you again for all your work at 15 

the national meeting.  Are there any questions for John?  16 

Rich? 17 

   RICHARD SEAGRAVES:  Not a question, 18 

just FYI, that we also have been having discussions with 19 

the regional office, and we need to look at tilefish in 20 

terms of the new ACLAM paradigm.  We have not done that 21 

yet, and to do that we'll need some review by the SSC 22 

on an ABC.  So we'll probably be taking that up at this 23 

inner meeting as well. 24 
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   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  1 

Thanks, Rich.  Steve Linhard, you want to go ahead with 2 

the HMS report? 3 

 ____________________ 4 

 HMS COMMITTEE REPORT 5 

   STEPHEN LINHARD:  Thank you, Mr. 6 

Chairman.  The newly constituted HMS Committee met 7 

yesterday with the intention of defining the role and 8 

the scope and the priorities of the Committee going 9 

forward.  Just to summarize, we agreed for an intention 10 

to provide Council comments to HMS where the Committee 11 

believes they're appropriate, to keep the Council 12 

informed on HMS developments. 13 

   We also identified the priority species 14 

that we believe should be the priorities for the Council 15 

to sort of pay attention to the most. That is our sharks, 16 

bluefin tuna and swordfish. 17 

   The Committee also suggested that we 18 

contact -- that the Committee contact Jason Link for some 19 

additional input on any areas of additional impact that 20 

he may have some thoughts on. 21 

   There is a spring AP meeting in the 22 

planning stages that no date has been assigned yet, but 23 

the Committee will be represented on that at that AP 24 
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meeting.  That concludes a brief report.  Thank you. 1 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Thank 2 

you, Steve.  Any questions for Steve?  Okay. 3 

 __________________________ 4 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REPORT 5 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  The 6 

Executive Committee met yesterday and selected an award 7 

recipient, and that will be announced at the December 8 

meeting of the Council.  And that was our only business.  9 

Is there any other business to come before the Council?  10 

Pete. 11 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Thank you, 12 

Mr. Chairman.  One quick question.  I meant to bring 13 

this up under the spiny dogfish meeting yesterday,  And 14 

it concerns the Marine Stewardship Council 15 

certification process.  And my question is -- and here's 16 

a recent e-mail from them dated October 10th with 17 

requesting comments by November 16th. 18 

   It seems like every one of us in the room 19 

is copied on this e-mail as well as most of our 20 

counterparts in the New England Council.  And my 21 

question is:  Is the Mid-Atlantic Council participating 22 

in this process; should we be participating in this 23 

process; or is it something that's left to individuals 24 
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to even engage in the conversation? 1 

   I don't know how this process works, and 2 

I just want to know if we're missing an opportunity here, 3 

or we should just let this run its course. 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Pete, 5 

thanks for bringing this up.  I think they previously 6 

came down and met with our staff to better understand 7 

the management plan and the program.  But I'll ask 8 

Chris.  I think they met with Jim. 9 

   CHRISTOPHER MOORE:  Yeah.  They did.  10 

They do these scientific reviews of all the information.  11 

So they being two or three individuals including the 12 

contractor that MSC is working with to actually do the 13 

work, came down and sat down with Jim, went over the FMP, 14 

went over the information, spent probably I'd say 15 

probably three or four hours with him.  So, yeah, they 16 

are interacting with us through staff. 17 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Pete. 18 

   PETER HIMCHAK:  Okay.  With that 19 

response, yeah, that gives me some comfort because it's 20 

not like -- and I would hope they'd be talking to Dr. 21 

Rego and some really key individuals on this rather than 22 

an e-mail distribution list with 50 people on it. 23 

   So it gives me some comfort to know that 24 
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we are taking advantage of a process.  Where it leads 1 

to I don't know what the benefits of.  I thought they 2 

were good as far as marking goes.  So that answers my 3 

question.  Thank you. 4 

   COUNCIL CHAIRMAN RICHARD ROBINS:  Thank 5 

you, Pete.  Any other business to come before us?  We 6 

covered a lot of ground this week, and thank you all for 7 

a productive meeting.  I look forward to seeing you in 8 

Williamsburg in December.  With that we're adjourned.  9 

Thank you. 10 
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   1 

    2 

 C E R T I F I C A T E 

       

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS         

COUNTY OF NORFOLK 

                               

              I, PAUL T. WALLACE, a Professional Court 

Reporter and Notary Public in and for the  Commonwealth 

of Massachusetts, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

transcript represents a complete, true and accurate 

transcription of the audiographic tape taken in the 

above entitled matter to the best of my knowledge, skill 

and ability. 

              In witness whereof, I have set my hand and 

Notary Seal this 4th, day of December, 2011. 

           

           

                     ______________________________ 
                     PAUL T. WALLACE. Notary Public 
                     My Commission Expires 

                     October 8, 2015   

   

                     THIS FOREGOING CERTIFICATION OF 

THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT APPLY TO ANY REPRODUCTION OF 
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THE SAME BY ANY MEANS UNLESS UNDER THE DIRECT CONTROL 

AND/OR DIRECTION OF THE CERTIFYING REPORTER. 


